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ompany Profile

Central Vermont Public Service (NYSE: CV),
the largest of Vermont’s 21 electric utilities,
is an independent, investor-owned company
providing energy and energy-related
services to customers throughout Vermont.
CVPS serves more than 158,000 customers
in 151 towns across the state.

CVPS has one non-regulated business,
Catamount Resources Corp., which
sells and rents electric water heaters
through a subsidiary, SmartEnergy
Water Heating Services.

CVPS 2007 Energy by Fuel Type
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Notes:

(1) Nuctear includes Vermont Yankee and Millstene 3

(2) Hydro includes 5% of purchase from Hycgro-
Quebec. In 2008 {last year available}, 95% of HQ
production was from hydro. Other sources include CV
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of two gas turbines and 5% of HQ
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(5) Methane from VT Energy Recovery and
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ENERGIZED

BY THE

To bur Shareholders:

Vermont’s environment has always posed real challenges for CVPS
learned to adapt and thrive, evolving as natural, social, economic and political landscapes changed.
In 2007, our natural environment tested our fortitude. But rather than bowing to Mother Nature,

Like our forebears,

we (lr?w inspiration from her.

W‘é have become experts at responding to nature’s wrath.

In April, CVPS was hit by the largest storm ever to affect us. The
“nor’icane,” as it was called by one forecaster, severely damaged
our electric system, leaving 42 percent of our customers in the
dark. Every part of our territory confronted outages, and every
deparument assisted in the recovery, completed in just four days,
without a single injury. In recognition of this achievement, we
were honored by the Vermont Legislature, and received the

Edison Electric Institute’s 2007 Emergency Recovery Award.

!
We are committed to excellent customer service

ar;\d providing value.

While the $3.2 million incrememal cost of the nor'icane
affected our financial performance, the storm was a catalyst
for strengthening relationships with state and local officials,
regulators and customers, who were thrilled and impressed by the
p:!lce and quality of our effors. This is confirmed by the 2007 |.D.
Power survey, which for the second year in a row, ranked CVPS
ﬁlyst among similar utilities in the East for power quality, reliability,
company image, billing and payment.

S{iperior customer service, coupled with increasing capital
irivestments in our core business and transmission system, will
ensure we create value for shareholders over the long-term
as well.

V!U'e operate reliably and efficiently in some of

tpe most rural terrain in Vermont.

For the third straight year, CVPS met or exceeded all of its service
quality standards monitored by the Public Service Board. We
afre maintaining superior service with minimal cost increases. In
January 2008, the Public Service Board approved our 2007 rate
c‘lase seulement, increasing rates by 2.3 percent. Since 1999, we
have raised our rates just 5.9 percent.

F:'rotecting Vermont’'s environment benefits our
customers and our business.

Lh 2007, we added two more farms to our Cow Power program,
which generated 5.8 million kWh, and increased enrollment to
4 600 CVPS customers. CVPS Cow Power™ was recently named a

‘2007 Top Plant for Renewable Encrgy by Power Magazine.

e also launched “CVPS plug n” go™.,” which allows customers
with plug-in hybrid cars 10 recharge their vehicles at an off-
peak rate. In parmership with Green Mountain College and the
University of Vermont, CVPS has three plug-in hybrid cars on the
road to study their pracrical and environmental effects.

CVPSwaslauded by the Chicago Climate Exchange® forsuccessfully
reducing its greenhouse gas emissions 4 percent below a baseline
of the annual average of emissions from 1898 to 2001. We are
committed to further emissions reductions going forward.

We are working to create an affordable, reliable,

clean electric future for Vermont.

Our contracts with Hydro-Quebec and Vermont Yankee, which
comprise 75 percent of our total power supply, begin to expire
in 2012, We are actively negotiating new power contracts with
these two entities and other potential suppliers. CVPS is also

collaborating on a new study to determine the feasibility of

building a new generation facility in Vermont and considering
results from the state’s public outreach process on futre
power supply.

We are demonstrating exemplary performance under the most
challenging circumstances. Looking ahead, we will continue to
follow the principles that have made CVPS resilient, and fostered
employees’ dedication and commimment 10 excellence for 78
vears. We will continue 1o seek ecologically sound generation
solutions, and we will not back down from the service challenges
that are inherent to our Lerritory, because we are energized by the
forces of nature.,

Thank you for your support. We look forward to enhancing value
for shareholders and customers in 2008.

Sincerely,

et

Bob \oung

we  have
]
[



Nature’s Wrath Brings Out Our Best

Nature's unpredictability and Vermont's rural, mountainous
landscape make it a constant challenge o deliver on our commit-
ment to customers. To CVPS employees, that commiument is to
provide elecuric service, so customers can conduct their daily
lives safely, affordably and produc-
tively. Achieving that high
standard is what makes our

gt e

work rewarding,

In 2007, we went 1o the
furthest lengths o fulfill
that commitment when mi-
merous  storms  hammered
our service territory. The worst
of them occurred April 16, when
a storm of huwrricane intensity
through Vermont, causing
widespread damage throughout our
service territories. It downed thousands

of trees and hundreds of lines, and blocked major traffic routes

blew

throughout the city of Rutland. This was the worst storm ever o
strike our service territory, even topping the infamous Northeast
ice storm of 1998.

Within hours, CVPS coordinated with public works officials
in the affected areas to clear roadways, and we brought in over
150 contract line¢ and tree crews from the Northeast and Canada
to assist us, tripling our operations workforce.

Devastating storms only rarely encroach on our
borders, but we have gained experience by help-

ing other utilities with their responses to hurri-
canes and other destinuctive storms. Because of
our experience, we handled this storm
efficiendy and capably, earn-
ing the public's wrust
and praise from offi-
cials across Vermont.

In recognition of
our efforts, CVPS

was honored in

Power goes out for § March 16

o/ 42 percent of CVPS

e
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) CVPS briefs Gov. Douglas,
v local officials

January with the Edison Electric Institute’'s 2007 Emergency
Recovery Award, CVPSisthesmallestcompanyinmemorytoreceive
this award.

Storms in Junuary, February, March and August were
also managed well, so despite 2007's total storm cost of
$9.2 million, customers’ confidence and satisfaction
with our service remained high.

In fact, for the second year in a row,
CVPS ranked first in several categories
in a survey conducted by ].D. Power
and Associates. For overall customer
satisfaction, CVPS ranked in the top
third of utilities in the East Region,
more than 40 peints above the re-
gional average. We ranked first among
similarly sized utilities in the Northeast for price
and value, company image, billing and payment. Meanwhile,
for the third straight year, CVPS met or exceeded all 17 of its
SERVE standards, which measure service quality and reliability.

We will continue to improve customer service, and are using
technology to aid in this pursuit. We recently installed Resources
on Demand, a computer system that will help effectively organize
crew and equipment allocations, determine personned availability,
and improve the assignment process during storms. We have also
made improvements to our Integrated Voice Response system that
provides customers reporting an outage with restoration informa-
tion, specific to their (own, The feature is available by phone or
ow-line.

March 16

Damage assessment begins

i?"u%‘ March 17

nwior

Help arrives from over
100 contract crews



Ili'nproving Financial Strength for Superior Customer Service

The key 1o continuing this level of service is financial strength.
CVPS’s credit rating remains below investment grade, but we are
making solid progress toward regaining an investment-grade rating.

J] In 2007, we filed and settled a rate case with the Depariment
ofi Public Service, which increased rates 2.3 percent. This settle-
lIl;Cllt was approved by the Vermont Public Service Board for rates
effective Feb. 1, 2008. Despite the increase, CVPS still has among
the lowest rates of major utilities in New England. Since 1999, our
ra"tes have risen only 5.9 percent. During the same period, the
Consumer Price Index increased 21 percent, while the CPI for
energy rose almost 85 percent.

CVPS also filed an alternative regulation plan proposal with the

Public Service Board, which includes a fuel adjustment mechanism
i . .

and other incentives to encourage further cost controls and effi-

% Shared Vision for Vermont’s

There is a lot riding on our ability to prepare well for Vermont’s
clectric future. As in other states, Vermont's economy, environment
and social underpinnings are linked w a robust energy industry.
The collective decisions we make in the next few years will deter-
mine our state’s electric future for decades to come, so we are tak-
ing deliberate steps o ensure everyone has a voice in the process.

f In 2006, we launched a unique public outreach process in which
ilflterested citizens weighed in on southern Vermont transmission
constraints. This process continued last vear, when we made a for-
mal filing with the Public Service Board, relying heavily on public
ihput. For the first ime ever, we proposed to solve transmission
x?eeds with a combination of system upgrades and non-transmission
alternatives, including energy efficiency measures, new generation,
;ind voltage support devices known as synchronous condensers,

I . . e . . . .
print of any electric utility in the nation. However, sharp increases in

Today, our power portfolio has arguably the lowest carbon foot-

i;iJel prices, the scheduled expiration of o longterm power contracts
(beginning in 2012), and increasing electricity demands have given all
Vermonters a stake in our energy future. In 2007, we supported a public
engagement process lead by the Deparament of Public Serviee 1o gather

March 16-19
Customers seek
shelter

March 16-20

ciencies. We expect the PSB to rule on this plan later this year.

Our focus on capital improvemenis goes hand in hand with our
ability to maintain superior customer service, In 2007, our capital
spending was $28 million. Aging infrastructure and future invest-
ment in Automated Meter Infrastructure will require us to main-
tain an enhanced level of capital spending for the next several years
to ensure high relizbility. In 2008, this figure will rise to $41 million
due o installation of new voltage support equipment in southern
Vermont,

At year end, we also made an equity investment of $533 million
in VELCO's transmission projects. Our ongoing investments in
VELCO not only provide a return 1o our business, but will help
ensure the backbone of Vermont's electric system has adequate
capacity and reliability to meet growing demand.

Electric Future

public insights about the compaosition of owr future power porifolio.

This initiative is complemented by a feasibility study, commissioned
by CVPS and other utilitics, simed at learning which types of new gen-
eration could be permitted and constructed in Vermont. Preliminary
results indicate that coal and nuclear are not likely to be feasible, Fur-
ther study will focus on trangmission and permitting constraints to de-
termine which generation rypés wotlld be publicly acceptable in Ver
mont, and have the greatest likelihood of being built.

While we assess new options, we are also seeking to negoti-
ate new power contracts with Hydro-Quebec and Vermont Yankee
while diversifying our power portfolio, which has relied heavily on
these two generation sources.

We are using the knowledge and experience gained over seven
decades in Yermont to work with our environment, rather than
againstit. The forces of nature are mighty, but by adapting to them
— observing, learning and planning — we will respond quickly
when necded and provide the best service, technology and power
mix at a reasonable cost to customers. It's an exciting challenge,
one that is inspiring and energizing CVPS in every way.

March 20
State, local
officials
express pride,
gratitude for
CVPS efforts
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March 17-20
Communities pull
- ™' ' tbgether to clean up

'

CVPS broadcasts - . March 16720
repair progress and . Companywide
safety information y effort supports
through media f storm workers

Phatos courtesy of
Rutland Herald




Being Green is the Right Way to Work

By keeping a focus on our environment, the forces of nature
will remain a primary consideration in our business operations in
the years ahead. We view proper stewardship of the environment
as not only the right thing to do, but also the right way to manage
our business and help our state grow and prosper. Though we are
one of the smallest publicly owned ulility Companics, we dare an
industry leader in making “green” techniques and technologies
practical and accessible.

In just three years, CVPS Cow Power™ has become our
most recognizable environmental program, and something of a
legend in Vermont. CVPS Cow Power™ helps farmns develop on-site
methane  generation
CVPS custom-
ers can choose to pay a
4cent/kWh premium
on some or all of the

systems.

power they con- /
sume, which is
in turn used to
Cow
Power-produc-

SLlppO 1

ing farms. In
2007, two more

Vermont (o learn how the cars function with real-world use in
severe northern climates,

Our environmental commitment includes pledging 1o
extend our participation in the Chicago Climate Exchange®. We
successfully reduced CVPS greenhouse gas emissions 4 percent
below a baseline average set between 1998 and 2001, and we will

continue our participation through 2010.

Environmental responsibility is a daily focus in operations, too.
Our comprehensive vegetation management program relies
on science to minimize environmental impacts and costs.
Our certified utility arborists administer a complex plan thatencour-
ages growth of short tree and
plant species in our rights-of-
way. Over time, they crowd
out taller plants that threaten
our lines, minimizing the
need for cutting, mowing and
herbicide application. This
plan has also nurtured sus-
tainable habitat for wildlife.
Deer, turkeys, black bears,
and a variety of songbird
species take sheler and feed

farms joined the
program, for \
a total of four
farms  genecrating
5.8 million kWh of CVPS CowPower™ annually. Cow Power has
received national attention as one of the nation’s fastestgrowing
renewable choice programs and was recently named a Top Renew-
able Plant by Power Magazine for 2007,

In April, we launched CVPS plug ‘n go™, the nation’s first
program to offer customers with plug-in hybrid electric vehicles
the ability to recharge their vehicles’ batteries at an off-peak rate.
Through plug ‘n go, customers can pay the equivalent of less than
$1 per gallon of gasoline when “plugging in” at off-peak rates,
saving them money and improving the environment as our low-
carbon electricity reduces tailpipe emissions.

CVPS has purchased and converted three hybrid electric cars,
adding an on-board battery and a plug for recharging. We are

partnering with Green Mountain College and the University of

CVPS Renewable Energy Frogram Manager David Dunn discusses
Cow Power generation with Amanda and Mark St. Pierre, oumers of
Pleasant Valley Farm, a CVPS CowPower™ producer.

from the variety of plants
and trees populating our
rights-of-way.
have been documented by

These areas

Vermont wildlife biologists as among the only locations in our
state where certain endangered plants, wees and animals can
be found.

Mother Nature, in turn, provides some of our cleanest,
cheapest energy. CVPS owns and operates 20 hydro facilities
throughout Vermont. Together, these plants generated 181,000
megawatt-hours in 2007 — nearly 6 percent of our power mix. The
oldest of these plants came on-line in 1894, and their operation
stabilize our electric in constrained

continues to syslem

areas while providing a low-cost renewable resource,

Together, environmentally sound business practices like
these and innovative customer programs will ensure we remain
leaders in creating an environmentally aware and responsible
future for Vermont.
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CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information
Statements contained in this report that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the 'safe-
harbor' provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Whenever used in this report, the words
"estimate,” "expect,” "believe," or similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements involve estimates, assumptions, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or outcomes to
differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Actual results will depend upon, among other
things:

® the actions of regulatory bodies with respect to allowed rates of return, continued recovery of regulatory assets and

proposed alternative regulations;

® performance and continued operation of the Vermont Yankee nuclear power plant;

= effects of and changes in weather and economic conditions,
volatility in wholesale power markets;
ability to maintain or improve our current credit ratings;
the operations of ISO-New England,;
changes in the cost or availability of capital;
changes in financial or regulatory accounting principles or policies imposed by governing bodies;
capital market conditions, including price risk due to marketable securities held as investments in trust for nuclear
decommissioning, pension and postretirement medical plans;
changes in the levels and timing of capital expenditures, including our discretionary future investments in Transco;

®  our ability to replace or renegotiate our long-term power supply contracts;

®  our ability to replace a mature workforce and retain qualified, skilled and experienced personnel;

® and other presently unknown or unforeseen factors.
We cannot predict the outcome of any of these matters; accordingly, there can be no assurance as to actual results. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise,

PARTI
Item 1. Business

{(a) General Description of Business
Central Vermont Public Service Corporation (the "company" or "we" or "our" or "us"), incorporated under the laws of
Vermont on August 20, 1929, is engaged in the purchase, production, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity, We
are the largest electric utility in Vermont, serving about 158,000 retail customers in nearly two-thirds of the towns, villages
and cities in Vermont. Qur wholly owned subsidiaries include:
® Custom Investment Corporation ("Custom"), which was formed for the purpose of holding passive investments,
including the stock of our subsidiaries that invest in regulated business opportunities. On October 13, 2003, we
transferred our shares of Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation ("VYNPC") to Custom. The transfer to Custom
does not affect our rights and obligations related to VYNPC.
® (C.V.Realty, Inc., a real estate company that owns, buys, sells and leases real and personal property and interests therein
related to the utility business.
® CVPSC - East Barnet Hydroelectric, Inc. was created for the purpose of financing and constructing a hydreelectric
facility in Vermont, and became operational September 1, 1984. We have leased and operated it since the in-service
date.
® Catamount Resources Corporation ("CRC") formed for the purpose of holding our subsidiaries that invest in unregulated
business opportunities. CRC has a wholly owned subsidiary, Eversant Corporation, which engages in the sale or rental
of electric water heaters in Vermont and New Hampshire through a wholly owned subsidiary, SmartEnergy Water
Heating Services, Inc. CRC had a wholly owned subsidiary, Catamount Energy Corporation ("Catamount”), which
invested primarily in wind energy in the United States and the United Kingdom. In December 2005, CRC completed the
sale of all of its interest in Catamount to CEC Wind Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company established
by Diamond Castle Holdings.
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®| In 2007, we dissolved our wholly owned subsidiary Connecticut Valley Electric Company, Inc. ("Connecticut Vailey"),
which had been incorporated under the laws of New Hampshire on December 9, 1948. Connecticut Valley distributed
and sold electricity in parts of New Hampshire bordering the Connecticut River, until January 1, 2004 when it completed

’ the sale of substantially all of its plant assets and its franchise to Public Service Company of New Hampshire.
® Qur equity ownership interests as of December 31, 2007 are summarized below. These are also described in more detail
i in Part II, Item 8, Note 3 - Investments in Affiliates.

" We own 58.85 percent of the common stock of VYNPC, which was initially formed by a group of New England utilities

to build and operate a nuclear-powered generating plant in Vernon, Vermont. On July 31, 2002, VYNPC sold the plant

to Entergy Nuclear Vermont Yankee, LLC ("ENVY"). The sale agreement included a purchased power contract

("PPA") between VYNPC and ENVY. Under the PPA, VYNPC pays ENVY for generation at fixed rates, and in turn,

bills the PPA charges from ENVY with certain residual costs of service through a FERC tariff to us and the other

VYNPC sponsors.

®  We own 47.05 percent of the common stock and 48.03 percent of the preferred stock of Vermont Electric Power

Company, Inc. ("VELCQO"), which owned the high-voltage transmission system in Vermont. In June 2006, VELCO

| transferred substantially all of its business operations and assets to Vermont Transco LLC ("Transco"). VELCO has a
12.52 percent equity interest in Transco and manages the operations of Transco under a Management Services
Agreement. VELCO's wholly owned subsidiary, Vermont Electric Transmission Company, Inc. was formed to finance,

| construct and operate the Vermont portion of the 450 kV DC transmission line connecting the Province of Quebec with
Vermont and New England.

8 We own 39.79 percent of Class A Units of Transco, which was formed by VELCO and its owners in June 2006, Transco

’ owns and operates the high-voltage transmission system in Vermont. Our total direct and indirect interest in Transco is

' 45.68 percent.

= We own 2 percent of the outstanding common stock of Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company ("Maine Yankee"), 2

percent of the outstanding common stock of Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company ("Connecticut Yankee") and

3.5 percent of the outstanding common stock of Yankee Atomic Electric Company ("Yankee Atomic"}. All of the plants

have been permanently shut down and have completed decommissioning.

We also own small generating facilities and have joint ownership interests in certain generating facilities. These are
described in Sources and Availability of Power Supply below.

(?}) Financial Information about Industry Segments
Qur two principal operating segments are the regulated utility business and the aggrepate of the other companies. See Part [1
Item 8, Note 17 - Segment Reporting for financial information regarding those operating segments.

(c) Narrative Description of Business

l:’rincipal Products and Services

Our operating revenues consist primarily of retail and resale sales. Retail sales are comprised of sales to a diversified
céustomer mix including residential, commercial and industrial customers. Sales to the five largest retail customers receiving
électric service accounted for about 6 percent of our annual retail electric revenues for 2007, 2006 and 2005. Resale sales are
nl“,omprised of long-term sales to third parties in New England, sales in the energy markets administered by 180-New England
and short-term system capacity sales. Our operating revenues and energy sales as of December 31 consisted of the following:

: Revenue mWh Sales
| 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Retail Sales:

Residential 41% 38% 41% 33% 29% 33%

Commercial 33% 32% 33% 29% 27% 31%
i Industrial and other 11% 12% 12% 14% 13% 14%
Resale Sales 12% 16% 13% 24% 31% 22%
Customer refund - - (2%) - - -
Other operating revenue 3% 2% 3% - - -

I

Retail Rates Our retail rates are set by the Vermont Public Service Board ("PSB") after considering the recommendations of
Vermont's consumer advocate, the Vermont Department of Public Service ("DPS"). While our retail rates do not include fuel
or power cost adjustment mechanisms, the PSB has previously approved the deferral of extraordinary costs incurred that
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might nermally be expensed by unregulated businesses in order to match these expenses with future revenues. Fair
regulatory treatment is fundamental to maintaining our financial stability. Rates must be set at levels to recover costs,
including a market rate of return to equity and debt holders, in order to attract capital.

Our retail rates at December 31, 2007 were based on a December 7, 2006 PSB Order that provided for, among other things, a
4.07 percent rate increase effective January 1, 2007, and an allowed rate of return on common equity of 10.75 percent capped
until our next rate proceeding.

On May 15, 2007, we filed a request for a retail rate increase of 4.46 percent, or $12.4 million in annual revenues, based on
the 2006 calendar year. On November 21, 2007, we reached a settlement with the DPS in the case, agreeing to a 2.3 percent
rate increase, or additional revenue of $6.4 million on an annual basis, effective with bills rendered on or after February 1,
2008. The agreement allows us a rate of return on common equity of 10.71 percent, capped until our next rate proceeding or
approval of an alternative regulation plan, On January 31, 2008, the PSB issued an Order approving the settlement
agreement with the rate increase effective February 1, 2008,

Wholesale Rates We provide wholesale transmission service to nine network customers and six point-to-point customers
under [SO-New England FERC Electric Tariff No. 3, Section II - Open Access Transmission Tariff (Schedules 21-CV and
20A-CV). We also provide wholesale transmission service to one network customer under a FERC rate schedule. We
maintain an OASIS site for transmission on the [SO-New England web page.

Sources and Availability of Power Supply

Far the year ended December 31, 2007 our energy generation and purchased power required to serve retail and firm
wholesale customers was 2,487,279 mWh. The maximum one-hour integrated demand during that period was 420.6 MW
and occurred on August 3, 2007. For 2006, our energy generation and purchased power required to serve retail and firm
wholesale customers was 2,461,444 mWh. The maximum one-hour integrated demand was 437.6 MW and occurred on
August 2, 2006. The sources of energy and capacity available to us for the year ended December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Net Effective Capability
12 Month Average Generated and Purchased
MW mWh Percent

Wholly Qwned Plants:

Hydro 41.1 181,360 58

Diesel and Gas Turbine 259 637 -
Jointly Owned Plants:

Millstone #3 19.9 150,525 4.8

Wyman #4 10.7 5,470 0.2

McNeil 10.7 56,597 1.8
Long-Term Purchases:

VYNPC 179.6 1,361,754 43.2

Hydro-Quebec 143.2 998,411 31.7

Independent power producers 346 176,169 53
Other Purchases:

System and other purchases 0.4 128,269 4.1

NEPQOL (ISO-New England) _ - 90,917 29
Total 466.1 3,150,109 100.0

Wholly Owned Plants: Our wholly owned plants are located in Vermont, and have a combined nameplate capacity of about
74.2 MW. We operate all of these piants, which include: 1} 20 hydroelectric generating facilities with nameplate capacities
ranging from a low of 0.3 MW to a high of 7.5 MW, for an aggregate nameplate capacity of 45.3 MW; 2) two oil-fired gas
turbines with a combined nameplate capacity of 26.5 MW; and 3) one diesel peaking unit with a nameplate capacity of 2.4
MW, At December 31, 2007 the diesel plant was in deactivated status though its capacity is included in the above totals.
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Jointly Owned Plants: We have joint-ownership interests in generating and transmission facilities. We are responsible for our share
of the operating expenses of these facilities. Our interests in these facilities for the year ended December 31 follows (dollars in

thci)usands):

I December 31
; Fuel Type Ownership ln-Service Date MW Entitlement 2007 2006
Wyman #4 0il 1.7769% 1978 10.8 $3,504 £3,422
Joseph C. McNeil Various 20.0000% 1984 10.8 15,587 15,555
Mi'llstone Unit #3 Nuclear 1.7303% 1986 20.0 77,349 77,162
: Highgate Transmission Facility 47.5200% 1985 N/A 14,390 14,357
- | 110,830 110,496
Less accumulated depreciation 62,233 60,986
$48,507  $49,510

faFilities. Millstone Unit #3 is a 1,155-MW nuclear generating facility, Wyman #4 is a 609-MW generating facility and
Joseph C. McNeil is a 54-MW generating facility. The Highgate Converter, a 225-MW facility, is directly connected to the
Hydro-Quebec System to the north and to the Transco system for delivery of power to Vermont utilities. This facility can
déliver power in either direction, but predominantly delivers power from Hydro-Quebec to Vermont.

|
| i
As shown in the sources and availability of power supply table above, we receive our share of output and capacity from these

Niajor Long-Term Purchases

Vermont Yankee: We purchase our entitlement share of Vermont Yankee plant output from VYNPC under the PPA between
VIYNPC and ENVY. The PPA extends through the plant’s current license life, which expires in 2012. On June 8, 2006, the
p%am received a new output rating of approximately 620 MW, a 20 percent increase in plant capacity. Our entitlement of
tcl)tal plant output was reduced from 35 percent to 29 percent in Scptember 2006 due to the uprate, but our share of plant
output is similar to the amount received before the uprate process began. Prices under the PPA range from $39 to $45 per
rrliWh. The PPA contains a provision known as the "low market adjuster" that calls for a downward adjustment in the
contract price if market prices for electricity fall by defined amounts. If market prices rise, however, PPA prices are not
adjusted upward in excess of the PPA price.

ENVY has no obligation to supply energy to VYNPC over the amount the plant is producing, so we receive reduced amounts
when the plant is operating at a reduced level, and no energy when the plant is not opcrating. We are responsible for
purchasing replacement energy at these times. The next refueling outage is scheduled for late 2008. We have entered into a
fPrward purchase contract for replacement energy during the scheduled outage. We also purchased forced outage insurance
to cover additional costs, if any, of obtaining replacement power from other sources if Vermont Yankee experiences
unplanned outages between January | and December 31, 2008.

If the Vermont Yankee plant is shut down for any reason prior to the end of its operating license, we would lose about 50
percent of our committed energy supply and would have to acquire replacement power resources for approximately 40
percent of our estimated power supply needs. We are not able to predict whether there will be an early shutdown of the
Vermont Yankee plant or whether the PSB will allow timely and full recovery of increased costs related to any such
dhutdown. An early shutdown could materially impact our financial position and future results of operations if the costs are
not recovered in retail rates in a timely fashion.

Hydro—Quebec: We are purchasing power from Hydro-Quebec under the Vermont Joint Owners ("VJO") Power Contract.
The VJO is a group of Vermont electric companies, municipal utilities and cooperatives of which we are a member. The
VIO Power Contract has been in place since 1987 and purchases under the contract began in 1990. Subsequently, we
negotiated related contracts with Hydro-Quebec that altered the terms and conditions contained in the original contract by
reducing the overall power requirements and related costs. The VJO contract runs through 2020, but our purchases under the
"contract end in 2016. As of December 31, 2007, our obligation was about 47 percent of the total VIO Power Contract
through 2016. The average annual amount of capacity that we will purchase from January 1, 2008 through October 31, 2012
is about 144.8 MW, with lesser amounts purchased through October 31, 2016.

In the early phase of the VIO Power Contract, two sellback contracts were negotiated, the first delaying the purchase of 25
IMW of capacity and associated energy, the second reducing the net purchase of Hydro-Quebec power through 1996. In 1994,
‘we negotiated a third sellback arrangement whereby we received a reduction in capacity costs from 1995 to 1999. In
‘fexchange, Hydro-Quebec obtained two options. The first gives Hydro-Quebec the right, upon four years' written notice, to
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reduce capacity deliveries by 50 MW, including the use of a like amount of our Phase /I transmission facility rights. The
second gives Hydro-Quebec the right, upon one year's written notice, to curtail energy deliveries in a contract year (12
months beginning November 1) from an annua! capacity factor of 75 to 50 percent due to adverse hydraulic conditions as
measured at certain metering stations on unregulated rivers in Quebec. This second option can be exercised five times
through October 2015. Hydro-Quebec has not yet exercised these options.

Under the VJO Power Contract, the VJO had elections to change the annual lead factor from 75 percent to between 70 and 80
percent five times through 2020, while Hydro-Quebec had elections to reduce the load factor to not less than 65 percent three
times during the same period. Hydro-Quebec and the VJO have used all of their elections. Based on elections made by the
VJO in 2005 and 2006, purchases under the VIO Power Contract were at an 80 percent load factor for the contract years
beginning November 1, 2005 and 2006. As of November 1, 2007, the annual load factor is 75 percent for the remainder of
the contract, unless the contract is changed or there is a reduction due to the adverse hydraulic conditions described above.
We, Green Mountain Power, the Vermont Public Power Supply Authority and HQ-Production are using a steering committee
structure to develop background materials, terms and supporting actions needed in negotiations for future power purchases
from Hydro-Quebec. We believe there is a high probability that we will have a new contract with Hydro-Quebec, and we
have agreed 1o target completion of proposed draft terms by the end of 2008, with a proposed contract for review by the PSB
in 2009. We cannot predict whether a contract will ultimately be approved or, if approved, the quantities of power to be
purchased or the price terms of any purchases.

Independent Power Producers: We purchase power from several Independent Power Producers ("IPPs") who own qualifying
facilities under the Public Utilities Regulatory Policies Act of 1978. These facilities primarily use water and biomass as fuel.
Most of the power coines through a state-appointed purchasing agent that assigns power to all Vermont utilities under PSB
rules.

Other Purchases

Svstem and Other Purchases, inciuding ISO-New England: We participate in the New England regional wholesale electric
power markets operated by [SO-New England Inc., the regional bulk power transmission organization established to assure
reliable and economical power supply in New England, which is governed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
("FERC"). We also engage in short-term purchases with other third parties, primarily in New England, to minimize net
power costs and risks to our customers. We enter into forward purchase contracts when additional supply is needed and enter
into forward sale contracts when we forecast excess supply. On an hourly basis, power is sold or bought through 1ISO-New
England's settlement process to balance our resource output and load requirements.

See Part II, Item 7, Power Supply Matters and Item 8, Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies for additional information
related to our power supply and related long-term power contracts.

Franchise

Pursuant to Vermont statute (30 V.S.A. Section 249), the PSB has established the service area in which we currently operate.
Under 30 V.S.A. Section 251(b) no other company is legally entitled to serve any retail customers in our established service
area except as described below.

An amendment to 30 V.8.A. Section 212(a) enacted May 28, 1987 authorizes the DPS to purchase and distribute power at
retail to all consumers of electricity in Vermont, subject to certain preconditions specified in new sections 212(b} and 212(c).
Section 212(b) provides that a review board, consisting of the governor and certain other designated legislative officers,
review and approve any retail proposal by the DPS if the review board is satisfied that the benefits outweigh any potential
risk to the state. However, the DPS may proceed to file the retail proposal with the PSB either upon approval by the review
board or failure of the review board to act within 60 days of the submission. Section 212(c) provides that the DPS shall not
enter into any retail sales arrangement before the PSB determines that it is appropriate. The PSB assesses the following
factors in reaching its conclusion: 1) the need for the sale; 2) the rates are just and reasonable; 3) the sale will result in
economic benefit; 4) the sale will not adversely affect system stability and reliability; and 5) the sale will be in the best
interest of ratepayers.

Section 212(d) provides that upon PSB approval of a DPS retail sales request, Vermont utilities shall make arrangements for
distributing such electricity on terms and conditions that are negotiated. Failing such negotiation, the PSB is directed to
determine such terms as will compensate the utility for all costs reasonably and necessarily incurred to provide such
arrangements. Such sales have not been made in our service area since 1993,
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In addition, Chapter 79 of Title 30 authorizes municipalities to acquire the electric distribution facilities located within their
boundaries. The exercise of such authority is conditioned upon an affirmative three-fifihs vote of the legal voters in an
election and upon payment of just compensation including severance damages. Just compensation is determined either by
negotiation between the municipality and the utility or by the PSB after a hearing, if the parties fail to reach an agreement. If
either party is dissatisfied, the statute allows them to appeal the PSB's determination to the Vermont Supreme Court. Once
the price is determined, whether by agreement of the parties or by the PSB, a second affirmative three-fifths vote of the legal

vo'ters is required.

There have been two instances where Chapter 79 of Title 30 has been invoked. In one instance, the Town of Springfield
acted to acquire our distribution facilities in that community pursuant to a vote in 1977; that action was discontinued in 1985.
The other instance, which occurred in 2002, involved the Town of Rockingham, which voted to pursue purchase of our
distribution facilities, Green Mountain Power's distribution facilities, and another party's hydroelectric facility located in
Bellows Falls. We refused to voluntarily sell our distribution facilities. In November 2003, we were notified that
Rockingham intended to obtain our facilities by eminent domain under Title 24 V.S.A. Section 2805. We opposed this action
as being contrary to Title 30, and in December 2003 obtained a permanent injunction from the Superior Court prohibiting
R;ockingham from pursuing this course of action. If Rockingham decides to continue this action in the future, it must proceed
with the PSB under Title 30. After its option to purchase the Bellows Falls hydroelectric facility expired in 2005,
Rockingham discontinued its efforts to acquire our distribution facilities.

Rlegulation

Sfate Commissions: As described above we are subject to the regulatory authority of the PSB with respect to rates and terms
of service. Along with VELCO and Transco, we are subject to PSB jurisdiction related to securities issuances, planning and
c:onstruction of major generation and transmission facilities and various other matters. Additionally, the Maine Public
Utilities Commission exercises limited jurisdiction over us based on our joint-ownership interest as a tenant-in-common of
VIVyman #4_ and the Connecticut Department of Public Utility Control has similar jurisdiction based on our interest in
Millstone Unit #3.

F
Federal Power Act: Certain phases of our business and that of Transco, including certain rates, are subject to the FERC. We

are a licensee of hydroelectric developments under Part I of the Federal Power Act, and along with Transco, we are interstate
public utilities under Parts 11 and III, as amended and supplemented by the National Energy Act. We are in the process of
licensing two separate hydro-projects under the Federal Power Act. These projects represent about 4.1 MW, or 9 percent of
our hydroelectric nameplate capacity. We obtained exemptions from licensing for the Bradford and East Barnet projects.

Federal Energy Policy Act of 2005: The Federal Energy Policy Act of 2005 includes numerous provisions meant to increase
domestic gas and oil supplies, improve energy system reliability, build new nuclear power plants, and expand renewable
energy sources. It also repealed the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, effective February 2006. By reason of our
ownership of utility subsidiaries, we are a holding company, as defined in this act. We have received a blanket exemption
from the FERC to acquire securities of Transco, which previously required FERC approval.

!Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"): The nuclear generating facilities in which we have an interest are subject to
extensive regulation by the NRC. The NRC is empowered to regulate siting, construction and operation of nuclear reactors
IWith respect to public health, safety, environmental and antitrust matters. Under its continuing jurisdiction, the NRC may
‘require modification of units for which operating licenses have already been issued, or impose new conditions on such
licenses, or require that the operation of a unit cease or that the level of operation of a unit be temporarily or permanently
reduced.

!Competitive Conditions

Competition currently takes several forms. At the wholesale level, New England has implemented its version of FERC's
“"standard market design" ("SMD"), which is a detailed competitive market framework that has resulted in bid-based
|competition of power suppliers rather than prices set under cost-of-service regulation. Similar versions of SMD have been
'implemcnted in New York and a large abutting multi-state region referred to as PJM. At the retail level, customers have long
' had energy options. Another competitive threat is the potential for customers to form municipally owned utilities in our

i service territory.

| Competition in the energy services market exists between electricity and fossil fuels. In the residential and small commercial
sectors, this competition is primarily for electric space and water heating from propane and oil dealers. Competitive issues
| are price, service, convenience, cleanliness, automatic delivery and safety.
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In the large commercial and industrial sectors, cogeneration and self-generation are the major competitive threats to network
electric sales. Competitive risks in these market segments are primarily related to seasonal, one-shift milling operations that
can tolerate periodic power outages common to such forms of cogeneration or self-generation, and for industrial or
institutional customers with steady heat loads where the generator's waste heat can be used in their manufacturing or space
conditioning processes. Competitive advantages for electricity in those segments are: cost stability; convenience; cost of
back-up power sources or alternatively, reliability; space requirements; noise problems; air emission and site permit issues;
and maintenance requirements. However, there may be some circumstances where cogeneration could provide benefits to us
in constrained areas of our system.

Envirenmental Matters

We are subject to environmental regulations in the licensing and operation of the generation, transmission, and distribution
facilities in which we have an interest, as well as the licensing and operation of the facilities in which we are a co-licensee.
These environmental regulations are administered by local, state and federal regulatory authorities and may impact our
generation, transmission, distribution, transportation and waste handling facilities on air, water, land and aesthetic qualities.

We cannot presently forecast the costs or other effects that environmental regulation may ultimately have on our existing and
proposed facilitics and operations. We belicve that any such prudently incurred costs related to our utility operations would
be recoverable through the ratemaking process. For additional information see Part II, Item 8, Note 16 - Commitments and
Contingencies.

Seasonal Nature of Business

Our kilowatt-hour sales and revenues are typically higher in the winter and summer than in the spring and fall, as sales tend
to vary with weather. Ski area and other winter-related recreational activities along with associated lodging, longer hours of
darkness and heating loads from cold weather contribute to higher saltes in the winter, while air conditioning generates higher
sales in the summer. Consumption is least in the spring and fall, when there is decreased heating or cooling load.

Capital Expenditures

Our business is capital-intensive and requires annual construction expenditures to maintain the distribution system, Capital
expenditures for the next five years are expected to range from $31.0 million to $56.0 million annually. These are subject to
continuing review and adjustment and actual capital expenditures and timing may vary. Also see Part II, Item 7, Liquidity,
Capital Resources and Commitments.

Number of Employees

Local Union No. 300, affiliated with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, represent our operating and
maintenance employees. On December 31, 2007 we had 552 employees, of which 220 are represented by the union. On
December 29, 2004, we agreed with our empioyees represented by the union to a new four-year contract, which expires on
December 31, 2008.

Executive Officers of Registrant
The foliowing sets forth the executive officers. There are no family relationships among the executive officers. The term of
each officer is for one year or until a successor is elected. Officers are normaily elected annually.

Name and Age Office Officer Since
Robert H. Young, 60 President and chief executive officer 1987
William J. Dechan, 55 Vice president - power planning and regulatory affairs 1991
Brian P. Keefe, 50 Vice president - government and public affairs 2006
Pamela J. Keefe, 42 Vice president, chief financial officer, and treasurer 2006
Joan F. Gamble, 50 Vice president - sirategic change and business services 1998
Joseph M. Kraus, 52 Senior vice president - operations, engineering and customer service 1987
Dale A. Rocheleau, 49 Senior vice president, general counsel and corporate secretary 2003
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ML, Young joined the company in 1987 and was elected to his present position in 1995. Mr. Young also serves as president,
CEO, and chair of our subsidiaries: CVPSC - East Barnet Hydroelectric, Inc.; C.V. Realty, Inc.; Custom; CRC; Eversant
Corporation; and, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. He serves as chalr of the board of directors of our affiliates:
VYNPC and The Home Service Store, Inc. He is also director of our affiliates; VELCO, and Vermont Electric Transmission
Company, Inc. Mr. Young is director of the Edison Electric Institute, Inc., Chittenden Trust Company, University of
Vermont, Vermont Business Roundtable, Associated Industries of Vermont, and the Weston Playhouse Theatre Company.

Mx_'r. Dechan joined the company in 1985 with nine years of utility regulation and related research experience. Mr. Deehan
wis elected to his present position in May 2001.

ME. Gamble joined the company in 1989 with 10 years of electric utility and related consulting experience. Ms. Gamble was
elécted to her present position in August 2001. Ms. Gamble also serves as vice president - strategic change and business
services for our subsidiary: Eversant Corporation. She serves as a director for our subsidiaries: Eversant Corporation and
SrhartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc.

Mr Keefe joined the company in December 2006. Prior to being elected to his present position he served as vice president
for govemmental affairs from December 2006 to September 2007, Prior to joining the company, from 2000 to 2006, he
served as a senior aide to U.S. Senator James M. Jeffords, focusing on energy, environment and economic development
issues, and serving as liaison between Vermont constituents and Washington, D.C. policymakers.

Ms Keefe joined the company in June 2006. Prior to joining the company, from 2003 to 2006, she served as senior director
of financial strategy and assistant treasurer of IDX Systems Corporation ("IDX"}; from 1999 to 2003 she served as director of
ﬁnanc1al planning and analysis and assistant treasurer at IDX. Ms. Keefe serves as director, vice president, chief financial
ofﬁcer and treasurer of our subsidiaries; CVPSC - East Barnet Hydroelectric, Inc.; C.V. Realty, Inc.; Custom; CRC;

Eversant Corporation; and, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. She also serves as a director of our affiliate, VYNPC.

Mr Kraus joined the company in 1981, Prior to being elected to his present position he served as senior vice president
engineering and operations, general counsel, and secretary from May 2003 until November 2003. Mr. Kraus serves as
dlrector of our subsidiaries: CVPSC - East Barnet Hydroelectric, Inc.; C.V. Realty, Inc.; Custom; CRC; Eversant
QOmomtlon and, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc.

Mr Rocheleau joined the company in November 2003. Prior to being elected to his present position he served as senior vice
presndent for legal and public affairs, and corporate secretary from November 2003 to September 2007. Prior to joining the
company, he served as director and attorney at law from 1992 to 2003 with Downs Rachlin Martin, PLLC. Mr. Rocheleau
serves as director, senior vice president, general counsel and corporate secretary of our subsidiaries: CVPSC - East Barnet
Hydroelectrlc Inc.; C.V. Realty, Inc.; Custom; CRC; Eversant Corporation; and SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc.

Energy Conservation and Lead Management

The primary purpose of Conservation and Load Management programs is to offset need for long-term power supply and
(Iiellvery resources that are more expensive to purchase or develop than customer-efficiency programs, including unpriced
f‘:xtemal factors such as emissions and economic risk. The Vermont Energy Efficiency Utility ("EEU"), created by the state
of Vermont, began operation in January 2000. We have a continuing obligation to provide customer information and
teferrals, and coordination of customer service, power quality, and any other distribution utility functions, which may
}nlersect with the EEU's activities.

:We have retained the obligation to provide demand side management programs targeted at deferral of our transmission and
distribution projects, as identified in Distributed Utility Planning ("DUP"). DUP is designed to ensure that safe, reliable
delivery services are provided at least cost. The PSB recently approved a similar process for the bulk transmission lines and
Transco. The PSB appointed three members of the public, along with representatives of the state's utilities, including us, to
the newly created Vermont State Planning Committee to oversee that process. The Vermont Legislature, in 2006, also gave
Efficiency Vermont authority to target the delivery of energy efficiency to specific geographic areas to defer transmission and
idistribution upgrades. This process began for the first time in 2007,

Unregulated Businesses

\CRC's wholly owned subsidiary, Eversant Corporation, engages in the sale or rental of electric water heaters through a
wwholly owned subsidiary, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. to customers in Vermont and New Hampshire.

|
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Recent Energy Policy Initiatives

Several laws have been passed since 2005 that impact electric utilities in Vermont. While provisions of recently passed laws
are now being implemented, there is continued interest in new policies designed to reduce electricity consumption, promote
renewable energy and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. We continue to monitor regional and federal proposals that may
have an tmpact on our operations. See Part II, Item 7 - Recent Energy Policy Initiatives,

(d) Financial Information about Geographic Areas
We and our subsidiaries do not have any foreign operations or export sales.

(e} Available Information

We make available free of charge through the Internet Website, www.cvps.com, the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after
clectronically filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Access to the reports is available from the main
page of the Internet Website through "Investor Relations.” Qur Corporate Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy, Corporate
Governance Guidelines, and Charters of the Audit, Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees are also available
on the Internet Website. Access to these documents is available from the main page of our Internet Website under "About
us" and then "Corporate Governance." Printed copies of these documents are also available upon written request to the
Assistant Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices. Qur reports, proxy, information statements and other
information are also available by accessing the SEC's Internet Website, www.sec.gov, or at the SEC's Public Reference Room
at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information regarding operation of the Public Reference Room is available
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Item 1A, Risk Factors

We operate in a market and regulatory environment that involves significant risks, many of which are beyond our control,
cannot be limited cost-effectively or may occur despite our risk-mitigation strategies. Each of the following risks could have
a material effect on our performance.

Changes in regulatory or legislative policy could jeopardize our full recovery of costs; Under state law, we are entitled to
charge rates that are sufficient to allow us an opportunity to recover reasonable operation and capital costs and a return on
investment to attract needed capital and maintain our financial integrity, while also protecting relevant public interests, We
prepare and submit periodic filings with the DPS for review and with the PSB for review and approval. The PSB may not
approve the recovery of all costs incurred for the operation, maintenance, and construction of our regulated assets, as well as
a return on investment. Increases in these costs, coupled with increases in energy prices, could lead to consumer or
regulatory resistance to the timely recovery of such incurred costs, thereby adversely affecting our business and results of
aperations.

Risks related to liquidity: We have a six-month unsecured term note in the principal amount of $53.0 million with a major
lending institution. The loan is payable June 30, 2008 and currently carries an adjustable borrowing rate. Pursuant to a
commitment from the lending institution dated February 11, 2008, we have the sole option to extend the maturity of the term
note to March 31, 2009. We used the proceeds from this note to acquire additional equity membership interests in Transco.
There is a possibility that available capital may be too expensive to pursue further investments in Transco, in which we hope
to maintain an equity ownership approxitnately equal to our foad share. We may issue both debt and equity in 2008. There is
a risk that the resulting cost of capital may negatively affect our results of operations. Further liquidity risk exists with our
$46.0 million capital expenditure program budgeted for 2008. We currently have a $25.0 million credit facility to provide
liquidity for general corporate purposes, including working capital needs and power contract performance assurance
requirements in the form of funds borrowed and fetters of credit. If we are unable to secure the necessary funding, we will
need to review our corporate goals in response to this financial limitation. Other material risks to cash flow from operations
include: loss of retail sales revenue from unusual weather; slower-than-anticipated load growth and unfavorable economic
conditions; increases in net power costs largely due to lower-than-anticipated margins on sales revenue from excess power or
an unexpected power source interruption; required prepayments for power purchases; and increases in performance assurance
requiremnents described above, primarily as a result of high power market prices.

Qur ability to access capital markets at attractive interest rates is important: We rely on access to capital markets as a
significant source of liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by operating cash flows. Qur business is capital intensive
and we are dependent on our ability to access capital at rates and on terms we determine to be attractive. Heightened
concerns about the energy industry, the level of borrowing by other energy companies and the market as a whole could limit
our access to capital markets. If our ability to access capital becomes significantly constrained, our interest costs will likety
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increase and our financial condition could be harmed, and future results of operations could be adversely affected.

Risks related to our power supply and wholesale power market prices: Our material power supply contracts are principally
with Hydro-Quebec and VYNPC. The power supply contracts with VYNPC and Hydro-Quebec comprise the majority of our
total annual energy (mWh) purchases If one or both of these sources become unavailable for a period of time, there could be
exposure to high wholesale power prices and that amount could be material. Additionally, this could significantly impact
liquidity due to the potentially high cost of replacement power and performance assurarce collateral requirements arising
from purchases through 1ISO-New England or third parties. We could seek emergency rate relief from our regulators if this
were to occur.

Qur contract for power purchases from VYNPC ends in 2012, but there is a risk that the plant could be shut down earlier than
expected if ENVY determines that it is not economical to continue operating the plant. Deliveries under the contract with
Hydro-Quebec end in 2016, but the level of deliveries begin to decrease after 2012. There is a risk that future sources
avallable to replace these contracts may not be as reliable and the price of such replacement power could be significantly
hlgher than what we have in place today.

An inability to return our corporate credit rating to investment grade: In June 2005, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services
("S&P") lowered our corporate credit rating to below investment grade. We believe that restoration of our credit rating is
cntxcal to our long-term success. While our credit rating remains below investment grade, the cost of capital, which is
ullnmately passed on to our customers, will be greater than it otherwise would be. That, combined with other collateral
requirements from creditors and for power purchases and sales, makes restoration of our credit rating critical. Looking
ahead as long-term power contracts with Hydro-Quebec and VYNPC begin to expire four to five years from now, these
ratmgs become even more important. Access to needed capital is also more of a concern as a non-investment grade
cclrmpany, particularly in the current U.S. credit environment.

AFtive employee and retiree healthcare and pension costs are a significant part of our cost structure. The costs associated
with healthcare or pension obligations could escalate at rates higher than anticipated, vhich could adversely affect our results
of operations and cash flows.

l

Risk of adverse weather events: We serve a largely rural, rugged service territory with dense forestation that is subject to
extreme weather. Our results of operations can be affected by changes in weather, Severe weather such as ice and snow
storms, high winds and other natural disasters may cause outages and property damage that may require us to incur additional
cbsts that are generally not insured and that may not be recoverable from customers. The effect of the failure of our facilities
10 operate as planned under these conditions would be particularly burdensome during a peak demand period. We typically
receive the five-year average of storm restoration costs in our rates, but unexpected storms or extraordinarily severe weather
can dramatically increase costs, with a significant lag before recovery begins. Given the small size of the company, these
weather events could have a material impact on our financial condition. Weather conditions directly influence the demand
f?r electricity.

Risks related to the regional and national economic conditions can have an unfavorable impact on us. Our business follows
the economic cycles of the customers we serve. An economic downturn and increased cost of energy supply could adversely
a;ffect energy consumption and therefore impact our results of operations. Economic downturns or periods of high energy
supply costs typically lead to reductions in energy consumption and increased conservation measures. These conditions
could adversely impact the level of energy sales and result in less demand for energy delivery. Economic conditions in our
service territory also impact our collections of accounts receivable and financial results.

TF"he loss of key personnel or the inability to hire and retain qualified employees could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Our operations depend on the continued efforts of our employees. Retaining
key employees and maintaining the ability to attract new employees are important to both our operational and financial
performance. A significant portion of our workforce, including many workers with specialized skills maintaining and
servicing the electrical infrastructure, will be eligible to retire over the next five to 10 years. Also, members of our
management or key employees may leave the company unexpectedly. Such highly skilled individuals and institutional
knowledge cannot be quickly replaced due to the technically complex work they perform.

Cash flow risk and capital distributions from our affiliates. Transco's ability to pay distributions will be subject to its
'ﬁnancial condition and financial covenants in the various loan documents to which it is subject. Although Transco is a
regulated business, Transco may not always have the resources needed to pay distributions with respect to the units in the
same manner as VELCO has paid in the past.
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Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

Our properties are operated as a single system that is interconnected by the transmission lines of Transco, New England
Power and Public Service Company of New Hampshire. We own and operate 23 small generating stations in Vermont with a
total current nameplate capability of 74.2 MW. Our joint ownership interests include: a 1.7769 percent interest in an oil-
generating plant in Maine; a 20 percent interest in a wood-, gas- and oif-fired generating plant in Vermont; a 1.7303 percent
interest in a nuclear generating plant in Connecticut; and a 47.52 percent interest in a transmission interconnection facility in
Vermont. Additional information with respect to our properties is set forth under Part I, [tem 1, Sources and Availability of
Power Supply and is incorporated herein by reference.

Qur electric transmission and distribution systems include about 617 miles of overhead transrnission lines, about 8,367 miles
of overhead distribution lines and about 439 miles of underground distribution lines, all of which are located in Vermont
except for about 23 miles in New Hampshire and about 2 miles in New York.

We hold in fee all of our principal plants and important units, including those of our consolidated subsidiaries. Transmission
and distribution facilities that are not located in or over public highways are, with minor exceptions, located on land owned in
fee or pursuant to easements, most of which are perpetual. Transmission and distribution lines located in or over public
highways are so located pursuant to authority conferred on public utilities by statute, subject to regulation of state or
municipal authorities.

Substantially all of our utility property and plant is subject to liens under the First Mortgage Indenture.

Transco's properties consist of about 610 miles of high-voltage overhead and underground transmission lines and associated
substations. The lines connect on the west with the lines of Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation at the Vermont-New York
state line near Whitehall, New York, and Bennington, Vermont, and with the submarine cable of NYPA near Plattsburgh,
New York; on the south and east with the lines of New England Power Company and PSNH; on the south with the facilities
of Vermont Yankee; and on the northern border of Vermont with the lines of Hydro-Quebec near Derby, Vermont and
through the Highgate converter station and tie line that we jointly own with several other Vermont utilities.

VELCO's wholly owned subsidiary, Vermont Electric Transmission Company, Inc. has about 52 miles of high-voltage DC
transmission line connecting with the transmission line of Hydro-Quebec at the Quebec-Vermont border in the Town of
Norton, Vermont; and connecting with the transmission line of New England Electric Transmission Corporation, a subsidiary
of National Grid USA, at the Vermont-New Hampshire border near New England Power Company's Moore hydroelectric
generating station.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are involved in legal and administrative proceedings in the normal course of business and do not believe that the ultimate

outcome of these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters fo a Vote of Security Holders
There were no matters submitted to security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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! PART I

I

Itém 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity. Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

I
(a) Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the trading symbol CV.

r
The table below shows the high and low sales price of our Common Stock, as reported on the NYSE composite tape by The

Wall Street Journal, for each quarterly period during the last two years as follows:

I Market Price

2007 High  Low
| FirstQuarer. .. ...t eeine s $29.19 $22.53

SecondQuarter .. ... ...t $38.24 $29.10
l Third Quarter .. ... i i $41.05 £32.38
| FourthQuarter.. ... .. ... .. .. .. . i $38.40 $25.95
| 2006

First Quarter . . . ... ...ttt e $21.95 $17.89
| Second QUATEr ..\ e et $2190  Sl6.11
| ThirdQuarter . . ... ...ttt e e aeas $23.00 $18.01
| FourthQuarter........ ...t iiieinernaaenns $23.92 $20.94

(b‘l) As of December 31, 2007, there were 6,535 holders of our Common Stock, $6 par value.

(c) Common Stock dividends have been declared quarterly. Cash dividends of $0.23 per share were paid for all quarters of
2?07 and 2006.

So long as any Senior Preferred Stock is outstanding, except as otherwise authorized by vote of two-thirds of such class, if
the Common Stock Equity (as defined) is, or by the declaration of any dividend will b, less than 20 percent of Total
Capitalization (as defined), dividends on Common Stock (including all distributions thereon and acquisitions thereof}, other
than dividends payable in Common Stock, during the year ending on the date of such dividend declaration, shall be limited to
50 percent of the Net Income Available for Dividends on Common Stock (as defined) for that year; and if the Common Stock
Equlty is, or by the declaration of any dividend will be, from 20 percent to 25 percent of Total Capitalization, such dividends
on Common Stock during the year ending on the date of such dividend declaration shall be limited to 75 percent of the Net
Incorne Available for Dividends on Common Stock for that year. The defined terms identified above are used herein in the
sense as defined in subdivision 8A of our Articles of Association; such definitions are based upon our unconsolidated
financial statements. As of December 31, 2007, the Common Stock Equity of our unconsolidated company was 57.7 percent
of Total Capitalization.

Qur First Mortgage Bond indenture contains certain restrictions on the payment of cash dividends on capital stock and other
Rcstnctecl Payments (as defined). This covenant limits the payment of cash dividends and other Restricted Payments to our
Net Income (as defined) for the period commencing on January 1, 2001 up to and including the month next preceding the
month in which such Restricted Payment is to be declared or made plus approximately $77.6 million. The defined terms
identified above are used herein in the sense as defined in Section 5.09 of the Forty- Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated
June 15, 2004; such definitions are based upon our unconsolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2007, $62.9
million was available for such dividends and other Restricted Payments.

d) The information required by this item is included in Part II1, Ttem 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, herein.

('e) The performance graph showing our five-year total shareholder return required by this item is included in our Annual
}{eport to Shareholders and is hereby incorporated by reference.

|
|
|
|
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 006 2005 2004 2003
Income Statement
Operating revenues $329.107 $325,738 $311,359 $302,286 3$306,098
Income from continuing operations (a) $15,804  $18.101 $1,410 $7.493  $17,148
Income from discontinued operations (b) - 251 4,936 16.262 2,653
Net income IS804 §18352  $6346 $23,755 519.801
Per Common Share Data
Basic earnings from continuing operations $1.52 $1.65 $0.09 $0.59 $1.35
Basic earnings from discontinued operations - .02 .40 1.34 0.22
Basic earnings per share $1.52 $1.67 $0.49 $1.93 31,57
Diluted earnings from continuing operations $1.49 $1.64 $0.08 $0.58 $1.32
Diluted earnings from discontinued operations - .02 0.40 1.32 0.21
Diluted earnings per share 81.49 51.66 $0.48 $1.90 $1.53
Cash dividends declared per share of common stock $0.92 $0.69 $1.15 $0.92 $0.88
Balance Sheet
Long-term debt (c) $112,950 $115950 $115950 $115,950 $115,950
Capitat lease obligations (c) $5,889 $6,612 $6,153 $7,004 38,115
Redeemable preferred stock (c) $2.000 $£3,000 $4,000 $6,000 38,000
Total capitalization (c) $317,700 $312,968 $351,527 $361,751 $350,560
Total assets $540,314 $500,938 $551,433  $563,389 $534,635

(a) For 2005 includes a $21.8 million pre-tax charge to earnings ($11.2 million after-tax) related to a 2005 Rate Order.
For 2004 includes a $14.4 million pre-tax charge to earnings ($8.4 million after-tax) related to termination of a long-term
power contract with Connecticut Valley as a result of the January 1, 2004 sale of substantially all of its assets and
franchise.

(b) For 2006 and 2005 includes Catamount, which was sold in the fourth quarter of 2005. For 2004 and 2003 includes
Catamount and Connecticut Valley.

(¢) Amounts exclude current portions.
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CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Itém 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In this section we discuss our general financial condition and results of operations. Certain factors that may impact future
operauons are also discussed. Our discussion and analysis is based on, and should be rzad in conjunction with, the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. Also, please refer to our "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-
Léokmg Information" section preceding Item 1 - Business of this Form 10-K.

|
COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our core business is the Vermont electric utility business. We typically generate most of our eamings through retail
electricity sales. We also sell excess power, if any, to third parties in New England and to ISO-New England. The resale
revenue generated from these sales helps to mitigate our power supply costs.

We are regulated by the Vermont Public Service Board ("PSB"}, the Connecticut Department of Public Utility Control and
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), with respect to rates charged for service, accounting, financing and
other matters pertaining to regulated operations. Qur non-regulated wholly owned subsidiary Catamount Resources
Corporation ("CRC") owns Eversant Corporation ("Eversant"), which operates a rental water heater business through its
wholly owned subsidiary, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. This is not a significant business activity for us.

As a regulated electric utility, we have an exclusive right to serve customers in our service territory, which can generally be
expected to result in relatlve]y stable revenue streams. The ability to increase our customer base is limited to acquisitions or
growth within our service territory. Due to the nature of our customer base, weather and economic conditions are factors that
can significantly affect retail sales revenue. Retail sales volume over the last 10 years has grown at an average rate of less
tﬁan 1 percent per year ranging from slight decreases in some years to increases of 2 percent in others. We currently have
spfﬁcient power resources to meet our forecasted load requirements through 201 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Our consolidated 2007 earnings were $15.8 million, or $1.49 per diluted share of common stock. This compares to
consolidated 2006 earnings of $18.4 million, or $1.66 per diluted share of common stock and conselidated 2005 earnings of
$6 3 million, or 48 cents per diluted share of common stock. The primary drivers of earnings variances for the three years are
described in Results of Operations below.

P'\estoring our corporate credit rating to investment grade is a top priority for us. During 2007, we made progress on several

key strategic financial initiatives inciuding:

» We filed a request for a 4.46 percent rate increase in May 2007 to ensure our retail rates are set at levels to recover our
cost of service. In November 2007, we reached an agreement with the Vermont Department of Public Service ("DPS")
that, among other things, decreased the rate increase request to 2.30 percent and provided for a 10.71 percent allowed
rate of return on common equity, capped until our next rate proceeding or approval of an alternative regulation plan. In
January 2008, the PSB approved the settlement agreement, See Retail Rates and Alternative Regulation.

|® We filed an alternative regulation plan proposal in August 2007 that would allow an automatic quarterly review of our

power costs and related rates and would annually adjust rates to reflect changes within predetermined limits from our

,  allowed eamnings level, replacing the traditional ratemaking process. The plan requires PSB approval. If approved,

alternative regulation could help improve our credit ratings. Standard and Poor's, a national rating agency, has listed the

I lack of a power cost adjustment mechanism as one of the key factors negatively affecting our credit rating. See Retail

Rates and Alternative Regulation.

| @ We made a $53.0 million investment in Vermont Transco LLC ("Transco"), the Vermont company that owns and

operates the high-voltage transmission system in Vermont, in December 2007. This increased our direct ownership

' interest in Transco from 29.86 percent to 39.79 percent for a total investment of $78.8 million at December 31, 2007.

We funded this investment by entering into a six-month unsecured Term Note in the principal amount of $53.0 million.

Pursuant to a commitment from the lending institution dated February 11, 2008, we have the sole option to extend the

maturity of the term note to March 31, 2009. See Liquidity, Capital Resources and Commitments.

Olher financial initiatives that we continue to focus on include maintaining sufficient liquidity to support ongoing operations,

mvestmg in our electric utility infrastructure, planmng for replacement power when our long-term power contracts expire,
and evaluating opportunities to further invest in Transco.
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Continued focus on these financial initiatives is critical to restoring our corporate credit rating to investment grade, We
discuss these financial initiatives and the risks facing our business in more detail below.

RETAIL RATES AND ALTERNATIVE REGULATION

Our retail rates are set by the PSB after considering recommendations of Vermont's consumer advocate, the DPS. While our
retail rates do not have fuel or power cost adjustment mechanisms, the PSB may approve the deferral of extraordinary costs
incurred that might normally be expensed by unregulated businesses in order to match these expenses with future revenues.
Fair regulatory treatment is fundamental to maintaining our financial stability. Rates must be set at levels to recover costs,
including a market rate of return to equity and debt holders, in order to attract capital.

Our retail rates at December 31, 2007 were based on a December 7, 2006 PSB Order, which provided for a 4.07 percent rate
increase effective January 1, 2007 and an allowed rate of return on common equity of 10.75 percent capped until our next rate
proceeding. The return on common equity of our regulated business did not exceed the allowed return for 2007. Our retail
rates at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were based on a March 29, 2005 PSB Order that provided for a 2.75 percent rate
decrease and an allowed rate of return on common equity capped at 10.0 percent. That Order also resulted in a $21.8 million
pre-tax charge to earnings in 2005.

On November 29, 2007, we reached a settlement agreement with the DPS for a 2.3 percent retail rate increase (additional
revenue of $6.4 million on an annual basis) effective February 1, 2008. We had filed a request for a 4.46 percent retail rate
increase (additional revenue of $12.4 million on an annual basis). By working with the DPS, we were able to reduce our
initial request while maintaining our commitment to make substantial additional investments in tree trimming and system
upgrades. The settlement agreement provided for a 10.71 percent rate of return on common equity, capped until our next rate
proceeding or approval of an alternative regulation plan. We also agreed to conduct an independent business process review
to assure our cost controls are sufficiently challenging and that our regulated business is operating efficiently. On January
31, 2008, the PSB issued an Order approving the settlement agreement with the rate increase effective February 1, 2008, The
independent business process review will take place during 2008,

In 2007, we implemented a PSB-approved retail rate design that results in a modest reallocation of annual revenues by
customer class with greater emphasis on energy charges in reaction to wholesale market energy costs. The retail rate design
also provides for a comprehensive study of the need for new service offerings and further rate redesign. This is based on
fundamental changes in how costs are incurred to serve load based on availability of advanced metering and communications
and structural changes in the New England wholesale power market. The study is due to the PSB in April 2008,

On August 31, 2007, we submitted an alternative regulation plan proposal for PSB approval. If approved, the plan would
allow for quarterly rate adjustments to reflect power supply cost changes and annual rate adjustments to reflect changes,
within predetermined limits, from the allowed earnings level. The plan is designed to encourage efficiency in operations, and
would replace the traditional ratemaking process, which is costly and time-consuming. The plan is currently under review
and a PSB decision is expected in the third quarter of 2008. We cannot predict the outcome of that review at this time.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND COMMITMENTS

Cash Flows At December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $3.8 million and at December 31, 2006, we had
cash and cash equivalents of $2.8 million. The primary components of cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities for both periods are discussed in more detail below.

Operating Activities: Operating activities provided $34.1 million in 2007, Net income, when adjusted for depreciation,
amortization, deferred income tax and other non-cash income and expense items, provided $38.8 million. This amount was
offset by operating activities related to working capital and other items that used $4.7 million. These items primarily
included employee benefit funding of $7.9 million, of which $6.7 million was used for pension and postretirement medical
trust fund contributions. This was offset by a $3.5 million decrease in special deposits and restricted cash used to meet
performance assurance requirements for certain power contracts because we replaced cash deposited to meet collateral
requirements with $1.5 million of additional letters of credit.

During 2006, operating activities provided $26.2 million. Net income, when adjusted for depreciation, amortization, deferred
income tax and other non-cash income and expense items, provided $45.5 million. Additionally, special deposits and
restricted cash used to meet performance assurance requirements for certain power contracts decreased by $15.5 million
because the required amounts were lower and because we issued a $4.5 million letter of credit to meet a portion of the
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ob'ligations. We also made $20.8 million in pension trust contributions, $5.2 million in postretirement benefit trust
contributions, and $2.4 million in net postretirement medical and other benefit-related payments. Changes in working capital
and other items used $6.4 million.

Inlvesn'ng Activities: Investing activities used $76.6 million in 2007, including $23.7 million for construction and plant
expenditures and $53.0 million for our investment in Transco, partially offset by $0.1 million from other investments. The
majority of the construction and plant expenditures were for system reliability, performance improvements and customer
se;rvice enhancements.

During 2006, investing activities provided $32.1 million. We received $78.0 million in proceeds from net sales and
maturities of available-for-sale securities. These proceeds included $50.0 million of available-for-sale securities that were
used for the purchase of shares of our common stock through a tender offer that concluded in April 2006 using cash proceeds
from the Catamount sale, and miscellaneous items contributed $1.2 million. We used $19.5 million for construction
expenditures, $23.3 million for investments in Transco and $4.3 million for the acquisition of utility property.

F;:'nancing Activities: Financing activities provided $43.5 million in 2007. This was comprised of a $53.0 million short-term
bridge loan and $2.1 million of stock issuance proceeds resulting from exercised stock options and the dividend reinvestment
program. These items were partially offset by $9.7 million for dividends paid on common and preferred stock, $1.0 million
pl;'eferred stock sinking fund payments, and $0.9 million for capital lease payments. Also, see Financing below.

During 2006, financing activities used $62.1 million, including $51.2 million for the tender offer, $10.2 million for dividends
paid on common and preferred stock, $2.0 million for preferred stock sinking fund payments, and $1.0 million for capital
Jéase payments. These items were partially offset by $1.3 million from stock issuance proceeds resulting from stock option
ei&ercises and $1.0 million from a decrease in preferred stock sinking fund payments.

Transco In October 2007, Transco received PSB approval to issue up to approximately $113.8 million of equity. In
December 2007, we invested $53.0 million in Transco, increasing our direct equity interest in Transco from 29.86 percent to
39.79 percent. Our total direct and indirect interest in Transco increased from 44.34 percent to 45.68 percent.

$ased on current projections, Transco expects to need additional capital in 2008 and 2009, but its projections are subject to
change based on a number of factors, including revised construction estimates, timing of project approvals from regulators,
and desired changes in its equity-to-debt ratio. While we have no obligation to make additional investments in Transco, we
continue to evaluate investment opportunities on a case-by-case basis. Based on Transco's current projections, we could have
dn opportunity to make additional investments up to $2.0 million in 2008 and $20.0 million to $25.0 million in 2009, but the
t?ming and amount depend on the factors discussed above and the amounts invested by other owners.

We are currently evaluating debt and equity issuance alternatives to fund these investments, but any investments that we
make in Transco are voluntary, and subject to available capital and appropriate regulatory approvals.

Dividends Our dividend level is reviewed by our Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. It is our goal to ensure earnings in
future years are sufficient to maintain our current dividend level.

Pividend Reinvestment Plan Qur Dividend Reinvestment Plan was reinstated in April 2007. At that time, we elected to
change the source of common shares to meet reinvestment needs under the Plan from open market purchases to Original
¥ssue shares. In July 2007, we began using Treasury shares to meet reinvestment needs under the Plan, These elections are
expected to result in additional cash flow of $1.0 million to $2.0 million annually.

Cash Flow Risks Based on our current cash forecasts, we will require outside capital in addition to cash flow from
operations and our $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility in order to fund our business over the next year.
Continued upheaval in the capital markets as described below could negatively impact our ability to obtain outside capital on
reasonable terms. In addition, an extended unplanned Vermont Yankee plant outage or similar event could significantly
impact our liquidity due to the potentially high cost of replacement power and performance assurance requirements arising
from purchases through ISO-New England or third parties. In the event of an extended Vermont Yankee plant outage, we
could seek emergency rate relief from our regulators. Other material risks to cash flow from operations include: loss of retail
'sales revenue from unusual weather; slower-than-anticipated load growth and unfavorable economic conditions; increases in
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net power costs largely due to lower-than-anticipated margins on sales revenue from excess power or an unexpected power
source interruption; required prepayments for power purchases; and increases in performance assurance requirements.

Subprime Credit Crisis Due to recent market developments, including a series of rating agency downgrades of subprime
U.S. mortgage-backed securities, the fair values of subprime-related investments have declined. This decline in fair value has
become especially problematic for certain large financial institutions. We performed an assessment of our ability to obtain
financing and currently expect to have access to liquidity in the capital markets at reasonable rates. We also have access to
our unsecured revolving credit facility, which is not affected by general market conditions. However, sustained turbulence in
the U.S. credit markets could limit or delay our access to capital.

We have also performed an assessment of the subprime exposure in our money market, benefit and nuclear decommissioning
trust funds and have determined that a decline, if any, in fund fair value from subprime-related investments is not expected to
be material.

Financing

Long-Term Debt: Substantially all utility property and plant are subject to liens under the First Mortgage Bonds. Associated
scheduled sinking fund payments for the next five years are: $3.0 million in 2008, $5.5 million in 2009, zero in 2010, $20.0
million in 2011 and zero in 2012. Currently, we are not in default under the terms of any of our debt financing documents.

Credit Facility: We have a 364-day, $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility with a major lending institution
pursuant to a Credit Agreement dated December 28, 2007, This replaces the previous credit facility, which was to expire in
October 2008. Pursuant to a commitment from the credit facility bank dated February 11, 2008, we have the sole option to
extend the maturity of the credit facility to March 31, 2009. Our obligation under the Credit Agreement is guaranteed by our
wholly owned, unregulated subsidiaries, C.V. Realty and CRC. The purpose of the facility is to provide liquidity for general
corporate purposes, including working capital needs and power contract performance assurance requirements, in the form of
funds borrowed and letters of credit. Financing terms and costs include an annual commitment fee of (.225 percent on the
unused balance, plus interest on the vutstanding balance of amounts borrowed at various interest options and a commission of
0.9 percent on the average daily amount of letters of credit outstanding. All interest, commission and fee rates are based on
our unsecured long-term debt rating. The facility contains a material adverse effect clause, exercisable when our credit rating
falls below investment grade, which permits the lender to deny a transaction at the point of request. Our credit rating is
currently categorized as below investment grade. We are also required to collateralize any outstanding letter of credit in the
event of a default under the credit facility. At December 31, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding under the new
credit facility, but $6.0 million of letters of credit were outstanding in support of performance assurance requirements
associated with our power transactions. Under the old credit facility, a $5.0 million letter of credit, formerly in support of
performance assurance requirements with a power counterparty, was outstanding until early January 2008.

Short-Term Note: We have a six-month unsecured term note in the principal amount of $53.0 million with a major lending
institution. The loan is payable June 30, 2008 and currently carries an adjustable borrowing rate tied to overnight LIBOR
plus a fixed spread that decreases as our credit rating improves. Other vartable interest rate options are available to us, such
as prime or federal funds rate plus a fixed spread. Fixed rate options are also available based on LIBOR for a time period of
one, two or three months plus a fixed spread that decreases as our credit rating improves. There are no caps on these interest
rate options. Pursuant to a commitment from the lending institution dated February 11, 2008, we have the sole option to
extend the maturity of the term note to March 31, 2009. Our obligation under the term note is guaranteed by our wholly
owned, unregulated subsidiaries, C.V. Realty and CRC. We used the proceeds from this note to acquire additional equity
membership interests in Transco.

Refinancing Plans: Currently, we plan to issue first mortgage bonds to repay the $53.0 million short-term note described
above. We are also reviewing options to support working capital needs resulting from investments in our distribution and
transmission system.

Letters of Credit: In addition to the letters of credit we issued under the credit facility, we have three outstanding secured
letters of credit issued by one bank, totaling $16.9 million in support of three separate issues of industrial development
revenue bonds totaling $16.3 million. We pay an annual fee of 0.9 percent on the letters of credit, based on our secured long-
term debt rating. In 2007, these letters of credit were extended by the bank to November 30, 2008. Pursuant to a bank
commitment dated March 10, 2008, we have the sole option to extend the maturity of these letters of credit to November 30,
2009. The letters of credit are secured under our first mortgage indenture. At December 31, 2007, there were no amounts
drawn under these letters of credit.
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Covenants: At December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants related to our
various debt agreements, articles of association, letters of credit and credit facility.

Capital Commitments Our business is capital-intensive because annual construction expenditures are required to maintain
the distribution system. Capital expenditures in 2007 amounted to $23.7 million. Capital expenditures for the next five years
are expected to range from $31.0 million to $56.0 million annually. The increased spending levels reflect our continued
commitment to invest in system upgrades. These estimates are subject to continuing review and adjustment, and actual
capital expenditures and timing may vary,

C?ntractual Obligations Significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 are summarized below.

! Payments Due by Period (dollars in millions)

' Contractual Obligations Total [Lessthanlyear 1-3vyears 3-Syears  After5 years
Long-term debt $116.0 £3.0 $5.5 $20.0 $87.5
lnterest on long-term debt (a) 914 7.1 13.6 11.8 58.9
Notes payable 63.8 63.8 - - -
[merest on notes payable 39 1.8 0.7 0.7 0.7
Redeemable preferred stock 3.0 1.0 2.0 - -
Capltal lease (¢} 9.1 1.4 2.7 23 2.7
Operatmg leases - vehicle and other (b) 12.1 2.7 4.4 3.0 2.0
Purchased power contracts (d) 890.5 145.1 296.7 256.5 192.2
Nuclear decommissioning and other closure costs (e) 11.9 2.3 34 26 3.6

Total Contractual Obligations £1,201.7 $228.2 $329.0 $296.9 53476

'(a) Based on interest rates shown in Note 12 - Long-Term Debt.
.(b) Includes interest payments on floating rate issues based on interest rates as of December 21, 2007.
[{c) Includes interest payments based on imputed fixed interest rates at inception of the related leases.

{(d) Forecasted power purchases under long -term contracts with Hydro-Quebec, VYNPC and various independent power preducers.
Our current retail rates include a provision for recovery of these costs from customers. The forecasted amounts in this table are
based on certain assumptions including plant operations, weather conditions and availability of the transmission system,
therefore actual results may differ. See Power Supply Matters for more information.

| (e) Estimated decommissioning and all other closure costs related to our equity ownership interests in Maine Yankee, Connecticut
Yankee and Yankee Atomic. Our current retail rates include a provision for recovery of these costs from customers. See Power
i Supply Matters for more information.

Pens:on and Postretirement Medical Benefit Obligations: The contractual obligation table above excludes estimated funding
for pension and postretlrement medical benefit obligations reflected in our consolidated balance sheet. These payments may
\l'ary based on changes in the fair value of plan assets (for pension obligations) and actuarial assumptions. In 2008, we expect
to contribute a total of $4.9 million to our pension and postretirement medical trust funds; however, there is no minimum
fundmg requirement for our pension plan. Based on our current funding level, we do not expect the provisions of the Pension
Protectlon Act of 2006, passed into law in August 2006, to have a significant impact on our minimum required contributions
in the near future. We expect that pension and postretirement medical contributions will not significantly exceed current
funclmg levels for 2009 through 2012. Additional obligations related to our nonqualified pension plans are approximately
$0.3 million per year.

|

Income Taxes: FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes ("FIN 48") unrecognized tax benefits are excluded from
the table. At December 31, 2007, unrecognized state tax benefits of $0.6 million were recorded as FIN 48 liabilities. We are
unable to make reasonable estimates of the period of cash settlement, if any, and the statute of limitations might expire
without examination by the respective state taxing authority. These amounts are not currently subject to an examuination by
the state taxing authority. Also, at December 31, 2007, unrecognized federal tax benefits of $1.2 million were recorded as a
'reduction to the refund claims tax receivable. These unrecognized tax benefits relate to taxes receivable for which the refunds
relating to the unrecognized tax benefits have not been received. Consequently, if the claim is denied there will be no refund
Eforthcoming, and therefore no future cash inflow.
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Capitalization Our capitalization for the past two years follows:

(dollars in millions) Percent
2007 2006 2007 2006
Common stock equity $189 5179 59% 57%
Preferred stock* 11 12 3% 4%
Long-term debt* 116 116 36% 3%
Capital lease obligations* _ 7 17 2% _ 2%

8133 fil4  100%  100%

* includes current portion

Credit Ratings On December 19, 2007, Standard and Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P") reaffirmed our BB+ corporate credit
rating, our BBB+ senior secured bond rating and stable outlook. In September 2007, S&P modified its criteria related to
assigning ratings on first mortgage bonds that are higher than a company's corporate credit rating. S&P clarified the number
of notches that bonds with a recovery rating of "1" or "1+" can be assigned above a company's corporate credit rating for a
given rating category and reduced the collateral coverage required to achieve a "1+ rating. Our senior secured bond rating
was raised from BBB to BBB+ at that time. In addition S&P maintained our business risk profile score of "5". S&P ranks
utilities on a scale of "1" or "excellent” to "10" or "vulnerable"., Our current credit ratings from S&P are shown in the table
below. Credit ratings should not be considered a recommendation to purchase or sell stock.

Comorate Credit Rating BB+
First Mortgage Bonds BBB+
Preferred Stock B+
Qutlook Stable

Performance Assurance At December 31, 2007, we had posted $6.4 million of collateral under performance assurance
requirernents for certain of our power contracts, of which $6.0 million was in the form of letters of credit, $0.3 million was
cash and $0.1 million was represented by restricted cash. We are subject to performance assurance requirements through
ISO-New England under the Financial Assurance Policy for NEPOOL members. We are required to post collateral for all net
purchased power transactions since our credit limit with ISO-New England is zero. Additionally, we are currently selling
power in the wholesale market pursuant to contracts with third parties, and are required to post collateral under certain
conditions defined in the contracts.

We are also subject to performance assurance requirements under our Vermont Yankee power purchase contract (the 2001
Amendatory Agreement). If Entergy Nuclear Vermont Yankee, LLC ("ENVY™), the seller, has commercizally reasonable
grounds to question our ability to pay for monthly power purchases, ENVY may ask VYNPC and VYNPC may then ask us
to provide adequate financial assurance of payment. We have not had to post collateral under this contract.

Off-balance-sheet arrangements We do not use off-balance-sheet financing arrangements, such as securitization of
receivables, nor obtain access to assets through special purpose entitics. We have letters of credit that are described in
Financing above. Additionally, we lease our vehicles and related equipment under one operating lease agreement. The
individual leases are mutually cancelable one year from lease inception. Under the terms of the vehicle operating lease, we
have guaranteed a residual value to the lessor in the event the leased items are sold. The guarantee provides for
reimbursement of up to 87 percent of the unamortized value of the lease portfolio. Under the guarantee, if the entire lease
portfolio had a fair value of zero at December 31, 2007, we would have been responsible for a maximum reimbursement of
$8.6 million,

Commitments and Contingencies We have material power supply commitments for the purchase of power from VYNPC
and Hydro-Quebec. These are described in Power Supply Matters below.

We own an equity interest in VELCO and Transco, which requires us to pay a portion of their operating costs. We own an
equity interest in VYNPC and are obligated to pay a portion of VYNPC'’s operating costs. We also own equity interests in
three nuclear plants that are permanently shut down and have completed decommissioning activities. We are responsible for
paying our share of the costs associated with these plants. Our equity ownership interests are described in Note 3 -
Investments in Affiliates.

Under the terms of the agreements with Catamount and Diamond Castle, we agreed to indemnify them, and certain of their
respective affiliates as described in Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies.
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OTHER BUSINESS RISKS
In addition to the risks described above, we are also subject to regulatory risk and wholesale power market risk related to our

Vermont electric utility business.

Retgularory Risk: Historically, electric utility rates in Vermont have been based on a utility's costs of service. As such, we
areé entitled to charge rates that are sufficient to allow us an opportunity to recover reasonable operation and capital costs and
a reasonable return on investment 1o attract needed capital and maintain our financial mtegrlty, while also protecting relevant
publlC interests. We are subject to certain accounting standards that allow regulated entities, in appropriate circumstances, to
establish regulatory assets and liabilities, and thereby defer the income statement impact of certain costs and revenues that are
expected to be realized in future rates. There is no assurance that the PSB will approve the recovery of all costs incurred for
the operation, maintenance, and construction of our regulated assets, as well as a return on investment. Adverse regulatory
changes could have a significant impact on future results of operations and financiat condition. See Critical Accounting

P?llClCS and Estimates.

The State of Vermont has passed several laws since 2005 that impact our regulated business and will continue to impact it in
the future. Some changes include requirements for renewable energy supplies, and opportunities for alternative regulation
plans. See Recent Energy Initiatives.

Wholesale Power Market Price Risk: Our material power supply contracts are with Hydro-Quebec and VYNPC. These
contracts comprise the majority of our total annual energy (mWh) purchases. 1f one or both of these sources becomes
unavailable for a period of time, there could be exposure to high wholesale power prices and that amount could be material.

We are responsible for procuring replacement energy during periods of scheduled or unscheduled outages of our power
sources. Average market prices at the times when we purchase replacement energy might be higher than amounts included
for recovery in our retail rates. If the amounts are material, we can request regulatory treatment of the costs for recovery
from customers in future rates. Additionally, we had forced outage insurance in place during 2007 to cover additional costs,
if any, of obtaining replacement power from other sources if the Vermont Yankee plant experienced unplanned outages
déuring 2007. We have purchased similar coverage for 2008. See Power Supply Matters.

Power Supply Risk: Our contract for power purchases from VYNPC ends in 2012, but there is a risk that the plant could be
slhut down earlier than expected if ENVY determines that it is not economical to continue operating the plant. Hydro-Quebec
contract deliveries end in 2016, but the average level of deliveries decreases by approximately 20 percent to 30 percent after
2012, and by approximately 85 percent after 2015. There is a risk that future sources available to replace these contracts may
?ot be as retiable and the price of such replacement power could be significantly higher than what we have in place today.

ENVY has submitted a renewal application with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC") for a 20-year extension of the
Vcrmom Yankee plant operating license. ENVY also needs PSB approval to continue to operate beyond 2012. At this time,
ENVY has not received approvals for the license extension, but in 2007 it initiated a 30-day exclusive negotiation period
tequired by the original 2002 Vermont Yankee Memorandum of Understanding with the State of Vermont, for potential
power purchases by the VYNPC sponsor companies, including us, in the plant's post-March 2012 life extension period.

While the 30-day exclusive negotiation period has ended, we are continuing to participate in negotiations for a power contract
beyond 2012 and cannot predict the outcome at this time.

There is also a risk that the Vermont Yankee plant could be shutdown earlier than expected if ENVY determines that it is not
economlcal to continue operating the plant. An early shutdown would cause us to lose the economic benefit of an energy
'volume equal to close to 50 percent of our total committed supply and we would have to acquire replaccment power
'resources for approximately 40 percent of our estimated power supply needs. Based on projected market prices as of
\December 31, 2007, the incremental replacement cost of lost power, including capacity, is estimated to average $57.7 million
annually. We are not able to predict whether there will be an early shutdown of the Vermont Yankee plant or whether the
'PSB would allow timely and full recovery of increased costs related to any such shutdown. However, an early shutdown
(could materially impact our financial position and future results of operations if the costs are not recovered in retail rates in a

timely fashion.
!
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We, Green Mountain Power, the Vermont Public Power Supply Authority and HQ-Production are using a steering committee
structure to develop background materials, terms and supporting actions needed in negotiations for future power purchases
from Hydro-Quebec. We believe there is a high probability that we will have a new contract with Hydro-Quebec, and we
have agreed to target completion of proposed draft terms by the end of 2008, with a proposed contract for review by the PSB
in 2009. We cannot predict whether a contract will ultimately be approved or, if approved, the quantities of power to be
purchased or the price terms of any purchases,

Market Risk: See Item 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We believe that
the areas described below require significant judgment in the application of accounting policy or in making estimates and
assumptions in matters that are inherently uncertain and that may change in subsequent periods.

Regulatory Accounting We prepare our financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Tvpes of Regulation ("SFAS No. 71") for our regulated business. Regulatory assets or liabilities arise as a result of a
difference between accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. and the accounting principles imposed by the
regulatory agencies. Generally, regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred as they are probable of
recovery in future rates. We record regulatory assets before approval for recovery has been received from the regulatory
commission. We must use judgment to conclude that costs deferred as regulatory assets are probable of future recovery. We
base our conclusions on a number of factors such as, but not limited to, changes in the regulatory environment, recent rate
orders issued and the status of any potential new legislation. Regulatory liabilities represent obligations to make refunds to
customers or amounts collected in rates for which the costs have not yet been incurred.

The assumptions and judgments used by regulatory authorities may have an impact on the recovery of costs, the rate of return
on invested capital and the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates. A change in these assumptions may have a
material impact on our results of operations. In the event that we determine our regulated business no longer meets the
criteria under SFAS No. 71 and there is not a rate mechanism to recover these costs, the impact would, among other things,
result in an extraordinary charge to operations of $16.9 million pre-tax at December 31, 2007. We believe our regulated
operations will be subject to SFAS No. 71 for the foreseeable future.

Revenues Revenues from the sale of electricity to retail customers are based on PSB-approved rates. Qur revenues are
recorded when service is rendered or when energy is delivered to customers. We accrue revenue based on estimates of
electric service rendered and unbilled revenue at the end of each accounting period. This unbilled revenue is estimated each
month based on daily generation volumes (territory load), estimated line losses and applicable customer rates. We estimate
line losses at 5 percent. A 1 percent change in line losses would result in a $0.3 million change in revenues. Factors that
could affect the estimate of unbilled revenues are seasonal weather conditions, changes in meter reading schedules, the
number and type of customers scheduled for each meter reading date, estimated customer usage by class, applicable customer
rates and estimated losses of energy during transmission and delivery. Unbilled revenues totaled $17.7 million at December
31, 2007 and $16.7 million at December 31, 2006.

Pension and Postretirentent Medical Benefits We adopted FASB Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ("SFAS
No. 158") as of December 31, 2006 as required. SFAS No. 158 requires an employer with a defined benefit plan or other
postretirement plan to recognize an asset or liability on its balance sheet for the overfunded or underfunded status of the plan.

SFAS No. 158 also requires companies with early benefit measurement dates to change their measurement date in 2008 to
correspond with their fiscal year-end and to record the financial statement impact of the change as an adjustment to retained
eamnings. We estimate that changing the annual benefit measurement date from September 30 to December 31 will result in a
pre-tax charge of $1.4 million, of which $0.1 million will be recorded to retained eamnings. In our most recent retail rate
proceeding we received approval for recovery of the regulated utility portion of the impact resulting from the change in
measurement date. Accordingly, we will record a regulatory asset of approximately $1.3 million in the first quarter of 2008
that will be amortized over five years, beginning in February 2008.
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We use the fair value method to value all asset classes included in our pension and postretirement medical benefit trust funds.
Assumptions are made regarding the valuation of benefit obligations and performance of plan assets. Delayed recognition of
dif;ferences between actual results and those assumed is a required principle of these standards. This approach allows for
systematic recognition of changes in benefit obligations and plan performance over the working lives of the employees who
be?eﬁt under the plans. The following assumptions are reviewed annually, with a September 30 measurement date:

Discount Rate: The discount rate is used to record the value of benefits, which are based on future projections, in terms of
today's dollars. The selection methodology used in determining the discount rate includes portfolios of "Aa" bonds; all are
Utited States issues and non-callable (or callable with make-whole features) and each issue is at least $50.0 million in par
value. As of September 30, 2007, the pension discount rate changed from 5.95 percent to 6.30 percent and the postretirement
mg."dical discount rate changed from 5.80 percent to 6.15 percent.

Expected Return on Plan Assets ("ROA"): We project the future ROA based principally on historical returns by asset category
and expectations for future returns, based in part on simulated capital market performance over the next 10 years. The
projected future value of assets reduces the benefit obligation a company will record. The expected ROA as of September
30, 2006 and 2007 was 8.25 percent. This rate was used to determine the annual expense for 2007 and will also be used to
determine the 2008 expense.

Rate of Compensation Increase; We project employees’ compensation increases, including annual increases, promotions and

other pay adjustments, based on our expectations for future long-term experience reflecting general trends. This projection is
used to estimate employees' pension benefits at retirement. The projected rate of compensation increase was 4.23 percent as

of September 30, 2006 and 2007.

HFa!th Care Cost Trend: We project expected increases in the cost of health care. For measurement purposes, we assumed a
9.5 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits for fiscal 2007, for pre-65 and post-65
cllaims costs. The rate is assumed to decrease 0.5 percent each year until 2010, and to decrease one percent in each of the
subsequent years until an ultimate trend rate of 5.0 percent is reached in 2013.

Amortization of Gains/(Losses): The assets and liabilities of the pension and postretirement medical benefit plans are affected
b)'r changing market conditions as well as differences between assumed and actual plan experience. Such events result in
gains and losses. Investment gains and losses are deferred and recognized in pension and postretirement medical benefit
costs over a period of years. If, as of the annual measurement date, the plan's unrecognized net gain or loss exceeds 10
pErcent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related value of plan assets, the excess is amortized
ol‘ver the average remaining service period of active plan participants. This 10-percent corridor method helps to mitigate
vlolatility of net periodic benefit costs from year to year. Asset gains and losses related to certain asset classes such as equity,
emerging-markets equity, high-yield debt and emerging-markets debt are recognized in the calculation of the market-related
vjalue of assets over a five-year period. The fixed income assets are invested in longer-duration bonds to match changes in
plan liabilities. The gains and losses related to this asset class are recognized in the market-related value of assets
immediately. Also see Note 14 - Pension and Postretirernent Medical Benefits.

l
Pension and Postretirement Medical Assumption Sensitivity Analysis Fluctuations in market returns may result in
i?creased or decreased pension costs in future periods. The table below shows how, hypothetically, a 25-basis-point change
in discount rate and expected return on assets would affect pension costs (dollars in thousands):

‘ 15 Basis-point 25 Basis-point

| 25 Basis-point 25 Basis-point Increase in Decrease in
Increase in Decreasein  Expected Return  Expected Return

| Discount Rate Discount Rate on Assets on Assets

Pension Plan

Effect on projected benefit obligation

| as of Qctober 1, 2007 $(1,743) £1,620 - -

Effect on 2007 net period benefit cost $(202) $210 $(204) $204

Other Postretirement Medical Benefit Plans

Effect on accumulated postretirement

. benefit obligation as of October 1, 2007 $(655) $671 - -

Fffect on 2007 net periodic benefit cost $(69) §73 $(28) $28
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Derivative Financial Instruments We account for vartous power contracts as derivatives under the provisions of SFAS No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted and SFAS No. 149,
Amendment of Statement 133 Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, (collectively "SFAS No. 133"). These
statements require that derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. We estimate the fair value based on the best
market information available including valuation models that estimate future energy prices based on existing market and
broker quotes, supply and market data and other assumptions. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment. These uncertainties include projections of macroeconomic trends and future energy prices, including
supply and demand levels and future price volatility. Based on a PSB-approved Accounting Order, we record the change in
fair value of power contract derivatives as deferred charges or deferred credits on the balance sheet, depending on whether
the fair value is an unrealized loss or gain. The corresponding offsets are recorded as current and long-term assets or
liabilities depending on the duration.

During 2007, we entered into several forward power contracts that are derivatives. At December 31, 2007, the estimated fair
value of all power contract derivatives was a net unrealized loss of $7.1 million ($7.8 million unrealized loss and $0.7 miilion
unrealized gain). At December 31, 2006, the estimated fair value of power contract derivatives was an unrealized loss of
$8.0 million. We estimate that a 10 percent increase in market prices would increase the net unrealized loss by $7.2 million,
and a 10 percent decrease would decrease it by $5.4 million. Also see Item 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.

We are able to economically hedge our exposure to congestion charges that result from constraints on the transmission
system with Financial Transmission Rights ("FTRs"). FTRs are awarded to the successfut bidders in periodic auctions
administered by [SO-New England, in which we participate. We have determined that FTRs are derivatives. The estimated
fair value of FTRs that we held at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was zero since their auction clearing prices
approximated fair value. We account for FTRs in the month that they settle in ISO-New England; these are included in
Purchased Power on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Environmental Reserves Environmental reserves are estimated and accrued using a probabilistic model when assessments
indicate that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated. Qur environmental
reserve is for three sites in various stages of remediation. Qur cost estimates for two of the sites are based on engineering
evaluations of possible remediation scenarios and a Monte Carlo simulation. The liability estimate includes costs for
remediation, monitoring and other future activities. At December 31, 2007, our reserve for the three sites was $1.9 million.
It was $2.1 million at December 31, 2006. These estimates are based on currently available information from presently
enacted state and federal environmental laws and regulations. The estimates are subject to revisions in future periods based
on actual costs or new information concerning either the level of contamination at the site or newly enacted laws and
regulations.

Reserve for Loss on Power Contract At December 31, 2007, we had a $9.6 million ($10.8 million at December 31, 2006)
reserve for loss on a power contract, which relates to a terminated power contract resulting from the 2005 sale of a
subsidiary's franchise. The loss represents our best estimate of the future sales revenue, in the wholesale market, and the cost
of purchased power obligations. We base our calculation on assumptions about future power prices, the reallocation of
power from the state-appointed purchasing agent and future load growth. We assess the carrying value of the liability
regularly and continue fo amortize the amount reserved on a straight line basis.

Income Taxes We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 as required. It did not have a material impact on our results of
operations or statement of financial position. FIN 48 clarifies the methodology to be used in estimating and reporting
amounts associated with uncertain tax posttions, including interest and penalties. The application of income tax law is
complex and we are required to make many subjective assumptions and judgments regarding our income tax exposures.
Changes in our subjective assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts recognized on the income statement,
balance sheet and statement of cash flows.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following is a detailed discussion of the results of operations for the past three years. This should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this report.

Consolidated Summary Consolidated net income for the past three years follows (dollars in thousands, except earnings
per share);

F

2007 2006 2005
Income from continuing operations $15,804 $18,101 $1,410
Income from discontinued operations - 251 _4.936
Net Income $15.804 $18,352 86,346
Eai’nings per share - basic:
Eamnings from continuing operations $1.52 $1.65 $0.09
Earnings from discontinued operations - _0.02 040
Earnings per share $1.52 5167 $0.49
Earnings per share - diluted:
Earnings from continuing operations $1.49 $1.64 $0.08
Eamings from discontinued operations - _0.02 _0.40
Earnings per share $1.49 5166 $0.48

Tl‘;e tables that follow provide a reconciliation of the primary year-over-year variances in diluted eamings per share for 2007
ve‘rsus 2006 and 2006 versus 2005.

‘ 2007 vs, 2006
2?06 Earnings per diluted share $1.66
Year-over-Year Effects on Earnings (a):

Higher retail revenues - 4.07 percent rate increase Jan. 1, 2007 .62

Higher retail revenues - primarily volume 34

Lower purchased power expense 49

Higher equity in earnings .19

'Lower resale sales revenue (.81)

Higher maintenance costs - primarily 2007 major storms (.33)

'Higher transmission costs {37

E2006 decrease in environmental reserves {.09)

Other 20
2007 Earnings per diluted share $1.49

!
(a} The favorable impact of the April 2006 stock buyback is included in the individual EPS
| variances and not shown separately in the table above.
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2006 vs. 2005

2005 Earnings per diluted share 3.48

Year-over-Year Effects on Earnings:
Higher resale sales revenue 60
Higher equity in earnings - primarily Transco 10
Decrease in environmental reserves .09
Higher CRC earnings .06
Other variances (a) (.03)
Lower retail sales (a) (.17
Higher employee-related costs (.22)
Discontinued operations (.38)
Net impact of first-quarter 2005 Rate Order charges 91
Impact of 2006 stock buyback (b) _.22

2006 Earnings per diluted share $1.66

(a) Excluding 2005 Rate Order charges listed separately.
(b) Reflects the impact of the April 2006 stock buyback, which decreased common shares
outstanding by about 18 percent.

Consolidated Income Statement Discussion The following includes a more detailed discussion of the components
of our Consolidated Statements of Income and related year-over-year variances.

Operating Revenues The majority of operating revenues is generated through retail electric sales. Retail sales are affected
by weather and economic conditions since these factors influence customer use. Resale sales represent the sale of power into
the wholesale market normally sourced from owned and purchased power supply that is in excess of that needed by our retail
customers. The amount of resale revenue is affected by the availability of excess power for resale, the types of sales we enter
into and the contract price for those sales. Operating revenues and related mWh sales are summarized below.

Revenue ( dollars in thousands) mWh Sales
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Residential $136,359 $124,520 $127,138 1,003,055 059,455 978,164
Commercial 107,556 103,432 105,363 885,713 888,537 902,062
Industrial 36,064 35,052 33,873 425356 430,348 414,341
Other 1,840 1,768 1618 6,250 6,125 5,535
Retail sales 281,819 264,772 267,992 2,320,374 2,284,465 2,300,102
Resale sales 38,935 53,149 41,457 697,749 1,031,171 662,570
Retail customer refund - - (6,194) - - -
Provision for rate refund (747 - - - - -
Other operating revenues 9,100 1.817 8,104 - - -

Total operating revenues $329,107 $325,738 311,359 3,018,123 3315636 2,962,672

The average number of retail customers is summarized below:

2007 2006 2005

Residential 135,591 131,483 129,943
Commercial 22,106 21,506 21,034
[ndustrial 37 35 36
QOther 175 173 171
Total 157909 153197  I5LI84
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‘ Comparative changes in operating revenues are summarized below (dollars in thousands):

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

Retail sales:
Vlolume {mWh) $4,960 3(2,530)
Average price due to customer sales mix 1,124 1,164
Average price due to rate increase - January 1, 2007 10,963 -
Aj'verage price due to rate reduction - April 1, 2005 - (1.854)
Subtotal 17,047 (3,220)
Redale sales (14,214) 11,692
Retail customer refund - 6,194
Pravision for rate refund (747) -
Other operating revenues 1,283 (287)
Increase in operating revenues 83,369 514,379

t

I
2007 vs. 2006
Operating revenues increased $3.4 million, or 1.0 percent, due to the following factors:

Retail sales increased $17.0 million resulting from a 4.07 percent rate increase as of January 1, 2007 and higher
' residential sales volume. Retail sales volume increased during 2007 largely due to an increase in the number of
| residential customers resulting from small service territory acquisitions in the second half of 2006 and customer growth
in our service territory. Colder weather in the winter months in 2007 also contributed to increased retail sales volume.
} Customer sales mix increased average prices on retail sales because the unit price for residential sales is higher than
those of other customer classes.
Resale sales decreased $14.2 million resulting from less excess power available for resale. The decrease in excess power
available for resale resulted from second quarter 2007 scheduled refueling cutages at Vermont Yankee and Millstone
Unit #3, decreased Vermont Yankee purchases due to a derate and unplanned outage during the third quarter of 2007,
and lower output from our hydro facilities and from Independent Power Producers due to less rainfall compared to 2006.
The increase in retail sales volume also reduced the power available for resale. Additionally, 2006 included
approximately $8.4 million of Vermont Yankee uprate energy that was resold as described in Purchased Power below.
This power was resold at the same prices that we paid for it.
The provision for rate refund decreased revenue by $0.7 million. This amount was included in the 4.07 percent rate
increase and is to be refunded to customers because the PSB disallowed our request to recover $1.5 million over two
years for Vermont Yankee 2005 incremental refueling costs.
Other operating revenues increased $1.3 million largely from the sale of additional transmission capacity on our share of
Phase I/II transmission facility rights, offset by revenue for storm restoration performed for other utilities in 2006.

2006 vs. 2005
Operating revenues increased $14.4 million, or 4.6 percent, due to the following factors:

r
i

Retail sales decreased $3.2 million due to lower customer use and a 2.75 percent rate reduction that began in April 2005,
partly offset by higher average prices resulting from customer sales mix. Retail customers used less power due to milder
winter and summer weather compared to 2005.

Resale sales increased $11.7 million due to an increased volume of power that was not needed to serve retail customers.
The largest increase in available energy for resale resulted from additional Vermoent Yankee plant uprate power that we
were required to purchase at market rates. We also had more available for resale due to the following factors: 1) more
deliveries under the long-term contract with Hydre-Quebec; 2) increased output from the Vermont Yankee plant
(excluding additional uprate power); 3) increased output from our hydro facilities and from Independent Power
Producers due to heavy rainfall in 2006 compared to prior years; and 4) increased output from our jointly owned
generating units largely due to Millstone Unit #3, which operated at close to 100 percent capacity in 2006 while it was
idle for over a month in 2005 due primarily to a refueling outage in the fourth quarter of 2005. As described in
Purchased Power below, revenue associated with resale sales was largely offset by the cost of the power.

A $6.2 million customer refund in 2003 resulted in a favorable variance when comparing 2006 versus 2005.

Other operating revenues decreased $0.3 million due to lower transmission revenue, partly offset by third-party billings
associated with storm restoration performed for other utilities and lower reserves for pole attachments based on the
fourth-quarter 2006 settlement of a tariff dispute.
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Operating Expenses The variances in income statement line items that comprise operating expenses on the Consolidated
Statements of Income are described below (dollars in thousands).

2007 over/(under) 2006 2006 over/(under) 2005
Total Variance Percent Total Variance  Percent

Purchased power - affiliates and other $(8,726) (5.1) $(2,195) {1.3)
Production 1,972 20.1 (844) (8.0)
Transmission - affiliates 3,970 * (1,518) (56.4)
Transmission - other 2,605 18.7 674 5.1
Other operation 4,775 9.8 (7,909 (14.0)
Maintenance 5,898 26.8 2,014 10.1
Depreciation (1,281) (7.8) 123 0.8
Taxes other than income 782 54 446 32
Income tax expense (benefit) (3,278) (38.3) 10,833 *
Total operating expenses 36,717 2.2 $1,624 0.5

* variance exceeds 100 percent

Purchased Power - affiliates and other: Power purchases make up approximately 50 percent of total operating expenses.
Most of these purchases are made under long-term contracts. These contracts and other power supply matters are discussed
in more detail in Power Supply Matters below. Purchased power expense and volume are summarized below:

Purchases (dollars in thousands) mWh Purchases
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
VYNPC (a) $56,283 $70,592 $57,266 1,361,754 1,689,390 1,430,155
Hydro-Quebec 64,869 64,297 58,377 998,411 998,365 832,357
Independent Power Producers 22,796 23,998 19.676 176,169 198,735 160,396
Subtotal long-term contracts 143,948 158,887 135,319 2,536,334 2,886,490 2,422 908
Other purchases 16,018 5,525 31,296 219,186 90,440 264,330
SFAS No. 5 loss amortizations (1,196) (1,196) (1,196) - - -
Maine Yankee, Connecticut
Yankee and Yankee Atomic (a) 2,588 5,412 5,003 - - -
2005 Rate Order - - 2,441 - - -
Other {636} 820 (1,220} - - -
Total purchased power §160,722  §169.448  $171,643 2,755,500 2976930 2,687,238

(2) Purchased power transactions with affiliates. Amounts shown in the table above are shown net of regulatory amortizations
and deferrals including our share of VYNPC nuclear insurance settlements that we defer per a PSB Order.

Comparative changes in purchased power expense are summarized below (dollars in thousands):

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

VYNPC $(14,309) $13,326
Hydro-Quebec 572 5,920
Independent Power Producers (1,202) 4,322
Subtotal long-term contracts (14,939) 23,568
Other purchases 10,493 (25,771)
Nuclear decommissioning costs (2,824) 409
2005 Rate Order - (2,441)
Other (1.456) 2,040
(Decrease) Increase in purchased power S(8,726) 52,195

2007 vs. 2006
Purchased power expense decreased $8.7 million, or 5.1 percent, due to the following factors:
®  Purchased power costs under long-term contracts decreased $14.9 million in 2007 largely resulting from decreased
Vermont Yankee plant output we purchase under the long-term power contract ("PPA") with Vermont Yankee Nuclear
Power Corporation ("VYNPC"). The Vermont Yankee plant produced less power in 2007 due to a second-quarter
scheduled refueling outage and a third quarter derate and unplanned outage. Also in 2006 we were required to
purchase additional Vermont Yankee uprate power at market prices. That power was resold in the wholesale energy
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markets as described in Revenue above. Purchases from Independent Power Producers, most of which are hydro
facilities, decreased resulting from less rainfall, partly offset by an increase in average rates. Purchases from Hydro-
Quebec increased during 2007 resulting from an increase in the average energy price.

®  Other purchases increased $10.5 million in 2007 resulting from replacement energy purchased during the Vermont
Yankee outages and derate described above.

¢ Nuclear decommissioning costs are associated with our ownership interests in Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and

. Yankee Atomic. These costs decreased $2.8 million in 2007 due to lower collection schedules for Connecticut Yankee
and Yankee Atomic. Decommissioning activities were completed at both plants during 2007. Maine Yankee
decommissioning activity was completed in 2006.

8 Other costs decreased $1.5 million principally due to a net accounting deferral in 2007 versus amortizations in 2006

for Millstone Unit #3 scheduled refueling outages. Based on approved regulatory accounting treatment, we defer the

cost of incremental replacement energy costs of scheduled refueling outages, and amortize those costs through the next

. scheduled refueling outage, which typically spans an 18-month period. The last refucling outage at Millstone Unit #3

i occurred in April and May 2007.

2006 vs. 2005
Purchased power expense decreased $2.2 million, or 1 percent, due to the following factors:
- Long-term contract purchases increased $23.6 million resulting from: 1) increased purchases under the PPA due to
| higher plant output including $8.4 million for additional plant uprate power that we were required to purchase at
market prices and $4.9 million for higher plant output because the plant operated all year in 2006 but had a three-week
) refueling outage in the fourth quarter of 2005; 2) more deliveries under the VJO contract with Hydro-Quebec resulting
from a change in the capacity factor from 65 percent to 80 percent for the contract year beginning November 1, 2003;
! and 3) more rainfall in 2006 versus 2005, which increased output from Independent Power Producers.
®  QOther purchases decreased $25.7 million because more power was available from long-term contract sources as
described above and our owned sources. While there was no Vermont Yankee plant outage during 2006, we
| purchased high-cost replacement energy during the fourth quarter 2005 scheduled refueling outage.
®  Nuclear decommissioning costs increased $0.4 million as a result of updated forecasts of decommissioning and other
f costs associated with these plants.
" Accounting entries associated with the 2005 Rate Order increased power costs by $2.5 million in 2005 with no
comparable charges in 2006.
|®  Other power costs increased $2.0 million principally due to regulatory amortizations for Millstone Unit #3's scheduled
refueling outages versus a net deferral in 2005.

Producnon These costs represent the cost of fuel, operation and maintenance, property insurance, and property tax for our
wholly and jointly owned production units.

The increase of $2.0 million for 2007 versus 2006 resulted primarily from premium expense of $1.3 million for Vermont
Yankee outage insurance. This amount was amortized over 12 months beginning January 1, 2007, Fuel costs also increased
$0 5 million. The variance for 2006 versus 2005 was not significant.

l

Transmission - affiliates: These expenses represent our share of the net cost of service of Transco as well as some direct
charges for facilities that we rent. Transco allocates its monthly cost of service through the Vermont Transmission
ﬁ\greement ("VTA"), net of NEPOOL Open Access Transmission Tariff ("NOATT") reimbursements and certain direct
charges. The NOATT is the mechanism through which the costs of New England's high-voltage (so-called PTF)
transmission facilities are collected from load-serving entities using the system and redistributed to the owners of the
fac1llt1es including Transco.

|

The increase of $4.0 million for 2007 versus 2006 is mostly due to higher rates, and lower reimbursements under NOATT.
In 2006 transmission expenses from Transco decreased $1.5 million. This decrease was primarily due to third quarter 2006
NOATT reimbursements to Transco that were higher than its cost of service, partly due to the inclusion of the Northwest
Reliability Project in reimbursements. QOur share amounted to a $2.0 million reimbursement, which was recorded as a
feduction in transmission expense for the third quarter of 2006.

I
'
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Transmission - other: The majority of these expenses are for purchases of regional transmission service under the NOATT
and charges for the Phase I and I transmission facilities. The increase of $2.6 million for 2007 versus 2006 primarily
resulted from higher rates and overall transmission expansion in New England, partially offset by lower depreciation expense
because the Phase I facility was fully depreciated in 2006. Other transmission expenses increased $0.7 miilion in 2006
versus 2005 due to a large increase in the NOATT rate starting in July 2006.

Other operation: These expenses are related to operating activities such as customer accounting, customer service,
administrative and general activities, regulatory deferrals and amortizations, and other operating costs incurred to support our
core business. The increase of $4.8 million for 2607 versus 2006 resulted from: 1) a third-quarter 2006 reduction in
environmental reserves based on revised cost estimates; 2) higher bad debt expense related to a customer bankruptcy and, in
2006, recovery of a previous charge-off; and 3) higher other costs, including professional services. These were partially
offset by lower pension and postretirement medical costs primarily due to additional contributions to the trust funds in March
2006, and lower external audit fees.

The $7.9 million decrease in 2006 versus 2005 primarily resulted from: 1) a $4.3 million increase in employee-related costs
including pension, active and retiree medical, incentive compensation and the expected medical costs of long-term disability
claims; 2) a $1.0 million increase in fees for professional services including external audit fees driven by Sarbanes-Oxley
compliance and other contractor fees, partially offset by bondholder consent fees in 2005; and 3) a $0.7 million increase in
customer accounting due principally to a customer bankruptcy; partially offset by 4) a $1.6 million third-quarter 2006
reduction in environmental reserves based on revised cost estimates; 5) a $10.7 million charge due to the March 2005 Rate
Order from a revised calculation of overearnings for 2001 - 2003 and the 2004 gain resulting from termination of the power
contract with Connecticut Valley; and 6) a $1.6 million decrease in net regulatory amortizations beginning in April 2005 per
the March 2005 Rate Order, including deferrals of $0.7 million to match tree trimming and pole treating expenses with
amounts currently recovered in rates.

Maintenance: These expenses are associated with maintaining our electric distribution system and include costs of our
jointly owned generating and transmission facilities. The increase of $5.9 million for 2007 versus 2006 was primarily related
10 storm restoration costs from a major storm in April 2007 and storms in August 2007.

The increase of $2.0 million for 2006 versus 2005 resulted primarily from a $1.0 million increase in contractor costs for tree
trimming, a $0.4 million increase in storm restoration costs, and a $0.6 million increase in other maintenance costs including
stockroom maintenance and minor inventory items. Pursuant to the March 2005 Rate Order, beginning April 1, 2005, any
differences between actual tree trimming costs and amounts included for recovery in retail rates are being deferred until our
next rate proceeding. Therefore, the higher tree-trimming costs in 2006 were partially offset by the favorable impact of
regulatory amortizations included in other operation above.

Depreciation: We use the straight-line remaining-life method of depreciation. The $1.3 million decrease for 2007 versus
2006 was due to lower rates resulting from a depreciation study, and the license extension of our jointly owned nuclear plant,
Millstone Unit #3. There was no significant variance for 2006 versus 2005.

Taxes other than income: This is related primarily to property taxes and payroll taxes. There was no significant variance for
2007 versus 2006 or for 2006 versus 2005,

Income tax expense (benefit): Federal and state income taxes fluctuate with the level of pre-tax earnings in relation to
permanent differences, tax credits, tax settlements and changes in valuation allowances for the periods. The effective
combined federal and state income tax rate was 29.9 percent for 2007, 35.6 percent for 2006 and 309.8 percent for 2005. The
effective tax rate increased significantly in 2005 because we had a pre-tax loss of $0.7 millien from continuing operations.
On June 7, 2004, the State of Vermont enacted legislation that reduced the state income tax rate from 9.75 percent to 8.9
percent effective January 1, 2006, and from 8.9 percent to 8.5 percent effective January 1, 2007,
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Other Income and Other Deductions These items are related to the non-operating activities of our utility business and the
operating and non-operating activities of our non-regulated businesses through CRC. CRC's earnings were $0.5 million in
2097, $0.8 million in 2006 and $0.1 mitlion in 2005. The variances in income statement line items that comprise other
income and other deductions on the Consolidated Statements of Income are shown in the table below (dollars in thousands).
, 2007 over/(under) 2006 2006 over/(under) 2005
F Total Variance Percent Total Variance  Percent

Equity in earnings of affiliates 33,190 98.5 $1,371 73.4
Allowance for equity funds during construction (73) (60.8) 41 51.9
Ot‘hcr income (1,674) (30.5) 1,366 332
Other deductions (80) i3 1,151 (32.4)
Income tax expense 21) 1.5 (1.25%5) *
Total other income and deductions $1,342 26.8 $2,674 *

* variance exceeds 100 percent

|
Equity in earnings of affiliates: These earnings are related to our equity investments including VELCO, Transco and
VIYNPC. The increase of $3.2 million for 2007 versus 2006 results principally from our 2006 investment in Transco. The
$1.4 million increase for 2006 versus 2005 also resulted principally from investments that we made in Transco in 2006.

Other income: The decrease of $1.7 million for 2007 versus 2006 resulted primarily from a $1.3 million decrease in interest
on temporary investments due to a lower portfolio balance resulting from the stock-buyback in 2006, and a $0.3 million gain
on the sale of non-utility property in 2006.

T!he increase of $1.4 million for 2006 versus 2005 is primarily due to a $0.6 million increase in interest income from interest
eamcd on the Catamount sale proceeds and a $0.3 million increase in gain on sales of non-utility property, partially offset by
a'$0.3 million decrease in interest on temporary investments resulting from lower cash balances.

I

Other Deductions: These items include supplemental retirement benefits and insurance, including changes in the cash
surrender value of life insurance policies, non-utility expenses relating to rental water heaters, and miscellaneous other
deductions. There were no significant variances for 2007 versus 2006.

Other deductions decreased $1.2 million for 2006 versus 2005 primarily due to a $0.4 million increase in 2005 impairments
and realized losses associated with certain available-for-sale debt securities that were seld earlier than planned.

F
Benefit (expense) for income taxes: Federal and state income taxes fluctuate with the level of pre-tax eamings in relation to
permanent differences, tax credits, tax settlements and changes in valuation allowances for the periods.

I

Interest Expense Interest expense includes interest on long-term debt, dividends associated with preferred stock subject to
mandatory redemption, and interest on notes payable and the credit facility. The variances in income statement line items
that comprise interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income are shown in the table below (dollars in thousands).

2007 over/(under) 2006 2006 over/{under) 2005

‘ Total Variance Percent Total Variance Percent
Interest on long-term debt $1 0.0 $- 0.0
Other interest 270 25.1 (1,249) (53.8)
lAllowance for borrowed funds during construction _20 (51.3) (13) 50.0
Total interest expense 5291 35 §(1,262) (13.3)

[Other interest expense: The increase of $0.3 million for 2007 versus 2006 was principally due to regulatory carrying costs
associated with an environmental reserve. The decrease of $1.2 million for 2006 versus 2005 included first-quarter 20035
'charges of $1.2 million for carrying costs associated with the recalculation of overearnings for 2001 - 2003 per the March
|2005 Rate Order.

Discontinued Operations Discontinued operations are associated with the December 2005 sale of Catamount Energy.
Income from discontinued operations was zero in 2007, $0.3 million in 2006 and $4.9 million in 2005. Income in 2005

lincluded a $5.6 million after-tax gain from the sale.
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POWER SUPPLY MATTERS

Sources of Energy Our power supply portfolio includes a mix of base load and dispatchable resources. These sources are
used to serve our retail electric load requirements plus any wholesale obligations into which we enter. We manage our power
supply portfolio by attempting to optimize the use of these resources, and through wholesale sales and purchases to create a
balance between our power supplies and load obligations.

Our current power forecast shows energy purchase and production amounts in excess of load obligations through 2011. Due
to the forecasted excess, we enter into fixed-price forward sale transactions to reduce price (revenue) volatility in order to
help stabilize our net power costs. We have entered into several forward sale contracts since January 1, 2007, The contracts
vary from one to eight months with volumes from 10 MW to 65 MW depending upon our forecast energy excesses in the on-
peak and off-peak periods of each month. Some of the contracts are contingent on Vermont Yankee plant output, eliminating
the risks related to sourcing the sale if Vermont Yankee is not operating. Others are firm, thus potentially exposing us to the
risk of market price volatility if we are not able to source the contracts with existing resources. Our main supply risk is with
Vermont Yankee, and we have outage insurance through December 2008 to mitigate the market price risk during an
unplanned cutage through that time. In June 2007, we also entered into a forward contract for the purchase of replacement
power during the scheduled Vermont Yankee plant outage in late 2008.

A breakdown of energy sources during the past three years follows.

2007 2006 2005
Nuclear 48% 54% 51%
Hydro 39% 8% 35%
Qil and wood 6% 5% 5%
Other 7% _3% 9%
Total 100% 100% 100%

The following is a discussion of our primary sources of energy.

Vermont Yankee. We are purchasing our entitlement share of Vermont Yankee plant output under the terms of the PPA
between ENVY and VYNPC. One remaining secondary purchaser continues to receive a small percentage (less than 0.2
percent) of our entitlement. An uprate in 2006 increased the plant's operating capacity by approximately 20 percent. The
plant shuts down for about one month every 18 months for maintenance and to insert new fuel into the reactor. We normally
purchase replacement energy in the wholesale markets in New England during the scheduled outages.

Prices under the PPA increase $1 per megawatt-hour each calendar year, from $41 in 2008 to $45 in 2012. The PPA contains
a provision known as the "low market adjuster”, which calls for a downward adjustment in the contract price if market prices
for electricity fall by defined amounts. If market prices rise, however, PPA prices are not adjusted upward in excess of the
PPA price. Estimated annual purchases are expected to range from $59.3 million to $69.1 million for 2008 through 2011,
and $17.5 million for 2012 when the contract expires. These estimates are based on projected mWh purchase volumes at
PPA rates, plus estimates of VYNPC costs, primarily net interest expense and the cost of capital. Actual amounts may differ.

While the Vermont Yankee plant has an excellent operating record, future unscheduled outages or reduced output could
occur at times when replacement energy costs are above the PPA rates. We have forced outage insurance to cover additional
costs, if any, of obtaining replacement power if the plant experiences unplanned outages between January I and December
31, 2008. The coverage applies to unplanned outages of up to 30 consecutive calendar days per outage event. The total
maximum coverage is $12.0 million, with a $1.2 million deductible. We had similar coverage in place for 2007 (total
maximum coverage of $10.0 million with a $1.0 million deductible). There was a two-day unplanned outage at the plant in
the third quarter of 2007 but no claims were made under the insurance contract because the incremental replacement power
cost was below the deductible.

The PPA between ENVY and VYNPC contains a formula for determining the VYNPC power entitlement following the
uprate. VYNPC and ENVY are secking to resolve certain differences in the interpretation of the formula. At issue is how
much capacity and energy VYNPC Sponsors receive under the PPA following the uprate. Based on VYNPC's calculations
the VYNPC Sponsors should be entitled to slightly more capacity and energy than they are currently receiving under the
PPA. We cannot predict the outcome of this matter at this time.
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Hydro Quebec: We are purchasing power from Hydro-Quebec under the Vermont Joint Owners ("VJO") Power Contract.
The VJO is a group of Vermont electric companies, municipal utilities and cooperatives, including us. There are specific
coFmractuaI provisions that provide that in the event any VIO member fails to meet its obligation under the contract, the
remaining VJO participants will "step-up" to the defaulting party's share on a pro-rata basis. We are not aware of any
instance where this provision has been invoked by Hydro-Quebec.

leased on sellback contracts that were negotiated in the early phase of the VIO Power Contract, Hydro-Quebec obtained two
options. The first gives Hydro-Quebec the right, upon four years' written notice, to reduce capacity deliveries by 50 MW,
including the use of a like amount of our Phase /11 transmission facility rights. The second gives Hydro-Quebec the right,
upon one year's written notice, to curtail energy deliveries in a contract year (12 months beginning November 1) from an
annual capacity factor of 75 to 50 percent due to adverse hydraulic conditions as measured at certain metering stations on
unregulated rivers in Quebec. This second option can be exercised five times through October 2015. Hydro-Quebec has not
yet exercised these options.

Under the VJO Power Contract, the VIO and Hydro-Quebec had elections to change the annual load factor. Hydro-Quebec
and the VJO have used all of their elections. Based on elections made by the VIO in 2006 and 2003, the load factor was at
80 percent for the contract years beginning November 1, 2006 and 2005, As of November 1, 2007, the annual load factor is
75 percent for the remainder of the contract, unless the contract is changed or there is a reduction due to the adverse hydraulic
conditions described above. Estimated annual purchases are expected to range from $62.6 million to $67.5 million for 2008
through 2012. These estimates are based on certain assumptions including availability of the transmission system and
s'cheduled deliveries, so actual amounts may differ.

l'ndependem Power Producers: We purchase power from a number of Independent Power Producers that own qualifying
facilities under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978. These qualifying facilities produce energy primarily using
lFlydroelectric and biomass generation. Most of the power comes through a state-appointed purchasing agent that allocates
power to all Vermont utilities under PSB rules. Estimated annual purchases are expected to range from $21.7 million to
$22.5 million for the years 2008 through 2012. These estimates are based on assumptions regarding average weather
conditions and other factors affecting generating unit output, so actual amounts may differ.

Who”y owned hydro and thermal: Our wholly owned plants are located in Vermont, and have a combined nameplate
capacity of about 74.2 MW, We operate all of these plants, which include: 1) 20 hydroelectric generating facilities with
nameplate capacities ranging from a low of 0.3 MW to a high of 7.5 MW, for an aggregate nameplate capacity of 45.3 MW;
2) two oil-fired gas turbines with a combined nameplate capacity of 26.5 MW, and 3} one dicsel peaking unit with a
nameplate capacity of 2.4 MW, which is currently in a deactivated status.

;Joim‘!y owned units: Our jointly owned units include: 1) a 1.7303 percent interest in Unit #3 of the Millstone Nuclear Power
‘Station, a 1,155 MW nuclear generating facility; 2) a 20 percent interest in Joseph C. McNeil, a 54 MW wood-, gas- and oil-
Ifired unit; and 3) a 1.7769 percent joint-ownership in Wyman #4, a 609 MW oil-fired unit. We account for these units on a
Eproportionate consolidated basis using our ownership interest in each facility. Therefore, our share of the assets, liabilities
and operating expenses of each facility are included in the corresponding accounts in our consolidated financial statements.

!

s Dominion Nuclear Connecticut ("DNC") is the lead owner of Millstone Unit #3 with about 93.4707 percent of the plant joint-
ownership. The plant's operating license has been extended from November 2025 to November 2045, We have an external
trust dedicated to funding our share of future decommissioning costs, but we have suspended contributions to the Millstone

! Unit #3 Trust Fund because the minimum NRC funding requirements are being met or exceeded. If a need for additional

| decommissioning funding is necessary, we will be obligated to resume contributions to the Trust Fund.

" In October 2007, DNC filed an application with the NRC for a 7 percent uprate at Millstone Unit #3. If approved, we will be
i responsible for our share of the costs for the uprate and will receive our share of additional power from the uprate. The

plant's next refueling outage is scheduled for the fall of 2008. During that outage, DNC plans to repair cracks that have been
. identified in the high-pressure turbines. Based on DNC's estimated repair costs, we do not expect our share of the costs to be
| material.

[

t
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In January 2004, DNC filed, on behalf of itself and the two minority owners, including us, a lawsuit against the Department
of Energy ("DOE") seeking recovery of costs related to storage of spent nuclear fuel arising from the failure of the DOE to
comply with its obligations to commence accepting such fuel in 1998. A trial is expected to be held in August 2008. We
continue to pay our share of the DOE Spent Fuel assessment expenses levied on actual generation and will share in recovery
from the lawsuit, if any, in proportion to our ownership interest.

Other: Other sources of energy are largely related to short-term purchases from third parties in New England and the
wholesale markets in ISO-New England. On an hourly basis, power is sold or bought through ISO-New England to balance
our resource output and load requirements through the normal settlement process. On a monthly basis, we aggregate hourly
sales and purchases and record them as operating revenues or purchased power, respectively. We are also charged for a
number of ancillary services through 1SO-New England, including costs for congestion, line losses, reserves and regulation
that vary in part due to changes in the price of energy. The method for settling the cost of congestion and other ancillary
services is administered by ISO-New England and is subject to change. Congestion and loss charges represent the cost of
delivering energy to customers and reflect energy prices, customer demand, and the demands on transmission and generation
resources.

In December 2006, ISO-New England implemented a new market mechanism referred to as the Forward Capacity Market
("FCM") to compensate owners of new and existing generation capacity, including demand reduction. ISO-New England
believes that higher capacity payments in constrained areas will encourage the development of new generation where needed.
Capacity requirements for load-serving entities, including us, are based on each entity's proportionate share of ISO-New
England's prior year coincident peak demand. Based on specified rates through May 2010, we expect net FCM charges of
approximately $1.5 million or more in 2008 and 2009.

We continue to monitor potential changes to the rules in the wholesale energy markets in New England. Such changes could
have a material impact on power supply costs.

Decommissioned Nuclear Plants We own, through equity investments, 2 percent of Maine Yankee, 2 percent of
Connecticut Yankee and 3.5 percent of Yankee Atomic. As of December 31, 2007, all three have completed
decommissioning activities and their operating licenses have been amended to operation of Independent Spent Fuel Storage
Installation. They remain separately responsible for safe storage of each plant's spent nuclear fuel and waste at the sites until
the DOE meets its obligation to remove the material from the site or until some other suitable storage arrangement can be
developed. All three collect decommissioning and closure costs through FERC-approved wholesale rates charged under
power purchase agreements with several New England utilities, including us. We believe, based on historical rate recovery,
our share of decommissioning and closure costs for each plant will continue to be recovered through the regulatory process.
However, if the FERC disallows recovery of any of their costs, there is a risk that the PSB would disallow recovery of our
share in retail rates,

Based on estimates from Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic as of December 31, 2007, the total
remaining approximate cost for decommissioning and other costs of each plant is as follows: $100.5 million for Maine
Yankee, $350.1 million for Connecticut Yankee and $82.3 million for Yankee Atomic. Our share of the remaining
obligations amounts to $2.0 million for Maine Yankee, $7.0 mitlion for Connecticut Yankee and $2.9 million for Yankee
Atomic. These estimates may be revised from time to time based on information available regarding future costs.

On October 4, 2006, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims issued a judgment in a spent nuclear fuel litigation, in the amounts of
$34.2 million, $32.9 million and $75.8 million for Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic, respectively, for
years prior to 2002 for Maine Yankee, and 2001 for Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic. This judgment in favor of
these companies relates to the alleged failure of the DOE to provide for a permanent facility to store spent nuclear fuel. On
December 4, 2006, the DOE filed its notice of appeal of the trial court's decision. As a result, none of the companies have
recognized the damage awards on their books. On December 14, 2007, all three companies filed complaints against the DOE
seeking damages starting from 2002 for Maipe Yankee, and 2001 for Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic, through a
future trial date. We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of this decision on appeal or the subsequent complaints.
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TRANSMISSION MATTERS

As a load-serving entity, we are required to share the costs related to the region's high-voltage transmission system through
payments made under the NEPOOL Open Access Transmission Tariff ("NOATT"). Our allocation of NOATT costs, based
on our percentage of network load, is a small fraction of New England's obligation. While this regional cost-sharing approach
reduces our costs related to qualifying Vermont transmission upgrades, we pay a share of the costs for new and existing
N?ATT—quahfymg facilities located elsewhere in New England.

There are a number of major transmission projects in Vermont being undertaken by Transco, some of which are already in
service. Many of these projects, including most of the so-called Northwest Reliability Project, have been approved by
NEPOOL for NOATT cost-sharing treatment. However, certain future Vermont transmission facilities may not gualify for
such cost sharing, and those costs will be charged locally (within Vermont) rather than regionally. Our share of such costs
will be determined by the classification of each project; some will be charged directly to specific utilities and some will be
shared by all Vermont utilities,

Transco has been working with us on a project to solve load serving and reliability issues related to a 46-kV transmission line
extendmg from Bennington to Brattleboro, Vermont, which we refer to as the Southern Loop. It serves about 25 percent of
our load. We initiated a public involvement process in late 2005 to gain input on how best to improve and ensure reliable
electric service in southern Vermont. Based on input from this process, in the fourth quarter of 2006 we filed a petition with
the PSB for approval to purchase and install two synchronous condensers along the Southern Loop. The condensers are
rotating machines similar to motors used to control power flow on electric power transmission systems without burning fuel.
The project is expected to cost approximately $11.0 million and, subject to PSB approval, we plan to begin construction in
2?08 The condensers wilt improve the reliability in the Stratton/Manchester area of the Southern Loop. VELCO is also
working with us on a proposal to construct additional transmission lines in the area in order to improve reliability to the
Brattleboro area of the Southern Loop. This includes the construction of a new line in the existing 345 kV corridor between
Vermont Yankee in Vernon and our substation in Coolidge, and construction of a new substation in West Dummerston.
Non-transmission alternatives including demand side management and generation are also being evaluated as a way to solve
tl;le reliability issues or defer the need for other transmission improvements.

'I'he Regional Transmission Organization ("RTO") for New England began operating on February 1, 2005 pursuant to FERC
Order 2000. We are a participant in this organization, which provides high-voltage transmission service on so-called Pool
Transmlssxon Facilities ("PTF") on a non-discriminatory basis throughout New England. Currently, costs are allocated for
Reglonal Network Service ("RNS") cach month based on each participant's percentage of network load. All utilities pay the
same rate for facilities put into service after 1996, while the rate paid by a utility for facilities already in service at the end of
1996 is based, in part, on the cost of that utility's local portion of the PTF system. By March 2008, all users will pay the same
rate for all facilities.

lﬂ'nder the RTO, Highgate and related facilities, owned by a number of Vermont utilities and Transco, are classified as the
Highgate Transmission Facility with a five-year phase-in of RNS reimbursement treatment. At the end of the phase-in
penod our net cost for Highgate will be based on our NEPOOL load ratio (about 2 percent) rather than our 46 percent
ownershxp share of the facilities. Our share of reimbursements is expected to be about $1.6 million to $1.8 million for 2008
and beyond.

RECENT ENERGY POLICY INITIATIVES

In 2006, legislation was passed to encourage alternative regulation of utilities. It is intended to decouple the financial success
of utilities from increased electricity sales, thereby encouraging energy conservation, and to establish a reasonably balanced
systcm of risks and rewards to encourage utilities to operate as efficiently as possible. In August 2007, we proposed an
zlalternanve regulation plan. See Retail Rates and Alternative Regulation for additional information.

In 2007, a broad public engagement process led by the DPS was held in an effort to better understand Vermonters' views on
energy issues. A report on this public input process was presented by the DPS to the Vermont Legislature, the governor and
state utilities in January 2008. The report showed a high level of support for new renewable generation, broad concems
about the environmental impacts of fossil- and nuclear-fueled generation, and continued support for energy efficiency
programs. The report, along with regulatory and legislative policy direction, will help inform our choices as we consider
'future power supply options.
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In 2007, the Vermont Legislature passed Act 79, An Act Relating to Establishing the Vermont Telecommunications Authority
to Advance Broadband and Wireless Communications Infrastructure throughout the State. This new law sets a goal of
providing statewide broadband coverage by the end of 2010. The PSB is now examining the use or role of the electric
utilities to facilitate deployment of high-speed telecommunications infrastructure and services throughout the state. In
addition, the Vermont Legislature is currently considering a bill to: 1) clarify rate and tariff policies for telecommunication
equipment on utility transmission and generation facilities; 2) better coordinate utility and telecommunication planning for
new construction of distribution facilities; and 3) establish a mechanism for expediting the installation of communications
facilities within existing easements.

On February 28, 2008, the Vermont Legislature gave final approval to S. 209, "the Vermont Energy Efficiency and
Affordability Act." The bill is expected to be signed into law by the governor in 2008. Provisions of the bill include, among
other things:

® A requirement that, by 2013, new renewable resources must provide electricity equivalent to 5 percent of the state's
total retail electricity sales in 2005. This is in addition to a current requirement that such resources must produce the
electricity equivalent to the state's incremental sales growth after 2005.

* Expansion of the state's net metering law by increasing the size of qualifying facilities from a capacity of 15 kW to
250 kW, and by authorizing group net metering for customers within a single utility service area;

* A requirement that Vermont electric utilities install advanced smart metering equipment capable of sending two-way
signals and sufficient to support advanced time-of-use pricing. (We are working with regulators to develop an
appropriate smart-metering plan and schedule for implementation in our service territory.)

® Anexpansion of the state's energy efficiency programs from the existing focus on electricity use to include thermal
uses such as oil, propane, natural gas and wood used to heat homes and businesses. Funding for these new programs
comes from existing sources, along with expected revenues from the Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative,

® A state goal for all energy sectors to, by the year 2025, produce 25 percent of the energy consumed within the state
from renewable energy sources, particularly from Vermont's farms and forests.

Currently there are hearings in the Vermont Legislature regarding Vermont Yankee, including changes to its corporate
structure, and how to devise a plant inspection process to reassure Vermonters that it can continue to operate safely and
reliably. By state law, the Vermont Legislature and the PSB must affirmatively approve continued operation of Vermont
Yankee after its license expires in March 2012.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
See Note 1 - Business Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We consider our most significant market-related risks to be associated with wholesale power markets, equity markets and
interest rates. Fair and adequate rate relief through cost-based rate regulation can limit our exposure to market volatility.
Below is a discussion of the primary market-related risks associated with our business.

Wholesale Power Market Price Risk Our most significant power supply contracts are with Hydro-Quebec and VYNPC,
Combined, these contracts amounted to approximately 70 to 80 percent of our total energy (mWh) purchases in 2007, 2006
and 2005. The contracts are described in more detail in Item 7, Power Supply Matters and Item 8, Note 16 - Commitments
and Contingencies. Summarized information regarding power purchases under these contracts follows,

2007 2006 2003
Expires mWh /mWh mWh $/mWh mWh /mWh
Hydro-Quebec (a) 2016 998,411 $64.97 998,365  $64.40 832,357 $70.16
VYNPC (b) 2012 1,361,754 $41.33 1,689,390 $41.78 1,430,155 $40.05

(a) Under the terms of the Hydro-Quebec contract, there is a defined energy rate that escalates at the general inflation rate based on
the U.S. Gross National Product Implicit Price Deflator ("GNPIPD") and capacity rates are constant with the potential for small
reductions if interest rates decrease below average values set in prior years.

(b} Under the terms of the contract with VYNPC the energy price generally ranges from 3.9 cents to 4.5 cents per kilowatt-hour
through 2012. Effective November 2003, the contract prices are subject to a "low-market adjuster” mechanism.
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Currently, our power forecast shows energy purchase and production amounts in excess of our load requirements through
2011. Because of this projected power surplus, we enter into forward sale transactions from time to time to reduce price

' volatility of our net power costs. The effect of increases or decreases in average wholesale power market prices is highty
dependent on whether or not our net power resources at the time are sufficient to meet load requirements. [f they are not
sufficient to meet load requirements, such as when power from Vermont Yankee is not available as expected, we are in a
purchase position. In that case, increased wholesale power market prices would increase our net power costs. If our net
power resources are sufficient to meet load requirements, we are in a sale position. In that case, increased wholesale power
market prices would decrease our net power costs.

We account for some of our power contracts as derivatives under the guidance of SFAS No. 133, These derivatives are
described in Item 7, Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates. Summarized information related to the fair value of power

|
contract derivatives is shown in the table below (dollars in thousands):
I

Forward Forward Hydro-Quebec
f Sale Contracts  Purchase Contracts Sellback #3 Total
Total fair value at December 31, 2006 - unrealized loss $(3,962) $(304) $(3,731) $(7,997)
Plus new contracts entered into during 2007 409 (502) - (93)
Less amounts settled during 2007 1,329 304 - 1,633
Chfinge in fair value during 2007 187 21 {861) {653)
Tolal fair value at December 31, 2007 - unrealized loss, net 5(2,037 3(481) $(4,592) $(7,110)
| Solrce Over-the- Over-the-counter Quoted market
| : counter quotations  data and valuation
| F quotations methodologies
| Esnmated fair value at December 31, 2007 for changes in
pmjected market price:
10 percent increase $(5,045) $51 $(9,262) $(14,256)
10 percent decrease $970 5(1,012) $(1,690) $(1,732)

Per a PSB-approved Accounting Order, changes in fair value of derivatives are recorded as deferred charges or deferred
credlts on the Consolidated Balance Sheets dependmg on whether the fair value is an unrealized loss or unrealized gain, with
an offsetting amount recorded as a decrease or increase in the related derivative asset or liability.

Investment Price Risk We are subject to investment price risk due to equity market fluctuations and interest rate changes.
Those risks are described in more detail below.

f

Ilnterest Rate Risk: Interest rate changes could impact the value of the debt securities in our pension and postretirement
medical trust funds and the calculations related to estimated pension and other benefit liabilities, affecting pension and other
beneﬁt expenses, contributions to the external trust funds and ultimately our ability to meet future pension and postretirement
benefit obligations. We have adopted a diversified investment policy whose goal is to mitigate these market impacts. See
Iltem 7, Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, and Item 8, Note 14 - Pension and Postretirement Medical Benefits.

Interest rate changes could also impact the value of the debt securities in our Millstone Unit #3 decommissioning trust. At
' December 31, 2007, the trust held debt securities in the amount of $1.4 million,

hs of December 31, 2007, we had $16.3 million of Industrial Development Revenue bonds outstanding, of which $10.8
;million have an interest rate that floats monthly with the short-term credit markets and $5.5 million that floats every five

. years with comparable credit markets. Our short-term note of $53.0 million currently carries an adjustable borrowing rate.
’All other utility debt has a fixed rate. There are no interest locks or swap agreements in place.

The table below provides information about interest rates on our long-term debt, Industrial Development Revenue bonds and
short-term note (dollar§ in millions).

| Expected Maturity Date
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafier Total
Fixed Rate (8) $6.9 $6.7 6.7 $6.1 $5.7 $58.9 $91.0
’ Average Fixed Interest Rate (%) 6.22% 6.22% 6.22%  6.36% 6.50% 7.08%
| Variable Rate (§) $2.0 $0.5 504 $0.4 $0.3 $0.7 %43
Average Variable Rate (%) 4.68% 343% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 3.42%

!
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Equity Market Risk: As of December 31, 2007, our pension trust held marketable equity securities in the amount of $60.6
million, our postretirement medical trust funds held marketable equity securities in the amount of $8.7 million, and our
Millstone Unit #3 decommissioning trust held marketable equity securities of $4.2 million. We also maintain a variety of
insurance policies in a Rabbi Trust with a current value of $7.5 million to support various supplemental retirement and
deferred compensation plans. The current values of certain policies are affected by changes in the equity market.
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CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Itein 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
]
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To ;lhe Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Central Vermont Public Service Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Central Vermont Public Service Corporation and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in common stock equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 3 1,2007. Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15.
These consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated
ﬁmfmcial statement schedule based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Vermont Transco LLC
("Transco"), and Vermont Electronic Power Company, Inc. ("Velco"), the Company's inivestments in which are accounted for
by use of the equity method. The Company’s equity of $78,784,000, and $11,534,000 in Transco and Velco and as of
Dc;cember 31, 2007, respectively, and of $4,482,000, and $1,404,000 in these companies' net income for the year-ended
December 31, 2007 are included in the accompanying consolidated financial staternents. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Transco, and Velco, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

|
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
Stz'ites). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablz assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
anéounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In-our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
a.llI material respects, the financial position of Central Vermont Public Service Corporation and subsidiaries as of December
31,2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
Décember 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in
our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
sta‘itements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 158, Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, as of December 31,
2006.

|

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,
ef[fective January 1, 2007.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in fnternal
Clonrro! - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 11, 2008 expresses an unqualified opinion on the Company's interrizl control over financial reporting.

/s;r’ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 11, 2008
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CENTRAL YERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{dollars in thousands, except share data)

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Purchased Power - affiliates
Purchased Power - other sources
Production
Transmission - affiliates
Transmission - other
Other operation
Maintenance
Depreciation
Taxes other than income
Income tax expense (benefit)
Total Operating Expenses

Utility Operating Income

Other Income
Equity in camnings of affiliates
Allowance for equity funds during construction
Other income
Other deductions
Income tax expense
Total Other Income

Interest Expense

Interest on long-term debt

Other interest

Allowance for borrowed funds during construction
Total Interest Expense

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
(includes gain on disposal of $5,607 in 20053)

Net Income

Dividends declared on preferred stock

Earnings available for common stock

Per Common Share Data:
Basic earnings from continuing operations
Basic earnings from discentinued operations
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings from continuing operations
Diluted earnings from discontinued operations
Diluted earnings per share

Average shares of common stock outstanding - basic
Average shares of common stock outstanding - diluted
Dividends declared per share of common stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2007

$329,107

58,361
102,361
11,700
5,144
16,524
53,457
27,937
15,217
15,140

~—5,291
311,132

17,975

6,430
47
3,813
(2,481)

(1.458)

6,351

7,197
1,344

(19
§,522

15,804

15,804
368

10,185,930
10,350,191
$0.92
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For the Years Ended

2006

$325,738

75,527
93,921
9,728
1,174
13,519
48,682
22,039
16,498
14,358
8,569
304415

21,323

3,240
120
5,487
(2,401)
(1437}
5,009

7,196
1,074

(39)
3,231

18,101

251
18,352
368

517,984

$1.65
0.02
$L67
$1.64
002
$1.66

10,756,027
10,827,182
$0.69

2005

$311,359

61,140
110,503
10,572
2,692
13,245
56,591
20,025
16,375
13,912
(2.264)
302,791

8,568

1,869
79

4,12
(3,552)
(182)
_ 2,335

7,196
2,323

(26)
9,493

1,410

$0.09
0.40
£0.49
$0.08
_0.40.
3048
12,258,508
12,366,315
$1.15




CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands)
| For the Years Ended

2007 2006 2005
Net Income $15.804 $18,352 $6,346
Ot;her comprehensive income, net of tax:
|
Defined benefit pension and postretirement medical plans
Portion reclassified through amortizations, included in benefit costs and
: recognized in net income:
Actuarial losses,
net of income taxes of $12 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 19 - -
| Prior service cost,
net of income taxes of $9 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 13 - .
Transition benefit obligation,
net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 1 - -
Portion recognized due to year-end remeasurement of
plan assets and obligations:
| Actuarial losses,
net of income taxes of $93 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 136 - -
Prior service cost,
| net of income taxes of $(1) in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 (2) - -
Transition benefit obligation,
net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and 2005 {1 - -
| Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $203 in 2006 and $(50) in 2005 - 285 (74)
| Defined benefit pension plans, net 166 285 (74)
Investment securities
'Unrealized holding gain (loss),
net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $60 in 2006 and $(43} in 2005 - 89 (64)
Less reclassification adjustment for {gains) losses included in net income,
| net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $(45) in 2006 and $215 in 2005 - (69) 316
Foreign currency
Other comprehensive toss from discontinued operations
! net of income taxes of $0 in 2007, $0 in 2006 and $(178) in 2005 - - (462}
) 166 305 {284)
(Fomprehensive Income $15,970 318,657 $6,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31

(dollars in thousands})

Cash flows provided (used) by:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Deduct: Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities;

Equity in earnings of affiliates
Distributions received from affiliates
Depreciation
Amortization of capital leases
Deferred incorne taxes and investment tax credits
Regulatory and other amortization, net
Non-cash employee benefit plan costs
Environmental reserve adjustment
Share-based compensation
Charge related to Rate Order (net of $6.5 million customer refund)
Other non-cash expense and (income), net
Changes in assets and liabilities;
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and unbilled revenues
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase in accounts payable - affiliates
Decrease (increase) in other current assets

Decrease (increase) in special deposits and restricted cash for power collateral

Employee benefit plan funding
Decrease in other current liabilities
Decrease (increase) in other long-term assets
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities and other
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction and plant expenditures
Investments in available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities
Investment in affiliates (Transco)

Acquisition of utility property (Rochester Electric and Vermont Electric Coop)

Investment in discontinued operations

Note receivable repayment from (advanced to) discontinued operations
Decrease {increase) in restricted cash

Return of capital from investments in affiliates and other

Net cash (used for) provided by investing activities of continuing operations

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Treasury stock acquisition - tender offer
Retirement of preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption
Net change in special deposits held for preferred stock redemptions
Common and preferred dividends paid
Proceeds from short-term bridge loan
Proceeds from borrowings under revolving credit facility
Repayments under revolving credit facility
Reduction in capital lease obligations and other

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities of continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Decrease in cash resulting from deconsolidation of Catamount
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by investing activities {(includes proceeds from sales of
discontinued operations, net of transaction costs)
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net cash provided by discontinued operations
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period
* At the end of 2004, assets of discontinued operations included cash of $2.5 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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2007

$15,804

15,804

(6,430)
4,894
15,217
873
2,726
(5,097)
6,794

545
3,434

(366)
(504)
1,183
614
1,519

(7,878)
(2,362)
40

1,086

34,092

(23,663)
(20,797)
20,670
(53,000)

170
{76,620)

2,131

(1,000—)

(9,734
53,000
45,600
(45,600)
{865}

2006 2005
$18,352 $6,346
(251 4,936
18,101 1,410
(3,240) (1,869)
2,106 1,938
16,498 16,375
1,096 1,020
3,820 (1,835)
(3.354) (3,113)
9,997 7,973
(1,609) -
899 108

- 15,312

1,123 500
(5,456) 590
(252) (1,798)
620 638
(761) 793
15,512 (19,094)
(28,420) (6,980)
(893) (6,380)
(169) 127
551 (446)
26,169 5269
(19,504) (17,558)
(256,431) (277,812)
334,390 238,906
(23,291) .
(4,306) -
- (5,900)

- 11,000

883 (883)
359 435
32,100 (51.812)
1,267 1,163
(51,186) -
(2,000) (2,000)
1,000 .
(10,164) (12,140)
18,100 13,400
(18,100) (13,400)
(963) (1,045)
62,046 (14.022)
- (16,373)

- 3,830

- 45,942

- 22,020

- 55419
(3,777) (5,146)
6576 11,722
52,799 -$6,576,




CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{dollars in thousands, except share data)

December 31
2007 2006
ASSETS
Utility plant
Utility plant, at original cost $538,229  $517.816
Less accumulated depreciation 235.465 226,018
Utility plant, at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation 302,764 291,798
Property under capital leases, net 6,788 7,485
Construction work-in-progress 9,611 8,496
Nuclear fuel, net 1.105 1,017
Total utility plant, net 320,268 308,796
Investments and other assets
Investments in affiliates 93,452 39,339
Non-utility property, less accumulated depreciation
($3,681 in 2007 and $4,048 in 2006) 1,646 1,640
Millstone decommissioning trust fund 5,645 5,476
Other 7,504 7.120
Total investments and other assets 108,247 53.575
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,803 2,799
Restricted cash 62 3,081
Special deposits 1,000 1,500
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible accounts
($1,751 in 2007 and $1,707 in 2006) 24,086 27,042
Accounts receivable - affiliates, less allowance for uncollectible accounts
($48 in 2007 and 548 in 2006) 254 73
Unbilled revenues 17,665 16,654
Materials and supplies, at average cost 5,461 5,298
Prepayments 8,942 7,389
Deferred income taxes 3,638 2,899
Assets held for sale - 386
Other current assets 1,788 1,446
Total current assets 66.699 68.567
Deferred charges and other assets
Regulatory assets 31,988 52,179
Other deferred charges - regulatory 8,988 12,127
Other deferred charges and other assets 4.124 5,694
Total deferred charges and other assets 45,100 70,000
TOTAL ASSETS $540,314  $500,938

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Page 43 of 89



CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{(dollars in thousands, except share data)

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization

Common stock, $6 par value, 19,000,000 shares authorized, 12,474,687 issued
and 10,244,559 oulstanding at December 31, 2007 and 12,382,801 issued

and 10,132,826 cutstanding at December 31, 2006
Other patd-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,230,128 shares at December 31, 2007 and
2,249,975 shares at December 31, 2006
Retained eamnings
Total common stock equity
Preferred and preference stock not subject to mandatory redemption
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption
Long-term debt
Capital lease obligations
Total capitalization

Current liabilities
Current portion of preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - affiliates
Notes payable
Nuclear decommissioning costs
Power contract derivatives
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Deferred credits and other liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Deferred investment tax credits
Nuclear decommissioning costs
Asset retirement obligations
Accrued pension and benefit obligations
Power contract derivatives
Other deferred credits - regulatory
Other deferred credits and other liabilities
Total deferred credits and other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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December 31

2007 2006
$74,848  $74,297
56,324 54,225
(378) (544)
(50,734)  (51,186)
108,747 102,560
188,807 179,352
8,054 8,054
2,000 3,000
112,950 115,950
5,889 6,612
317,700 312968
1,000 1,000
3,000 -
6,253 6,382
13,205 12,022
63,800 10,300
2,309 2,737
3,225 1,554
20,761 20336
113,553 54831
33,666 32,467
3,341 3,720
9,580 12,166
3,200 3,041
19,874 37,547
4,592 6,443
9,395 12,687
25,413 25.068
109,061 133,139
$540,314 3500938




[}
I
Balance, Ded!'ember 31, 2004
Net Income |
Other comprehensive loss
Common stock issuance:
Stock compensation plans
Dividend réinvestment plan
Allocation of benefits -
petformance and restricted
plans
Amortization of benefits
performance plans
Amortizatior of benefits
restricted plans
Dividends declared:
Common - $1.15 per share
Cumulative non-redeemable
preferred stock
Amortizatiori of preferred stock
issuance expenses
Balance, December 31, 2005
Net income
Other compr;ehensive income
Adjustment to initially apply
SFAS No. 158, net of tax
Common stock reacquired
Stock options exercised
Share-based compensation:
Common and nonvested
shares
Performance share plans
Dividends declared:
Common - $0.69 per share
Cumulativl: non-redeemable
preferred dtock
Amortization of preferred stock
issuance expenses
Loss on reacquisition of capital
stock |
Balance, December 31, 2006

Cumulative éffect of adoption of

FIN 48
Adjusted balance at January 1,
2007
Net income
Other compzehensive income
Dividend reinvestment plan
Stock options exercised
Share-based|compensation:
Common and nonvested
shares
Performance share plans
Dividends declared:
Commen - $0.92 per share
Cumu]aliv;e non-redeemable
preferred stock
Amortization of preferred stock
issuance expenses
Loss on reacquisition of capital
stock
Balance, December 31, 2007

B

CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN COMMON STOCK EQUITY

Common Stock

Other
Shares Paid-in
Issued Amount Capital
12,193,093 $73,153 $51,964
37,320 224 606
41,822 251 660
(752)
(123)
11,170 67 133
25
12,283,405 $73,695 $£52,513
79,335 476 920
20,061 126 295
473
17
7
12,382,801 $74,297 £54,225
12,382,801 $74,297 $54,225
9,721 58 475
75,775 455 1,097
6,390 38 174
333
17
3
12474687 574,848  $36,324

(dollars in thousands, except share data)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Treasury Stock
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Deferred Retained

Loss Compensation Share Amount Earnings Total
$(130) $(36) - $- $99,702 $224,653
6,346 6,346
(284) {(284)
830
911
(752)
(123)
31 231
(14,099)  (14,099)
(368) (368)
R 25
$(414) $(3) - $- $91,581 $217,370
18,352 18,352
305 305
{435) (435)
2249975 (51.186) (51,186)
1,396
421
3 478
6,971) 6971)
(368) (368)
17
(34) 27
$(544) $- 2,249,975 8(51,186) $102,560 $179,352
120 120
$(544) $- 2,249,975 $(51,186) $102,680 $179,472
15,804 15,804
166 166
(19,847} 452 985
1,552
212
333
(9.366) (9,366)
(368) (368)
17
N 3) -
$(378) —t 2,230,128  5(50,734) 5108747 3188307



CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - BUSINESS ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General Description of Business Central Vermont Public Service Corporation ("we”, "us", "CVPS" or the "company") is
engaged in the purchase, production, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity. We are the largest electric utility in
Vermont, serving about 158,000 retail customers in nearly two-thirds of the towns, villages and cities in Vermont. Qur
wholly owned subsidiaries include Custom Investment Corporation, C.V. Realty, Inc., Central Vermont Public Service
Corporation - East Barnet Hydroelectric, Inc. ("East Barnet") and Catamount Resources Corporation ("CRC").

We have equity ownership interests in Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation ("VYNPC"}, Vermont Electric Power
Company, Inc. ("VELCO"), Vermont Transco LLC ("Transco"), Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company ("Maine Yankee"),
Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company ("Connecticut Yankee") and Yankee Atomic Electric Company ("Yankee
Atomic").

Financial Statement Presentation The focus of the Consolidated Statements of Income is on the regulatory treatment of
revenues and expenses as opposed to other enterprises where the focus is on income from continuing operations. Operating
revenues and expenses (including related income taxes) are those items that ordinarily are included in the determination of
revenue requirements or amounts recoverable from customers in rates. Operating expenses represent the costs of rendering
service to be covered by revenue, before coverage of interest and other capital costs. Other income and deductions include
nonutility operating results, certain expenses judged not to be recoverable through rates, related income taxes and costs (i.c.
interest expense) that utility operating income is intended to cover through the allowed rate of return on equity rather than as
a direct cost-of-service revenue requirement.

The focus of the Consclidated Balance Sheets is on utility plant and capital because of the capital-intensive nature of the
regulated utility business. The prominent position given to utility plant, capital stock, retained earnings and long-term debt
supports regulated ratemaking concepts in that utility plant is the rate base and capitalization (including long-term debt) is the
basis for determining the rate of return that is applied to the rate base.

Basis of Consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its
subsidiaries in which it has a controlling interest. Inter-company transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Jointly
owned generation and transmission facilities are accounted for on a proportionate consolidated basis using our ownership
interest in each facility. Our share of the assets, liabilities and operating expenses of each facility are included in the
corresponding accounts on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Investments in entities over which we do not maintain a controlling financial interest are accounted for using the equity
method when we have the ability to exercise significant influence over their operations. Under this method, we record our
ownership share of the net income or loss of each investment in our consolidated financial statements. We have concluded
that consolidation of these investments is not required under the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, as revised ("FIN 46R"). See Note 3 - Investments in Affiliates.

Variable Interest Entities The primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity must consolidate the related assets and
liabilities. Transco and VYNPC are variable interest entities; however, we are not the primary beneficiary of these entities.
Our maximum exposure to loss is the amount of our equity investments in Transco and VYNPC. See Note 3 - Investments in
Affiliates.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. In our opinion, areas where significant judgment is exercised include the valuation of unbilled revenue,
pension plan assumptions, nuclear plant decommissioning liabilities, environmental remediation costs, regulatory assets and
liabilities, and derivative contract valuations.
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Regulatory Accounting Our utility operations are regulated by the Vermont Public Service Board ("PSB"), the Connecticut
Department of Public Utility and Control and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), with respect to rates
charged for service, accounting, financing and other matters pertaining to regulated operations. As such, we prepare our
ﬁnzrmcial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation ("SFAS No.
71™. The application of SFAS No. 71 results in differences in the timing of recognition of certain expenses from those of
other businesses and industries. In order for us to report our results under SFAS No. 71, our rates must be designed to
recover our costs of providing service, and we must be able to collect those rates from customers. If rate recovery of these
costs becomes unlikely or uncertain, whether due to competition or regulatory action, this accounting standard would no
longer apply to our regulated operations. In the event we determine that we no longer meet the criteria for applying SFAS
No. 71, the accounting impact would be an extraordinary non-cash charge to operations of an amount that would be material
unless stranded cost recovery is allowed through a rate mechanism. Based on a current evaluation of the factors and
condmons expected to impact future cost recovery, we believe future recovery of our regulatory assets is probable. Criteria
that could gwe rise to the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 include: 1) increasing competition that restricts a company's ability
to establish prices to recover specific costs, and 2) a significant change in the manner in which rates are set by regulators
from cost-based regulation to another form of regulation. In the event that we no longer meet the criteria under SFAS No. 71
and there is not a rate mechanism to recover these costs, the impact would, among other things, result in an extraordinary
charge to operations of $16.9 million pre-tax at December 31, 2007. See Note 7 - Retail Rates and Regulatory Accounting
for additional information.

Ul?regulated Business Our non-regulated business, operated by Eversant Corporation ("Eversant"), a subsidiary of CRC, is
SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc., a water heater rental business operating in portions of Vermont and New
Ha{mpshire. Results of operations of Eversant and CRC are included in Other Income and Other Deductions on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Income Taxes In accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ("SFAS No. 109"), we recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the cumulative effect of all temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts and
the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities using the tax rate expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse. Investment tax credits associated with utility plant are deferred and amortized ratably to income over the lives of the
rellated properties. We record a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets if we determine that it is more likely than not that
such tax assets will not be realized.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of
Fz;lSB Statement No. 109 ("FIN 48™). FIN 48 clarifies the methodology to be used in estimating and reporting amounts
135001ated with uncertain tax positions, including interest and penaltics. We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 as required.
Upon adoption and in accordance with FIN 48, we recognized the cumulative effect of approximately $0. 1 million as an
mcrease in the beginning balance of retained earnings related to a decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. A
reconcnhanon of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits follows (dollars in thousands):

Bz.tlance at January 1, 2007 $669

Reductions from lapse of the statute of limitations (39)
Gross amount of increase as a result of current year tax positions 1.240
Balance at December 31,2007 31,870

At December 31, 2007 we had $0.4 million of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective tax rate if recognized.
D;uring the year we determined that we would file amended returns related to the 2003 - 2006 tax years and increased
um'ecognlzed tax benefits by an additional $1.4 million. The unrecognized tax benefits established for the amended returns
were subsequently reduced by $0.2 million during the third and fourth quarters of 2007 due to a true-up of the benefits
previously recorded with the filed returns as well as part of the uncertainty of the tax position becoming certain via the
passage of time. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, the disallowance of this item would not affect the
effective tax rate.

Vx:’e recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as interest expense and penalties as other deductions. Accrued

iriterest related to unrecognized tax benefits amounted to less than $0.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and reflects the

current year net interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income, which was less than $0.1 million. The tax years

2003 2006 remain open to examination by major taxing jurisdictions, which include the Internal Revenue Service and the
F
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states of New York, New Hampshire, Maine, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Idaho, Virginia and Vermont. The Internal
Revenue Service is currently examining the 2003, 2004 and 2005 tax years and there are no proposed audit adjustments. Tax
positions that are likely to reduce unrecognized tax benefits within 12 months of the reporting date are immaterial.

Revenue Recognition Revenues from the sale of electricity to retail customers are recorded when service is rendered or
electricity is distributed. These are based on monthly meter readings, and estimates are made to accrue unbilled revenue at
the end of each accounting peried. We record contractual or firm wholesale sales in the month that power is delivered. We
also engage in hourly sales and purchases in the wholesale markets administered by the New England Independent System
Operator ("ISO-New England") through the normal settlement process. On a monthly basis, we aggregate these hourly sales
and hourly purchases and report them as operating revenue and operating expenses.

Purchased Power We record the cost of power obtained under long-term contracts as operating expenses. These contracts
do not convey to us the right to use the related property, plant or equipment. We engage in short-term purchases with other
third parties and record them as operating expenses in the month the power is delivered. We also engage in hourly purchases
through ISO-New England’s normal settlement process. These are included in operating expenses.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets, including our investments
in nuclear generating companies, our unregulated investments, and our interests in jointly owned generating facilities, when
events and circumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of such assets is considered impaired when the
anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such an asset is separately identifiable and is less than its carrying value. In that
event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. No
impairments of long-lived assets were recorded in 2007 or 2006.

Utility Plant Utility plant is recorded at original cost. Replacements of retirement units of property are charged to utility
plant. Maintenance and repairs, including replacements not qualifying as retirement units of property, are charged to
maintenance expense. The costs of renewals and improvements of property units are capitalized. The original cost of units
retired, net of salvage value, are charged to accumulated provision for depreciation. The primary components of utility plant
at December 3! follow (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Wholly owned electric plant in service:
Distribution $288,548 $275,457
Hydre facilities 47,759 46,488
Transmission 43,230 41,280
General 33572 33,312
Intangible plant 6,776 3,574
Other 4,576 4303
Sub-total wholly owned electric plant in service 424,461 404,414
Jointly owned generation and transmission units 110,830 110,496
Completed construction 2,895 2,863
Held for future use 43 43
Utility plant, at original cost 538,229 517,816
Accumulated depreciation (235,465) (226,018)
Property under capital leases, net 6,788 7,485
Construction work-in-progress 9.611 8,496
Nuclear fuel, net 1,108 1,017
Total Utility Plant, net $320,268 $308,796

Property Under Capital Leases We record our commitments with respect to the Hydro-Quebec Phase I and 11 transmission
facilities, and other equipment, as capital leases. At December 31, 2007 Property under Capital Leases was comprised of
$24.4 million of original cost less $17.6 million of accumulated amortization. At December 31, 2006 Property under Capital
Leases was comprised of $24.2 million of original cost less $16.7 million of accumulated amortization. See Note 16 -
Commitments and Contingencies.

Depreciation We use the straight-line remaining life method of depreciation. The total composite depreciation rate was 2.89
percent of the cost of depreciable utility plant in 2007, 3.19 percent in 2006 and 3.18 percent in 2005.
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Allowance for Funds During Censtruction Allowance for funds during construction ("AFUDC") is a non-cash item that is
included in the cost of utility plant and represents the cost of borrowed and equity funds used to finance construction. Our
AFUDC rates were 8.6 percent in 2007, 8.4 percent in 2006 and 8.4 percent in 2005, The portion of AFUDC attributable to
borrowed funds is recorded as a reduction of interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. The cost of equity
funds is recorded as other income on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

As'Set Retirement Obligations Changes to asset retirement obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets follow (dollars in
thousands)

2007 2006
Asset retirement obligations at January 1 $3,041 $4,059
Revisions in estimated cash flows {2) (1,184)
Ac'cretion 235 178
Liabilities settled during the period (74) (12}
Asset retirement obligations at December 31 $3,200 33,041

Wh have legal retirement obligations for decommissioning related to our joint-owned nuclear plant, Millstone Unit #3, and
ha}fe an external trust fund dedicated to funding our share of future costs. The year-end aggregate fair value of the trust fund
was $5.6 million in 2007 and $5.5 million in 2006, and is included in Investments and Other Assets on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

W;e consider our past practices, industry practices, management's intent and the estimated economic lives of the assets in
determining whether conditional asset retirement obligations can be reasonably estimated. Asset retirement obligations are
recognized for items that can be reasonably estimated such as asbestos removal, disposal of polychlorinated biphenyls in
certain transformers and breakers, and mercury in batteries and certain meters. We have not recorded an asset retirement
()b'ligation associated with asbestos abatement at certain of our sites because the range of time over which we may settle these
ob'ligations is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated.

Nhn—!egal Removal Costs: Our regulated operations collect removal costs in rates for certain utility plant assets that do not
have associated legal asset retirement obligations. Non-legal removal costs of about $9.0 million in 2007 and $8.5 million in
2Q06 are included in Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Envnronmental Liabilities We are engaged in various operations and activities that subject us to inspection and supervision

by both federal and state regulatory authorities including the United States Environmental Protection Agency. Our policy is

to accrue a liability for those sites where costs for remediation, monitoring and other future activities are probable and can be
reasonably estimated. See Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies.

D'erivative Financial Instruments We account for certain power contracts as derivatives under the provisions of SFAS No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted and SFAS No. 149,
A'{nendmem of Statement 133 Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, (collectively "SFAS No. 133"). These
staternents require that derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. At December 31, 2007, our power contracts
that are derivatives included: 1) one long-term purchased power contract that allows the seller to repurchase specified
allnounts of power with advance notice ("Hydro-Quebec Sellback #3"); 2) seven forward sale contracts of various durations;
and 3) one long-term forward purchase contract. At December 31, 2006, our power contracts that are derivatives included: 1)
Hydro-Quebec Sellback #3; 2) one long-term forward sale contract; and 3) one short-term forward purchase contract. We
enter into forward sale contracts to reduce price volatility, since our long-term power forecasts show energy purchases and
productlon in excess of load requirements. We enter into forward purchase contracts for replacement energy during Vermont

Yankee scheduled refueling outages.

The estimated fair values of power contract derivatives are based on over-the-counter quotes or broker quotes at the end of
the reporting period, except for Hydro-Quebec Sellback #3, which is valued using a binomial tree model and quoted market
data when available, along with appropriate valuation methodologies. At December 31, 2007, the estimated fair value of
three of the nine power contract derivatives was an unrealized loss of $7.8 million and the estimated fair value of the
remaining six was an unrealized gain of $0.7 million, for a net unrealized loss of $7.1 million. At December 31, 2006, the
e.l'stimated fair value of all power contract derivatives was an unrealized loss of $8.0 million.
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We are able to economically hedge our exposure to congestion charges that result from constraints on the transmission
system with Financial Transmission Rights ("FTRs"}. FTRs are awarded to the successful bidders in periodic auctions
administered by ISO-New England, in which we participate. We have determined that FTRs are derivatives. The estimated
fair value of FTRs that we held at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was zeroc since their auction clearing prices
approximated fair value. We account for FTRs in the month that they settle in ISO-New England; these are included in
Purchased Power on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Based on a PSB-approved Accounting Qrder, we record the changes in fair value of power contract derivatives as deferred
charges or deferred credits on the balance sheet, depending on whether the fair value is an unrealized loss or gain. The
corresponding offsets are recorded as current and long-term assets or liabilities depending on the duration.

Share-Based Compensation We adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123R"), on January 1, 2006,
as required. SFAS No. 123R replaced SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and superseded APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. We clected the modified prospective method, so prior periods
are not revised, Under SFAS No. 123R, share-based compensation costs are measured at the grant date based on the fair
value of the award and recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. We had previously
accounted for share-based compensation costs under APB No. 25 and related guidance. No compensation expense was
recognized for stock options granted in periods prior to January 1, 2006 because they were granted at the market value of the
underlying shares on the date of grant, See Note 8 - Share-Based Compensation.

The table below illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value method had been applied to ail
stock-based compensation, prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123R (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts).

2005
Earmnings available for common stock, as reported $5,978
Add: Share-based compensation expense included in reported net income, net of tax 62
Deduct: Share-based compensation expense under fair value method, net of tax 192
Pro forma net income 55,848
Earnings per share:
Basic - as reported $0.49
Basic - pro forma $0.48
Diluted - as reported $0.48
Diluted - pro forma $0.47

Pension and Benefits Our defined benefit pension plans and postretirement welfare benefit plans are accounted for in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 158, Emplovers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ("SFAS No. 158") and FASB Staff Position ("FSP")
FAS 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003. We use the fair value method to value all asset classes included in our pension and
postretirement medical benefit trust funds. See Note 14 - Pension and Postretirement Medical Benefits for more information.
Also see Recent Accounting Pronouncements below.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (" AOCL") The after-tax components of accumulated other comprehensive loss
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 follows (dollars in thousands):

Unrealized Losses on

Pension and Available-for-sale AOCL
Other Benefits Securities After-tax
Balance at December 31, 2005 $(394) $(20) $(414)
Additional minimum pension liability, net 394 - 394
Adoption of SFAS 158 (544) - (544)
Loss on investments - 20 20
Balance at December 31, 2006 $(544 $- $(544)
Pension and postretirement medical benefit costs, net 166 - 166
Balance at December 31, 2007 $(378) $- 2378}
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Calsh and Cash Equivalents We consider all liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
acquired to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash in banks and money market
funds.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash includes funds held by ISO-New England for performance assurance requirements
described in Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies.

Sp;ecial Deposits Special deposits include mandatory sinking fund payments of $1.0 million in 2007 and in 2006 for our
pre‘ferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. In 2006 it also included collateral payments we make under performance
assurance requirements for certain power contracts as described in Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies.

Subplemental Financial Statement Data Supplemental financial information for the accompanying financial statements is
provided below.

Ot:her Income: The components of Other income on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31
follow (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Int;crest on lemporary investments $273 $1,603 $1,311
Non-utility revenue and non-operating rental income 1,842 1,878 1,932
Amhortization of contributions in aid of construction - tax adder 951 888 843
Otlher interest and dividends n 51 584
Regulatory asset carrying costs - - {653)
Gain on sale of non-utility property 105 317 12
Miscellaneous other income 270 290 92

T?tal $3.813  §5437 34,121

Other Deductions: The components of Other deductions on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
D?cember 31 follow {dollars in thousands):

! 2007 2006 2005
Supplemental retirement benefits and insurance 3785 $568 $709
Nion-utility expenses 1,183 1,281 1,226
Reéalized losses on available-for-sale securities - 151 573
Vermont Yankee fuel rod disallowance - 2005 Rate Order - - 403
M;iscellaneous other deductions 513 401 641
Total 2,481 52,401 $3,552

Other Current Liabilities: The components of Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31
fdllow (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Dleferred compensation plans and other $2,655 $2,889
A’ccrued employee-related costs 4,367 4,136
Other taxes and Energy Efficiency Utility 3,264 3,169
Qash concentration account - outstanding checks 740 1,332
Qbligation under capital leases 899 873
Miscellaneous accruals 8,836 7.937

'Il'otal 320,761 $20,336
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Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities: The components of Other deferred credits and other liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 follow (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Environmental reserve 51,097 $1,752
Non-legal removal costs 8,990 8.474
Contribution in aid of construction - tax adder 5,423 5,229
Reserve for loss on power contract 8,371 9,567
Accrued income taxes 718 -
Provision for rate refund 778 -
Other 36 46
Total 825413 525,068

Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock: The timing of common stock dividend declarations fluctuates whereas the
dividend payments are made on a quarterly basis. In 2007, we declared and paid cash dividends of 92 cents per share of
common stock. In 2006, we declared cash dividends of 69 cents per share of common stock, and paid cash dividends of 92
cents per share. In 2005, we declared cash dividends of $1.15 per share and paid cash dividends of 92 cents per share of
common stock.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information: Cash paid for interest and income tax as of December 31 follows (dollars in
thousands):

2007 2006 2008
Interest {net of amounts capitalized) $8,073 $8,109 $8,886
Income taxes (net of refunds) $6,162 $6,300 $6,086

Construction and plant expenditures on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows reflect actual payments made during the
periods. Construction and plant-related expenditures are accrued at the end of each reporting period. At December 31, 2007,
$0.9 million of construction and plant-related accruals were included in Accounts Payable, and $0.3 million was included in
Other Current Liabilities. At December 31, 2006, $0.5 million of construction and plant-related accruals were included in
Accounts Payable, and $0.4 million was included in Other Current Liabilities.

We maintain a cash concentration account for payments related to our routine business activities. The book overdraft amount
resulting from outstanding checks is recorded as a current liability at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the book
overdraft position are reflected in operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. In 2003,
$57.9 million of proceeds received from the sale of discontinued operations, net of transaction costs, was reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. In 2007, we changed our presentation of the sale proceeds from investing activities
of continued operations to investing activities of discontinued operations to betier reflect the cash flows from continuing
operations under SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. The following Change in Presentation table provides a
reconciliation of amounts as originally reported to amounts as reclassified on the 2005 Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows.

As Originally Reclassification AS
Reported Amounts Reclassified

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations,

net of transaction costs $57.914 $(57,914) $-
Net cash (used for) provided by investing activities

of continuing operations 6,102 (57.914) (51,812)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash provided by investing activities (includes proceeds

from sales of discontinued operations, net of transaction costs) 3(11,972) £57,914 $45,942
Net cash provided by discentinued operations (2,495) 57914 55,419

Page 52 of 89




Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 157 In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ("SFAS No. 157",
which addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for recognition
or dlSClOSUl'e purposes under U.S. GAAP. While the standard does not expand the use of fair value in any new
circumstances, it has applicability to several current accounting standards that require or permit us to measure assets and
llapll:tles at fair value.

SFAS No. 157 is effective for most fair value measurements, other than leases and certain non-financial assets and liabilities,
bnginning January 1, 2008. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as "the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
lm:nsfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date," or the "exit price.”
Accordingly, we must determine that fair value of an asset or liability based on the assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability (if available), and not our assumptions. The identification of market participant
assumptions provides a basis for determining what inputs are to be used for pricing each asset or liability. SFAS 157 also
establlshcs a three-level fair value hierarchy, reflecting the extent to which inputs to the determination of fair value can be
observed, and requires fair value disclosures based upon this hierarchy. We will include these disclosures in the Notes to our
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 157. We do not currently expect that
th(': adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

SFAS No. 158: We adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158 Emplayers’ Accounting for Defined
Bef’nef it Pension and Other Postretivement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ("SFAS
No. 158"y as of December 3, 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires compames to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of
the same date as their fiscal year-end balance sheet. This provision of SFAS No. 158 is effective for CVPS in 2008. We
estimate that changing the annual benefit measurement date from September 30 to December 31 will result in a pre-tax

charge of $1.4 million, of which $0.1 million will be recorded to retained carnings. In the most recent retail rate proceeding
wF: received approval for recovery of the regulated utility portion of the impact resulting from the change in measurement
date Accordingly, we will record a regulatory asset of approximately $1.3 million in the first quarter of 2008 that will be
atlnomzed over five years.

SFAS No. 159: In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Fmancza! Liabilities ("SFAS No. 159"). SFAS No. 159 establishes a fair value option under which entities can elect to report
certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (beginning January 1, 2008 for CVPS). We do not expect that
the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will materially impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

E’ITF 06-04 and EITF 06-10: In September 2006, the FASB issued EITF Issue 06-04, Accounting for Deferred
Compensauon and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements, ("EITF 06-
04") EITF 06-04 requires employers to record a liability for future benefits for endorsement split-dollar life insurance
arrangements that provide a postretirement benefit to an employee. In March 2007, the FASB issued EITF 06-10,
Accounnng for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements ("EITF 06-10"). EITF 06-10 defines
whether an entity should record a liability for the postrenrement benefit associated with a collateral assignment split-dollar
llfe insurance arrangement and how an employer should recognize and measure the related asset. Both EITF issues become
elffecuve for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007, We do not expect that these EITF issues will materially
impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 141(R): In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations ("SFAS No.
141(R)™. SFAS No. 141(R) replaces SFAS No. 141 and establishes principles and requiremems for the recognition and
measurement by acquirers of assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and any
goodwn]l acquired. SFAS No. 141(R) also establishes disclosure requirements to enable financial statement readers to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141{R) is effective as of the beginning of an
enmy s fiscal year that begins on or after December 15, 2008 (beginning January 1, 2009 for CVPS). The impact of applying
SFAS No. 141(R) for periods subsequent to implementation will be dependent upon the nature of any transactions within the
scope of SFAS No. 141(R).

SFAS No. 160 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements - an amendment of ARB No. 51 ("SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No. 160 states that accounting and reporting for
minority interests will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. SFAS No. 160
also established reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that identify and distinguish between the interests
[
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of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 will affect only those entities that have an
outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary. It requires that once a
subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained noncontrolling equity investment in the former subsidiary be initially measured at
fair value. SFAS No. 160 is effective as of the beginning of an entity's first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15,
2008 (beginning January 1, 2009 for CVPS). We have not yet evaluated the impact, if any, that the adoption of SFAS No.
160 may have on our financial statements,

NOTE 2 - EARNINGS PER SHARE ("EPS")

The Consolidated Statements of Income include basic and diluted per share information. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
net income, after preferred dividends, by the weighted-average common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS
follows a similar calculation except that the weighted-average common shares are increased by the number of potentially
dilutive common shares. The table below provides a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in calculating
basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31 (dollars in thousands, except share information):

2007 2006 2005

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS:

Income from continuing operations $15,804 $18,101 $1,410
Dividends declared on preferred stock 368 368 368

Net income from continuing operations available for common stock $15,436 $17.733 $1,042

Denominators for basic and diluted EPS:

Weighted-average basic shares of common stock outstanding 10,185,930 10,756,027 12,258,508
Dilutive effect of stock options 132,302 66,971 106,119
Dilutive effect of performance shares 31.959 4,184 1,688

Weighted-average dituted shares of commion stock outstanding 10,350,191 10,827,182 12,366,315

All outstanding stock options were included in the computation of diluted shares in 2007 because the exercise prices were
below the average market price of the common shares. Qutstanding stock options totaling 60,077 in 2006 and 192,764 in
2005 were excluded from the computation because the exercise prices were above the average market price of the common
shares.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES
Our equity method investments and equity in earnings from those investments follow (dollars in thousands):

Investment Equity in Earnings
At December 31 As of December 31
Direct
Ownership 2007 2006 2007 2006 2005
Vermont Electric Power Company, Inc.:
Common stock 47.05%  $11,257  $11,247
Preferred stock 48.03% 277 138
Subtotal 11,534 11,435 $1,404 $£1,324 $1,389
Vermont Transco LLC {a} 39.79% 78,784 24,430 4,482 1,500 -
Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation 58.85% 2,804 2,825 431 441 388
Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company 2.00% 250 276 94 6 54
Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company 2.00% 29 332 8 31 4]
Yankee Atomic Electric Company 3.50% 51 41 11 5 (3)
Total Investments in Affiliates $93.452  $39,339 $6,430 3,240 $1,869

(a) Owmership percentage was 29.86 percent at December 31, 2006.

Undistributed earnings of these affiliates, included in Retained Eamings on our Conselidated Balance Sheets, amounted to
$2.9 million at December 31, 2007 and $1.4 million at December 31, 2006. Of these amounts, $2.5 million at December 31,
2007 and $1.1 million at December 31, 2006 were from our investment in Transco.

VELCO and Transco VELCO, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Vermont Electric Transmission Company, Inc., and
Transco own and operate an integrated transmission system in Vermont over which bulk power is delivered to all electric
utilities in the state. Transco, a Vermont limited liability company, was formed by VELCO and its owners. In June 2006,
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VELCO transferred its assets to Transco in exchange for 2.4 million Class A Units, and Transco assumed all of VELCO's
debt. VELCO and its employees now manage the operations of Transco under a Management Services Agreement between
VELCO and Transco. Transco operates under an Operating Agreement among us, VELCOQ, Transco, Green Mountain Power
and most of the other Vermont electric utilities. Transco also operates under the Amended and Restated Three Party
Agfeements assigned to Transco from VELCO, among us, Green Mountain Power, VELCO and Transco.

We invested $53.0 million in Transco in 2007 and $23.3 million in 2006. Our direct ownership interest was 39.79 percent at
December 31, 2007 and at December 31, 2006 was 29.86 percent. Our ownership interest in Transco is represented by Class
A I!Jmts that receive a return on equity investments of 11.5 percent under the 1991 Transmission Agreement ("VTA"). At
December 31, 2007, our total direct and indirect interest in Transco was 45.68 percent. It was 44.34 percent at December 31,
2006. Transco is a variable interest entity; but we are not the primary beneficiary.

Caﬁh dividends received were $1.3 million in 2007 and 2006. VELCO's consolidated revenues shown in the tabie below
include sales to us of $2.7 million in 2006 and 2005. They also include Transco's billings to us of $5.1 million in 2007 and a
net credit of $1.5 million in 2006. These amounts are included in Transmission - affiliates on our Consolidated Statements of
Inéome. Accounts payable to VELCO were $5.7 million at December 31, 2007 and $5.4 million at December 31, 2006.

VELCO's summarized consolidated financial information (including Transco) at December 31 follows (dollars in thousands):

| 2007 2006 2005
Operating revenues $51,911 $35,808 $31,119
OfJerating income £21,922 513,467 $9,938
],nfcome before non-controlling interest and income tax $13,955 $8,000 $4,791
Lf;:SS members' non-controlling interest in income 9,483 3,245 -
Less income tax 1,661 _1.888 1,773
Net income 2811 32,867 33,018

l

. 2007 2006
Cinrent assets $50,467 $31,805
Nlon-cm'rent assets 395,923 279.320
Total assets 446,390 311,125
Less:

| Current liabilities 34,384 96,598

 Non-current liabilities 215,014 133,695

| Members' non-controlling interest 172,592 _ 56,469
Net assets $24,400 324,363

Transco's summarized financial information (included above in VELCO's summarized consolidated financial information)
for 2007 and 2006 (from inception at June 30 to December 31) follows (dollars in thousands).

| 2007 2006
Operating revenues $51,466 $18,330
Operating income 521,922 $7,950
Net income $13,904 $5,527

I

| 2007 2006
Current assets $39,354 $19,084
Non-current assets 389.351 275,114
Total assets $428,705 $294,198
Less:

Current liabilities $21,120 $82,146
Non-current liabilities 209,383 130,425
l'\let assets $198,202 $81,627

i Page 55 of 89




Transmission services provided by Transco are billed to us under the VTA. All Vermont electric utilities are parties to the
VTA. In June 2007, FERC issued an Order combining three FERC filings related to the VTA, including a request by five
municipal utilities for FERC approval to withdraw from the VTA and take transmission service under a different tariff, and
requests by Transco for revisions to the VTA. In January 2008, the parties reached a preliminary settlement agreement that
would resolve all issues that were raised in the FERC proceeding. In the event a definitive settlement agreement is not filed
by April 1, 2008, a schedule for hearings would be determined.

Transco's billings to us primarily include the VTA and charges and reimbursements under the NEPOOL Open Access
Transmission Tariff ("NOATT"). Transco's billings to us in 2007 and 2006 arc described above. Accounts payable to
Transco were $1.8 million at December 31, 2007 and $0.8 million at December 31, 2006. Cash dividends received were $3.1
million in 2007 and $0.4 million in 2006,

VYNPC VYNPC sold its nuclear plant to Entergy Nuclear Vermont Yankee, LLC ("ENVY™") in July 2002. The sale
agreement included a purchased power contract ("PPA") between VYNPC and ENVY. Under the PPA, VYNPC pays ENVY
for generation at fixed rates, and in turn, bills the PPA charges from ENVY with certain residual costs of service through a
FERC tariff to the VYNPC sponsors, including us. Qur entitlement to energy produced by the Vermont Yankee plant is
about 29 percent. See Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies.

Although we own a majority of the shares of VYNPC, the Power Contracts, Sponsor Agreement and composition of the
board of directors, under which it operates, effectively restrict our ability to exercise control over VYNPC. VYNPCis a
variable interest entity; but we are not the primary beneficiary.

VYNPC's summarized financial information at December 31 follows (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Operating revenues $160,143  3201,325 $160,613
Operating income (loss) $3,130 $3,513 $(32D)
Net income $733 $748 $660
2007 2006
Current assets $31,121 $28,460
Non-current assets 135,092 129,461
Total assets 166,213 157,921
Less:
Current liabilities 16,325 15,569
Non-current liabilities 145,123 137.551
Net assets _$4.765 _$4,801

VYNPC's revenues shown in the table above include sales to us of $55.8 million in 2007, $70.1 million in 2006 and $55.7
million in 2005. These amounts are included in Purchased power - affiliates on our Consolidated Statements of Income.
Also included in VYNPC's revenues above are sales of $0.3 million each year representing a small portion of our entitlement
received by a secondary purchaser. Accounts payable to VYNPC were $5.6 million at December 31, 2007 and $5.5 millien
at December 31, 2006. Cash dividends received were $0.4 million in 2007 and 2006.

Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic We are responsible for paying our ownership percentage of
decommissioning and all other costs for Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic. These plants are
permanently shut down. All three collect decommissioning and closure costs through FERC-approved wholesale rates
charged under power purchase agreements with us and several other New England utilities. Historically, our share of these
costs has been recovered from retail customers through PSB-approved rates. We believe based on historical rate recovery
that our share of decommissioning and closure costs for each plant will continue to be recovered through the regulatory
process. However, if the FERC disaliows recovery of any of these costs in their wholesale rates, there is a risk that the PSB
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would disallow recovery of our share in retail rates. Information related to estimated decommissioning and closure costs for
each plant based on their most recent FERC-approved rate settlements is shown below (dollars in millions):

Remaining Obligations Revenue Requirements Company Share
Maine Yankee $130.9 $100.5 $2.0
Coninecticut Yankee $168.8 $350.1 $7.0
Yankee Atomic $111.5 $82.3 $2.9

The remaining obligations are the estimated remaining decommissioning costs in 2007 dollars for the period 2008 through
2023 for Maine Yankee and Connecticut Yankee and through 2022 for Yankee Atomic. Revenue requirements are the

estimated future payments to recover estimated FERC-approved decommissioning and other costs (in nominal dollars) for
2008 through 2010 for Maine Yankee, 2015 for Connecticut Yankee and 2014 for Yankee Atomic. Revenue requirements
mcllude Maine Yankee and Connecticut Yankee collections for required contributions to pre-1983 spent fuel funds. Yankee
Atomic has already collected and paid these required pre-1983 contributions. These estimates may be revised from time to
tu’ne based on information available to the company regarding estimated future costs. Cur share of the estimated costs shown
in the table above are included in regulatory assets and nuclear decommissioning liabilities {current and non-current) on the
Copsohdated Balance Sheets.

Mame Yankee: Maine Yankee's wholesale rates are currently based on a September 2004 FERC-approved settlement. Our
share of decommissioning and other costs amounted to $1.1 million in 2007, $1.3 million in 2006 and $1.2 million in 2005.

These are included in Purchased power - affiliates on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Return of capital in the form
of common stock redemptions were $0.3 million in 2007 and $0.2 million in 2006.

Plant decommissioning activities were completed in 2005 and the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC") amended Maine
Yankee s operating license in October 2005 for operation of the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. This
amendment reduced the size of the licensed property to include only the land immediately around the Independent Spent Fuel
Storage Installation. Maine Yankee remains responsible for safe storage of the plant's spent nuclear fuel and waste at the site
until the United States Department of Energy ("DOE") meets its obligation to remove the material from the site.

Cc"mnecticur Yankee: Connecticut Yankee's wholesale rates are currently based on a 2006 FERC-approved settlement. The
notable provisions of the settlement included: 1) reduced decommissioning collections to reflect a lower escalation factor
bc'ginning January 1, 2007; 2) resolution of any claims of imprudence made in the docket against Connecticut Yankee in its
decommissioning effort with no finding of imprudence; 3) reduced decommissioning collections in 2007 through 2009 to
credit ratepayers with a $15.0 million settlement payment from Bechtel Power Corporation; 4) a budget incentive plan to
reduce the decommissioning collections by $10.0 million wherein timely license termination performance by Connecticut
Yankee would offset some of that amount; 5) an investment earnings tracking mechanism for performance greater than or
less than certain targets; and 6) resumption of reasonable payments of dividends by Connecticut Yankee to its stockholders
suibject to certain incentive target balances.

Qur share of decommissioning and other costs amounted to $1.0 million in 2007, $2.4 million in 2006 and 2005. These are
included in Purchased power - affiliates on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Dividends from Connecticut Yankee
amounted to $0.1 million in 2007 and zero in 2006. Additionally, we received $0.6 million from common stock redemption
in 2006, and none in 2007,

Plant decommissioning activities were completed in 2007 and the NRC amended Connecticut Yankee's operating license in
h{ovcmber 2007 for operation of the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. This amendment reduced the size of the
licensed property to include only the land immediately around the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. Connecticut
Yankee remains responsible for safe storage of the plant's spent nuclear fuel and waste at the site until the DOE meets its
obligation to remove the material from the site.

|
Yankee Atomic: Yankee Atomic's wholesale rates are currently based on a 2006 FER(C-approved settlement. Based on the
approved settlement, Yankee Atomic agreed to reduce its revenue requirements by $79.0 million for the period 2006-2010
and to increase its revenue requirements by $47.0 million for the period 2011-2014. The revision includes adjustments for
contingencies, projected escalation and certain decontamination and dismantling expenses. The approved settlement also
provides for reconciling and adjusting future charges based on actual decontamination and dismantling expenses and the
decommmsmnmg trust fund's actual investment earnings. Qur share of decommissioning and other costs amounted to $0.4
rmlllon in 2007, $1.7 million in 2006 and $1.9 millicn in 2005, These are included in Purchased power - affiliates on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

[ Page 57 of 89



Plant decommissioning activities were completed in 2007 and the NRC amended Yankee Atomic's operating license in
August 2007 for operation of the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. This amendment reduced the size of the
licensed property to include only the land immediately around the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. Yankee
Atomic remains responsible for safe storage of the plant's spent nuclear fuel and waste at the site until the DOE meets its
obligation to remove the material from the site.

DOE Litigation: All three companies have been seeking recovery of fuel storage-related costs stemming from the default of
the DOE under the 1983 fuel disposal contracts that were mandated by the United States Congress under the Nuclear Waste
Policy Act of 1982. Under the Act, the companies believe the DOE was required to begin removing spent nuclear fuel and
Greater than Class C material from the nuclear piants no later than January 31, 1998 in return for payments by each company
into the nuclear waste fund. No fuel has been collected by the DOE, and spent nuclear fuel is being stored at each of the
plants. Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic collected the funds from us and other wholesale utility
customers, under FERC-approved wholesale rates, and our share of these payments were collected from retail customers.

On September 30, 2006, the United States Court of Federal Claims issued judgment in the spent fuel litigation. Maine
Yankee was awarded $75.8 million in damages through 2002, Connecticut Yankee was awarded $34.2 million through 2001
and Yankee Atomic was awarded $32.9 million through 2001. The three companies had claimed actual damages through the
same periods in the amounts of $78.1 million for Maine Yankee, $37.7 million for Connecticut Yankee and $60.8 million for
Yankee Atomic. On December 4, 2006, the DOE filed a notice of appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit ("Appeals Court") in all three cases, and on December 14, 2006, all three companies filed notices of cross
appeals.

On February 9, 2007, the Appeals Court issued an order consolidating the three cases. Later in 2007, the Appeals Court
issued orders making two other cases companion appeals. Oral arguments on the pending appeals were held in February
2008. Due to the complexity of the issues and the appeals, the three companies cannot predict the amount of damages that
will actually be received or the timing of the final determination of such damages. Each of the companies’ respective FERC
settlements require that damage payments, net of taxes and net of further spent fuel trust funding, be credited to ratepayers
including us, We expect that our share of these payments, if any, would be credited to our ratepayers as well.

The Court's decision, if upheld, establishes the DOE's responsibility for reimbursing Maine Yankee for its actual costs
through 2002 and Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic for their actual costs through 2001 related to the incremental
spent fuel storage, security, construction and other costs of the spent fuel storage installation. Although the decision does not
resolve the question regarding damages in subsequent years, the decision does support future claims for the remaining spent
fuel storage installation construction costs. In December 2007, Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic filed
a second round of claims against the government for damages sustained since January 1, 2002 for Connecticut Yankee and
Yankee Atomic, and since January 1, 2003 for Maine Yankee, We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these cases due to
the pending appeals and the complexity of the issues in the second round of cases.
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NOTE 4 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On December 20, 2005, CRC completed the sale of Catamount to CEC Wind Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company established by Diamond Castle Holdings, a New York-based private equity investment firm ("Diamond Castle”).
We agreed to indemnify Catamount and Diamond Castle, and certain of their respective affiliates, in respect of a breach of
certam representations, warranties and covenants as described in Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies. Cash proceeds
from the 2005 sale were $59.25 million, resulting in an after-tax gain of $5.6 million in 2005. Income from discontinued

ope'rations as of December 31 is summarized below (dollars in thousands).

; 2007 2006 2005
Operating revenues $- $- $-
Operating expenses - - 315

Operating Income = - 315
Otl:ler income and {deductions):

Equity in earnings of non-utility investments - - 1,591

Gain on sale of non-utility investments - - -

Other income - - 2,093

Other deductions - - (4,951)

Benefit for income taxes - _251 856
ToFal other income and (deductions) - _251 (411)
Total interest expense = - 575
Ne't income (loss) from discontinued operations - 251 (671)
Gam from disposal, net of $5,183 income tax - - 5,607
Income from discontinued operations $- $251 34,936,

NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Thée estimated fair values of financial instruments at December 31 follow (dollars in thousands)

2007 2006

| Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Po:wer contract derivatives, net (includes current portion) 57,110 $7.110 $7,997 $7.997

Preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption $8,054 $4,119 $8,054 $5,690

Pr.;-.ferred stock subject to mandatory redemption (includes current portion) $3,000 $2,975 $4,000 54,105
Long-term debt:

First mortgage bonds (includes current portion) $110,500 $114,279 S110,500  $114,360

II*Jew Hampshire Industrial Development Authority Bonds $5,450 $5.371 $5,450 35,409

The estimated fair values of power contract derivatives are based on over-the-counter quotes or broker quotes at the end of
the reporting period, with the exception of one long-term power contract that is valued using a binomial tree model and
quoted market data when available, along with appropriate valuation methodologies. 1n 2007, the fair values were unrealized
losses of $7.8 million that were recorded as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and unreatized gains of $0.7 million
thlat were recorded as assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In 2006, the fair values were unrealized losses of $8.0
million that were recorded as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The fair value of our fixed rate securities is estimated based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues with
similar remaining time to maturity or on current rates offered to us. Fair values are estimated to meet disclosure requirements
and do not necessarily represent the amounts at which obligations would be settled.

The table above does not include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, special deposits, receivables and payables. The
carrymg values approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. Alsc, the carrying value of notes
p?yable approximates fair value since the rates are adjusted at least monthly.

(%‘oncemration Risk Financial instruments that potentially expose us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash,
cash equivalents, special deposits and accounts receivable.

|
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Our accounts receivable are not collateralized. As of December 31, 2007, approximately six percent of total accounts
receivable are with wholesale entities engaged in the energy industry. This industry concentration could affect our overall
exposure to credit risk, positively or negatively, since customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic, industry
or other conditions.

Our practice to mitigate credit risk arising from our energy industry concentration with wholesale entities is to contract with
creditworthy power and transmission counterparties or obtain deposits or guarantees from their affiliates. We may also enter
into third-party power purchase and sales contracts that require collateral based on credit rating or contain master netting
arrangements in the event of nonpayment. Currently, we hold parental guarantees from two transmission customers and from
two forward power sale counterparties.

Our material power supply contracts and arrangements are principally with Hydro-Quebec and VYNPC. These contracts
comprise the majority of our total energy (mWh) purchases. These supplier concentrations could have a material impact on
our power costs, if one or both of these sources were unavailable over an extended period of time. We do not have the ability
to seek collateral under these two contracts, but the contracts provide the ability to seek damages for non-performance,

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Millstone Decommissioning Trust Fund We have decommissioning trust fund investments related to our joint-ownership
interest in Millstone Unit #3. The decommissioning trust fund was established pursuant to various federal and state
guidelines. Among other requirements, the fund is required to be managed by an independent and prudent fund manager.
Any gains or losses, realized and unrealized, are expected to be refunded to or collected from ratepayers and are recorded as
regulatory assets or liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 71.

FASB Staff Position Nos. 115-1 and 124-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments, state that an investment is impaired if the fair value of the investment is less than its cost and if
management considers the impairment to be other-than-temporary. We do not have the ability to hold individual securities in
the trusts because regulatory authorities limit our ability to oversee the day-to-day management of our nuclear
decommissioning trust fund investments. For the majority of the investments shown below, we own a share of the trust fund
investments and do not hold individual securities. In 2006, we changed our method of assessing other-than-temporary
declines in value and now consider all securities held by our nuclear decommissioning trusts with fair values below their cost
basis to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

The fair value of these investments at December 31 is summarized below (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Amortized Unrealized Unrealized  Estimated
Security Types Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Equity Securities $2,691 $1,467 $- $4,158 $£2,439 $1,601 $- $4,040
Debt Securities 1,413 44 - 1,457 1,382 14 - 1,396
Cash and other 30 - - 30 40 - - 40
Total $4134  SLSUL S  $5645  $3861  SL6IS S $5476

Information related to the fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2007 follows (dollars in thousands):
Fair value of debt securities at contractual maturity dates

Less than 1 year 1toSyears Sto10years After 10 years Total
Debt Securities $16 $290 $283 3868 31,457
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NOTE 7 - RETAIL RATES AND REGULATORY ACCOUNTING
Retail Rates We recognize adequate and timely rate relief is required to maintain our finrancial strength, particularly since
our rates do not include fuel or power cost adjustment mechanisms.

Oull retail rates at December 31, 2007 are based on a December 7, 2006 PSB Order ("2006 Rate Order") approving a 4.07
percent rate increase effective January 1, 2007. The 2006 Rate Order provided, among other things, an allowed rate of return
on common equity of 10.75 percent capped until our next rate proceeding. The return on common equity of our regulated
business did not exceed the allowed return for 2007. Qur retail rates at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were based on a March
29, 2005 PSB Order that provided for a 2,75 percent rate decrease and an allowed rate of return on common equity capped at
10.0 percent. That Order also resulted in a $21.8 million pre-tax charge to earnings in 2005.

At }he time the 2006 Rate Order was issued, we had a pending Accounting Order request for recovery of $1.5 million of
incremental replacement power costs subject to PSB approval. The 2006 Rate Order required us to record a regulatory asset
or liability for any difference between the replacement power cost amortization included in the 4.07 percent rate increase and
the'amount approved by the PSB in the Accounting Order. On January 12, 2007, the PSB denied our Accounting Order
request. This outcome had no 2006 income statement impact since the incremental replacement power costs were previously
expensed in 2005, and it did not change the 4.07 percent rate increase effective January 1, 2007. Instead, we deferred the

$1 '5 million of revenue over two years and will continue such deferral until the next rate proceeding, at which time the total
amount deferred will be returned to customers.

On May 15, 2007, we filed a request for a retail rate increase of $12.4 million, or 4.46 percent, in annual revenues based on
the; 2006 calendar vear. On November 21, 2007, we reached a settlement in the case with the Vermont Department of Public
Service ("DPS™), agreeing to a 2.30 percent rate increase (additional revenue of $6.4 million on an annual basis) effective for
biIFs rendered on or after February 1, 2008. The agreement, which required PSB approval, also provided for a 10.71 percent
rate of return on equity, capped until our next rate proceeding or approval of our Alternative Regulation Plan described
below. As part of the settlement agreement, we also agreed to conduct an independent business process review to assure our
coét controls are sufficiently challenging and that we are operating efficiently. The PSB approved the settlement agreement
on January 31, 2008. The rate increase became effective February 1, 2008 and the business process review is expected to
take place during 2008.

Oﬁ August 31, 2007, we submitted an alternative regulation plan proposal for PSB approval. If approved, the plan would
allow for quarterly rate adjustments to reflect power supply cost changes and annual rate adjustments to reflect changes,
within predetermined limits, from the allowed carnings level. The plan is designed to encourage efficiency in operations, and
w?uld replace the traditional ratemaking process. We cannot predict the outcome of this matter at this time.

OL April 25, 2007, the PSB approved the rate design agreement that had been previously reached with the DPS. The rate
design became effective for bills rendered on or after July 1, 2007, except for one rate class change with implementation
de:layed until September 1, 2007. The rate design results in a modest reallocation of revenue by customer class with greater
emphasxs on energy charges in reaction to wholesale market energy costs. The rate design agreement also included a
comprehenswe study of the need for new service offerings and further rate redesign. This is based on certain fundamental
changes in how costs are incurred to serve load based on availability of advanced metering and communications and
structural changes in the New England wholesale power market. The study is due to the PSB in April 2008,

Riegulatory Accounting Under SFAS No. 71, we account for certain transactions in accordance with permitted regulatory
treatment whereby regulators may permit incurred costs, typically treated as expenses by unregulated entities, to be deferred
and expensed in future periods when recovered in future revenues. Regulatory assets and certain other deferred credits are
being amortized in accordance with the 2006 Rate Order. These items, including other deferred credits, are also adjusted

upward or downward in accordance with permitted regulatory treatment. N

]IL the event that we no longer meet the criteria under SFAS No. 71 and there is not a rate mechanism to recover these costs,
we would be required to write off $17.3 million of regulatory assets {total regulatory assets of $32.0 million less pension and
postretirement medical costs of $14.7 million), $9.0 million of other deferred charges - regulatory and $9.4 million of other
deferred credits - regulatory. This would result in a total extraordinary charge to operations of $16.9 million pre-tax as of
December 31, 2007. We would also be required to record pension and postretirement costs of $14.7 million on a pre-tax
b!asm to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss as a reduction in stockholders' equity, and would be required to determine
any potential impairment to the carrying costs of deregulated plant.
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The table below provides a summary of Regulatory assets, Other deferred charges - regulatory and Other deferred credits -
regulatory on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Regulatory assets
Pension and postretirement medical costs - SFAS No. 158 $14,673 $31,705
Nuclear plant dismantling costs 11,889 15,033
Nuclear refueling outage costs - Millstone 820 308
Income taxes 3,757 3,810
Vermont Yankee sale costs (non-tax) - 496
Vermont Yankee fuel rod maintenance deferral - 231
Asset retirement obligations 575 501
Other 274 95
Regulatory assets $£31,988 §52,179
Other deferred charges - regulatory
Vermont Yankee sale costs (tax) $673 $3,130
Unrealized loss on power contract derivatives 7,817 7,997
Tree trimming and pole treating 498 710
Other - 290
Other deferred charges - regulatory 58,988 512,127
Other deferred credits - regulatory
Vermont utility overearnings 2001 - 2003 $961 34,803
Connecticut Valley gain on termination of power contract - 554
Asset retirement obligation - Millstone Unit #3 3,085 3,055
Vermont Yankee IRS settlement 726 1,088
Emission allowances and renewable energy credits 616 924
Unrealized gain on power contract derivatives 707 -
Environmental remediation 1,834 1,648
Vermont Yankee fire settlement 870 -
Other 596 615
Other deferred credits - regulatory 59,395 $12,687

Pursuant to the 2006 Rate Order, the regulatory assets included in the table above are being recovered in retail rates, except
for the asset retirement obligations. The recovery period for regulatory assets varies based on the nature of the costs. All
regulatory assets are earning a return, except for income taxes, asset retirement obligations, nuclear plant dismantling costs,
and pension and postretirement medical costs. Most items listed in other deferred credits - regulatory are being amortized for
periods ranging from two to three years. Pursuant to PSB-approved Rate Orders, when a regulatory asset or liability is fully
amortized, the cormesponding rate revenue shall be booked as a reverse amortization in an opposing regulatory liability or
asset account.

For additional information regarding pension and postretirement medical costs see Note 14 - Pension and Postretirement
Medical Benefits. For additional information regarding income taxes se¢ Note 15 - Income Taxes.

Environmental remediation represents the ratepayer portion of a 2006 reduction in environmental reserves that resulted from
revised cost estimates for the Cleveland Avenue and Brattleboro sites described in Note 16 - Commitments and
Contingencies. When we reduced the reserve, we reached an agreement with the DPS that approximately half of the
reduction should be returned to ratepayers. Later in 2007, the PSB approved our Accounting Order request to record the
ratepayer portion, including carrying costs, as a regulatory liability. Based on the January 31, 2008 PSB-approved Rate
Order we will begin amortizing this liability over a two-year period beginning February 1, 2008.

The Vermont Yankee fire settlement is described in Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies. Pursuant to the 2006 Rate
Order, this deferred credit is being amortized over a three-year period beginning October 2007.

Page 62 of 89




NOTE 8 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

We have awarded share-based compensation to key employees and non-employee directors under several stock compensation
plans Awards under these plans have been comprised of: 1) stock options; 2) common stock that vests immediately or cliff
vests based on service conditions; and 3) performance shares that vest based on performance, market and service conditions.
At Dccember 31, 2007 these plans included:

Stock Shares
i Shares options Available for
' Plan Authorized outstanding  future grant
1997 Stock Option Plan - Key Employees 350,000 132,458 -
[ 2000 Stock Option Plan - Key Employees 350,000 190,680 -
2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan 350,000 122 869 73,84
Total 1,050,000 446,007 13,843

l

|
The 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("2002 LTIP") authorizes the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
common shares and performance shares. Stock option grants were eliminated as a form of compensation to key employees
and non- employee directors effective January 1, 2006. Stock appreciation rights have not been granted as a form of
compensation.

Total share-based compensation expense recognized in the income statement for the last three years was $0.6 million in 2007,
$0.9 million in 2006 and $0.1 million in 2005. The total income tax benefit recognized in the income statement for share-
based compensation was $0.2 million in 2007, $0.3 million in 2006 and less than $0.1 million in 2005. No compensation
costs were capitalized. Cash received from exercise of stock options was $1.1 million in 2007, $1.3 million in 2006 and $0.3
mllllon in 2005. The tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exercises was $0.4 million in 2007 and $0.1
million in 2006 and 2005. These amounts are included in other paid in capital on the balance sheet.

Currently, stock options that are exercised and other stock awards are settled from authorized but un-issued common shares.
Under the existing plans, they may also be settled by the issuance of treasury shares or through open market purchases of
common shares. Awards other than stock options can also be settled in cash at the discretion of the Compensation
Commtttee of our Board of Directors. Historically, these awards have been settled in the form of shares of our common
stock.

Stock Options All outstanding stock options were granted at the fair market value of the common shares on the date of grant,
and vested immediately. The maximum term of options is five years for non-employee directors and 10 years for key

edlployees Stock option activity during 2007 follows:

| Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding and exercisable at January 1 521,782 $16.92
Exercised (75,775) $15.12
Granted - -
Forfeited - -
:Expired - -
Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 446,007 $17.23

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the last three years was $1.0 million in 2007, $0.3 million in 2006,
and $0.1 million in 2005. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2007 was
$6 1 million. The weighted average remaining contractual life for options outstanding and exercisable as of Dccember 31,
2007 was 4.2 years.
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The fair value of stock options granted in 2005 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions:

2005
Volatility 25.82%
Risk-free rate of return 4.35%
Dividend yield 5.11%
Expected life in years 5.04

The volatility assumption was based on the historical volatility of our common stock over a period equal to the option's
expected term. The risk-free rate of return was based on the yield, at the grant date, of a U.S. Treasury security with a
maturity period approximating the option's expected term. The dividend yield assumption was based on historical dividend
payouts. The expected term of options granted was based on historical experience. Stock options granted during 2005 had a
weighted-average grant date fair value of $3.55.

Commen Stock and Nonvested Shares Under the 2002 LTIP, common stock can be granted to key employees and non-
employee directors. The fair value of these awards is equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date
of grant. The shares vest immediately or cliff vest over predefined service periods. Although full ownership of the shares
does not transfer to the recipients until vested, the recipients have the right to vote the shares and to receive dividends from
the date of grant. A summary of common and nonvested share activity during 2007 follows:

Weighted Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested at January 1 1,000 $18.15
Granted 8,094 $32.22
Vested (6,390) $32.22
Deferred (1,704) $32.22
Forfeited - -
Nonvested at December 31 1,000 $18.15

In 2007, common stock was granted as part of the Board of Directors’ annual retainer. These shares vest immediately, and
individual directors can elect to defer receipt of their retainer under the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan for
Directors and Officers. The fair value of shares vested in 2007 totaled $0.2 million. Compensation expense was $0.3 million
in 2007, $0.4 million in 2006 and $0.2 miilion in 2005. Unearned compensation expense at December 31, 2007 was of a
nominal amount.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of shares granted during 2006 was $21.42 per share and the fair value of shares
vested totaled $0.4 million. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of shares granted during 2005 was $17.88 per share
and the fair value of shares vested totaled $0.3 million.

Performance Shares The executive officer long-term incentive program is delivered in the form of contingently granted
performance shares of common stock. At the start of each year a fixed number of performance shares are contingently
granted for three-year service periods (referred to as performance cycles). The number of shares awarded at the end of each
performance cycle is dependent on our performance compared to pre-established performance targets for relative Total
Shareholder Return ("TSR") compared to all publicly traded electric and combined utilities, and on operational measures.
The number of shares awarded at the end of the performance cycles ranges from zero to 1.5 times the number of shares
targeted, based on actual performance versus targets. Dividends payable on performance shares during the performance
cycle are reinvested into additional performance shares. Once the award is eamed, shares become fully vested. If the
participant's employment is terminated mid-cycle due to retirement, death, disability or a change-in-control, that employee or
their estate is entitled to receive a pro rata portion of shares at target performance.

The fair value of performance shares for operational measures was estimated based on the market value of the shares on the
grant date and the expected outcome of each measure. The grant-date fair value of performance shares with operational
measures granted in 2007 was $22.75 per share. Compensation cost is recognized over the three-year performance cycle and
is adjusted for the actual percentage of target achieved. The fair value of performance shares for TSR measures was
estimated on the grant date using a Monte Carlo simulation model. The grant-date fair value of performance shares with TSR
measures granted in 2007 was $20.86 per share. Compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the three-year

Page 64 of 89




performance cycle and is not adjusted for the actual percentage of target achieved. The weighted-average assumptions used
in the Monte Carlo valuation for TSR performance shares granted in 2007 and 2006 are shown in the table below.

2007 2006
Vo;latility 2597%  23.10%
Risk-free rate of return 4.68% 4,29%
Di‘vidend yield 4.04% 4.98%
Term (years) 30 30

The volatility assumption was based on the historical volatility of our common stock over the three-year period ending on the
grant date. The risk-free rate of return was based on the yield, at the grant date, of a U.S. Treasury security with a maturity
period of three years. The dividend yield assumption was based on historical dividend payouts. The expected term of
performance shares is based on a three-year cycle.

A’summary of performance share activity, excluding estimated dividend equivalents, during 2007 follows:

4 Weighted Average

' Shares Grant-Date Fair Value
QOutstanding at January 1 (a) 56,600 $18.75

' Granted (b) 28,600 $21.81

':Vested (c) (17,893) $20.19

Forfeited (4,907 $22.17

Qutstanding at December 31 (d) 62,400 $19.47

|

(a) Previously reported 64,028 performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2006
: which included estimated dividend equivalents that are no longer shown in the table.
(b}  Performance shares contingently granted for the 2007 - 2009 performance cycle.
l(c) Estimated shares earned for the 2005 - 2007 performance cycle.
(d) The number of common shares related to performance shares may range from zeto to
| 150 percent of the number shown in the table above based on the achievement of
operational and TSR measures relative to the three-year performance cycles.
f
Compensation expense related to performance share plans amounted to $0.3 million in 2007, $0.5 million in 2006 and a $0.1
n?illion credit in 2005. Unrecognized compensation expense for outstanding performance shares as of December 31, 2007
amounts to approximately $0.5 million and is expected to be recognized over 1.5 years.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of shares granted during 2006 was $17.50 per share and the fair value of shares
w;csted was zero because targeted financial goals were not achieved for the 2004 - 2006 performance cycle. The weighted-
average grant-date fair value of performance shares granted during 2005 was $20.62 per share, and the fair value of shares
\;'ested was $0.8 million.

NOTE 9 - TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock is recorded at cost, $22.75 per share, and results in a reduction of shareholders’ equity on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. In April 2006, we purchased 2,249,975 shares of our common stock at $22.50 per share using proceeds from
the December 20, 2005 sale of Catamount. In July 2007, we began using Treasury shares to meet reinvestment needs under

the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.
|
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NOTE 10 - PREFERRED AND PREFERENCE STOCK NOT SUBJECT TO MANDATORY REDEMPTION
Preferred and preference stock not subject to mandatory redemption at December 31 consisted of the following (dollars in
thousands):

2007 2006

Preferred stock, $100 par value, outstanding:
4.150% Series; 37,856 shares $3,786 $3,786
4.650% Series; 10,000 shares 1,000 1,000
4.750% Series; 17,682 shares 1,768 1,768
5.375% Series; 15,000 shares 1,500 1,500
Total preferred and preference stock not subject to mandatory redemption $8.054 58,054

There are 500,000 shares authorized of the Preferred Stock, $100 Par Value class that can be issued with or without
mandatory redemption requirements. At December 31, 2007, a total of 110,538 shares were outstanding, including 80,538
that are not subject to mandatory redemption and are listed in the table above, and 30,000 that are subject to mandatory
redemption and described in Note 11 - Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption, None of the outstanding Preferred
Stock, $100 Par Value, is convertible into shares of any other class or series of our capital stock or any other security.

There are 1,000,000 shares authorized of Preferred Stock, $25 Par Value, and 1,000,000 shares authorized of Preference
Stock, $1 Par Value. None of the shares are subject to mandatory redemption. There were none outstanding, issued or
redeemed in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

All series of the Preferred Stock, $100 Par Value class are of equal ranking, including those subject to mandatory redemption.
Each series is entitled to a liquidation preference over the holders of common stock that is equal to Par Value, plus accrued
and unpaid dividends, and a premium if liquidation is voluntary. In general, there are no "deemed” liquidation events.
Holders of the Preferred Stock have no voting rights, except as required by Vermont law, and except that if accrued dividends
on any shares of Preferred Stock have not been paid for more than two full quarters, each share will have the same voting
power as Common Stock. 1f accrued dividends have not been paid for four or more full quarters, the holders of the Preferred
Stock have the right to elect a majority of our Board of Directors. There are no dividends in arrears for preferred stock not
subject to mandatory redemption.

All sertes of Preferred Stock are currently subject to redemption and retirement at our option upon vote of at teast three-
quarters of our Board of Directors in accordance with the specific terms for each series and upon payment of the Par Value,
accrued dividends and a premium to which each would be entitled in the event of voluntary liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of our affairs. At December 31, 2007, premiums payable on each series of non-redeemable preferred stock if
such an event were to occur are as follows:

Preferred and Preference Stock Premiums Per Share
4.150% Series $5.500
4.650% Serics $5.000
4,750% Series $1.000
5.375% Series $5.000

NOTE 11 - PREFERRED STOCK SUBJECT TO MANDATORY REDEMPTION

We have one series of Preferred Stock, $100 Par Value that is subject to mandatory redemption, 8.3 Percent Series Preferred
Stock, with shares outstanding of 30,000 at December 31, 2007, 40,000 at December 31, 2006 and 60,000 at December 31,
2005. All of the provisions described in Note 1{} - Preferred and Preference Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption are
the same for the 8.3 Percent Series Preferred Stock, except that at December 31, 2007 premiums payable in the event of
voluntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs arc at $2.075 per share. There are no dividends in arrears for
the 8.3 Percent Series Preferred Stock.

The mandatory redemption requirement for the 8.3 Percent Series Preferred Stock is $1.0 million (10,000 shares at par value)
per annum. We may, at our option, also redeem at par an additional non-cumulative $1.0 million annually. We are
scheduled to make annual payments of $1.0 million in 2008, 2009 and 2010 under the mandatory redemption requirements.
Thereafter the 8.3 Percent Series Preferred Stock will be fully redeemed. In the fourth quarter of 2007 and 2006, we paid our
transfer agent $1.0 million for the mandatory redemption payment that is effective January 1. The payments to the transfer
agent are included in Special Deposits on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Dividends paid on preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption are included in Other interest on the Consolidated
Statements of [ncome, and amounted to $0.2 million in 2007, $0.3 million in 2006 and $0.5 million in 2005.

NOTE 12 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Lang-term debt at December 31 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
First Mortgage Bonds
6.27%, Series NN, due 2008 $3,000 £3,000
15.00%, Series SS, due 2011 20,000 20,000
5.72%, Series TT, due 2019 55,000 55,000
16.90%, Series 00, due 2023 17,500 17,500
8.91%, Series }J, due 2031 15,000 15,000
New Hampshire Industrial Development Autherity Bonds
Variable 3.75%, due 2009 5450 5,450
Total long-term debt 115,950 115,950
L?ss current amount payable, due within cne year _ {3,000y -
Total long-term debt less current portion $112,950. 3115950

!
Substantially all of our utility property and plant is subject to liens under our First Mortgage Bonds. The First Mortgage
Bonds are callable at our option at any time upon payment of a make-whole premium, calculated as the excess of the present
value of the remaining scheduled payments to bondholders, discounted at a rate that is 0.5 percent higher than the comparable
Us. Treasury Bond yield, over the early redemption amount.

Tlhe New Hampshire Industrial Development Authority Bonds are pollution control revenue bonds that carry an interest reset
provision. These bonds are callable at our option or the bondholders' option on the rate reset date. The final rate reset
occurred December 1, 2004. As of December 31, 2007, the bonds are only callable at our option in special circumstances
involving unenforceability of the indenture or a change in the usability of the project.

dur debt financing documents do not contain cross-default provisions to affiliates outside of the consolidated entity. Certain
of our debt financing documents contain cross-default provisions to our wholly owned subsidiaries, East Barnet, C.V. Realty,
Inc and Custom Investment Corporation. These cross-default provisions generally relate to an inability to pay debt or debt
accelcratlon 1nappropnate affiliate transactions or the levy of significant judgments or attachments against our property.
Currently, we are not in default under any of our debt financing documents. Scheduled sinking fund payments and maturities
for the next five years are $3.0 million in 2008, $5.5 million in 2009, $0 in 2010, $20.0 million in 2011 and $0 in 2012.

I_Eetters of credit: We have three outstanding secured letters of credit, issued by one bank, totaling $16.9 million in support of
three separate issues of industrial development revenue bonds totaling $16.3 million, of which $5.5 million is included in
Long-Term Debt and $10.8 million is included in Notes Payable. We pay an annual fee of 0.9 percent on the tetters of credit,
based on our secured long-term debt rating. These letters of credit expire on November 30, 2008. Pursuant to a bank
commitment dated March 10, 2008, we have the sole option to extend the maturity of these letters of credit to November 30,
2009 The letters of credit contain cross-default provisions to East Barnet, a wholly owned subsidiary. These cross-default
provisions generally relate to an inability to pay debt or debt acceleration, the levy of significant judgments, insolvency or
violations under ERISA benefit plans. At December 31, 2007, there were no amounts drawn under these letters of credit.

|

Covenants: Our long-term debt indentures, letters of credit, and credit facility contain financial and non-financial covenants.
The most restrictive financial covenants include maximum debt to total capitalization of 65 percent, and minimum interest
coverage of 2.0 times. At December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all covenants.

'Dividend and Optional Stock Redemption Restrictions: Our $25.0 million revolving credit facility described in Note 13 -
Notes Payable and Credit Facility restricts optional redemptions of capital stock. The First Mortgage Bond indenture and our
'Articles of Association also contain certain restrictions on the payment of cash dividends on and optional redemptions of all
capital stock. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, about $62.9 million of retained earnings was not subject to such
restriction at December 31, 2007. The Articles also restrict the payment of common dividends or purchase of any common
Ishares if the common equity level falls below 25 percent of total capital, applicable only as long as Preferred Stock is
outstanding. Our Articles of Association also contain a covenant that requires us to maintain a minimum common equity
'evel of about $3.3 million as long as any Preferred Stock is outstanding.

t
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NOTE 13 - NOTES PAYABLE AND CREDIT FACILITY
Notes payabie at December 31 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Revenue Bonds
Vermont Industrial Development Authority Bonds
Variable, due 2013 (3.05% at December 31, 2007) $5,800 $5,800
Connecticut Development Authority Bonds
Variable, due 2015 (3.55% at December 31, 2007) 5,000 5,000
Short term note payable
Varizble, due June 30, 2008 (5.44% at December 31, 2007) 33,000 -
Total Notes Payable $63.800 £10,800

Notes Payable: The revenue bonds are floating rate, monthly demand pollution-control bonds. There are no interim sinking
fund payments due prior to their maturity. The interest rates reset monthly. Both series are callable at par as follows: 1) at
our option or bondhelders' option on each monthly interest payment date; or 2) at the option of the bondholders on any
business day. There is a remarketing feature if the bonds are put for redemption. Historically, these bonds have been
remarketed in the secondary bond market. We have outstanding secured short-term letters of credit that support these bonds,
as described in Note 12 - Long-Term Debt.

Short-term Note: At December 31, 2007 we had a six-month unsecured term note in the principal amount of $53.0 million
with a major lending institution. The loan is payable June 30, 2008 and currently carries an adjustable borrowing rate tied to
overnight LIBOR plus a fixed spread that decreases as our credit rating improves. Other variable interest rate options are
available to us, such as prime or federal funds rate plus a fixed spread. Fixed rate options are also available based on LIBOR
for a time period of one, two or three months plus a fixed spread that decreases as our credit rating improves. There are no
caps on these interest rate options. Pursuant to a commitment from the lending institution dated February 11, 2008, we have
the sole option to extend the maturity of the term note to March 31, 2009. Our obligation under the term note is guaranteed
by our wholiy owned, unregulated subsidiaries, C.V. Realty and CRC. The term note contains cross-default provisions to
any of our subsidiaries. These cross-default provisions generally relate to an inability to pay debt or debt acceleration, the
levy of significant judgments or inveluntary liquidation, reorganization or bankruptcy,

Credit Facility: We have a 364-day, $25.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility with a lending institution pursuant to a
Credit Agreement dated December 28, 2007. This replaces the previous credit facility, which was to expire in October 2008.
1t contains financial and non-financial covenants as discussed in Note 12 - Long-Term Debt. Pursuant to a commitment from
the credit facility bank dated February 11, 2008, we also have the sole option to extend the maturity of the credit facility to
March 31, 2009. Our obligation under the Credit Agreement is guaranteed by our wholly owned, unregulated subsidiaries,
C.V. Realty and CRC. The purpose of the facility is to provide liquidity for general corporate purposes, including working
capital needs and power contract performance assurance requirements, in the form of funds borrowed and letters of credit.
Financing terms and costs include an annual commitment fee of (.225 percent on the unused balance, plus interest on the
outstanding balance of amounts borrowed at various interest options and a commission of 0.9 percent on the average daily
amount of letters of credit outstanding, all based on our unsecured long-term debt rating. Terms also include the requirement
to collateralize any outstanding letters of credit in the event of a default under the credit facility. The facility contains a
Material Adverse Effect ("MAE") clause (a standard that requires greater adversity than a Material Adverse Change clause).
This clause is in effect only when our credit rating is below investment grade; therefore, it is currently in effect. The MAE
clause could aillow the lending institution to deny a transaction under the credit facility at the point of request. The credit
facility also contains cross-default provisions to any of our subsidiaries. These cross-default provisions generally relate to an
inability to pay debt or debt acceleration, the levy of significant judgments or voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
reorganization or bankruptcy. At December 31, 2007 no amounts were outstanding under this new facility, but we did issue
two letters of credit totaling $6.0 million to support certain power-related performance assurance requirements. No amounts
have been drawn under the letters of credit, which expire in December 2008. Under the old credit facility, a $5.0 million
letter of credit, formerly in support of performance assurance requirements with a power counterparty, was outstanding until
early January 2008.

NOTE 14 - PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS

We have a qualified, non-contributory, defined-benefit, trusteed pension plan ("Pension Plan™) covering all union and non-
union employees. Under the terms of the Pension Plan, employees are vested after completing five years of service, and can
retire when they are at least age 55 with a minimum of 10 years of service. They are eligible to receive monthly benefits or a
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lump sum amount. Our funding policy is to contribute an amount equal to the annual actuarial cost or at least a statutory
minimum to a trust. We are not required by our union contract to contribute to multi-employer plans. At the end of 2005, we
ad?ptcd the RP-2000 mortality table that replaced the GAM 94 table.

WE'.‘ also sponsor a defined-benefit postretirement medical plan that covers all employees who retire with 10 or more years of
service after age 45 and who are at least age 55. We fund this obligation through a Voluntary Employees' Benefit
Association and 401(h) Subaccount in the Pension Plan. Retirees under the age of 65 ("pre-65") participate in plan options
similar to active employees. Retirees at or over the age of 65 ("post-65") receive limited coverage with a $10,000 annual
individual maximum. Company contributions to retiree medical are capped for employees retiring after 1995 at $0.3 million
per year for pre-65 retirces and are capped at a nominal amount for post-65 retirees. There are no retiree contributions for

pré-]996 retirees.

SFi"AS No. 158 requires an employer with a defined benefit plan or other postretirement plan to recognize an asset or liability
on its balance sheet for the overfunded or underfunded status of the plan. For pension plans, the asset or liability is the
difference between the fair value of the plan’s assets and the projected benefit obligation. For postretirement benefit plans,
th asset or liability is the difference between the fair value of the plan's assets and the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation. Our pension and postretirement benefit obligations and plan assets are valued annually as of a September 30
measurement date.

[
Benefit Obligation The changes in benefit obligation for pension and postretirement medical benefits at December 31 follow
(dollars in thousands):

| Postretirement
Pension Benefits Medical Benefits

‘r 2007 2006 2007 2006
Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement date $103,853  $104,250  $26,276 $30,300
Skrvice cost 3,552 3,686 577 706
IQIerest cost 6,242 5,971 1,507 1,696
Actuarial loss (gain) (11,048) (2,546) (33) (4,678)
Plan participants' contributions - - 987 727
Gross benefits paid (6,549) (7,508) (2,993) (2,629)

tless: federal subsidy on benefits paid - - 199 154

P{rojected obligation as of measurement date (September 30) $96,050 $103,853  $26,520  $26,276
Accumulated obligation as of measurement date (September 30) $78,894 $33,549 - -

The reduction in our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation due to the impact of the Medicare Part D subsidy
iis $3.0 miltion for 2007 and $3.6 million for 2006.

The present value of future contributions from Postretirement Plan participants was $35.1 million for 2007 and $34.6 million
for 2006.

!

Beneﬁr Obligation Assumptions Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at the September 30
measurcment date are shown in the table that follows. The selection methodology used in determining discount rates
1ncludes portfolios of "Aa" bonds; all are United States issues and non-callable (or callable with make-whole features) and
ti:ach issue is at least $50 million in par value. As of September 30, 2007, the following weighted-average assumptions for
pension and postretirement medical benefits were used in determining our related liabilities at December 31:

’ Postretirement

| Pension Benefits Medical Benefits

| 2007 2006 2000 2006
Discount rates 6.30% 5.95% 6.15% 5.80%
Rate of increase in future compensation levels 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25%

|

;For measurement purposes, a 9.5 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was
'assumed for fiscal 2007, for pre-65 and post-65 claims costs. The rate is assumed to decrease 0.5 percent each year until
12010, and to decrease ! percent in each of the subsequent years until an ultimate trend rate of 5.0 percent is reached in 2013.
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effect (dollars in thousands):

1-Percentage 1-Percentage

Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on postretirement medical benefit obligation as of Septeinber 30, 2007 $2,051 $(1,733)
Effect on aggregate service and interest costs 3205 $(166)

Asset Allocation The asset altocations at the measurement date for 2007 and 2006, and the target allocation for 2008, by
asset category, are as follows:

Pension Plan Postretirement Medical Plan
2008 Target 2007 2006 2008 Target 2007 2006
Equity securities 67.6% 68.1% 65.9% 67.0% 67.2% 0.0%
Debt securities 33.0% 31.9% 34.1% 33.0% 32.8% 0.0%
Other - - - - - 100.0%
Total 100.0%  100.0%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%

Investment Strategy Our pension investment policy seeks to achieve sufficient growth to enable the Pension Plan to meet our
future benefit obligations to participants, to maintain certain funded ratios and minimize near-term cost volatility. Current
guidelines specify generally that 67 percent of plan assets be invested in equity securities and 33 percent of plan assets be
invested in debt securities. The debt securities are fixed income assets that are invested in longer-duration bonds to match
changes in plan liabilities.

Qur postretirement medical benefit plan investment policy secks to achieve sufficient funding levels to meet future benefit
obligations to participants and minimize near-term cost volatility, In early 2007, the plan assets were invested in cash
equivalents. Beginning in May 2007, we adopted an asset allocation mix similar to that of the Pension Plan assets.

Change in Plan Assets The changes in Plan assets as of the measurement date are shown below (dollars in thousands):

Postretirement
Pension Plan Medical Plan

2007 2006 2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of measurement date $86,131 $67,784 $11,526 $6,174
Actual return on plan assets 10,718 5,091 605 369
Employer contributions 4,056 20,764 3,139 6,885
Plan participants’ contributions - - 987 727
Gross benefits paid (6,549) {7.508) (2,993) (2,629}

Fair value of assets as of measurement date (September 30) $94,356, £86,131  $13264 511,526

Funded Status The Plans' funded status was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Postretirement
Pension Plan Medical Plan
2007 2006 2007 2006
Fair value of assets $94,356 $86,131 $13.264 $11,526
Benefit obligation (96,050) (103,853) (26,520) (26,276)
CVPS contributicns between measurement and year-end dates - - 153 593
Funded Status $(1,694) $(17,722) $(13,103) $(14,157)

The increase in the Pension Plan funded status of $16.0 million for 2007 versus 2006 resulted from an increase of $8.2
million in the fair value of assets as shown in the table above, and a decrease of $7.8 million in the benefit obligation,
primarily due to actuarial gains as shown in the table above. The actuarial gains were primarily the result of higher-than-
expected returns on plan assets, changes in plan demographics, and changes in actuarial assumptions.
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Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Amounts related to accrued benefit costs recognized in our

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 consisted of (dollars in thousands):

Postretirement

| Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Non-current liability $(1,694) $(17,722) $(13,103) $(14,157)

In 2007 the Postretirement Medical Plan non-current liability shown above included an actuarial estimate of $0.2 million

related to our Medicare D subsidy payments expected in the first quarter of 2008.
[

Amounts recognized in Regulatory Assets and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss ("AOCL") The pre-tax

amounts recognized in Regulatory assets and AOCL in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007 consisted of

{dollars in thousands):
' Pension Benefits

Regulatory
| Asset AOCL Total
Net actuarial loss $(888) 53 $(891)
Prior service cost 2,577 8 2,585
Transition obligation - — )
th amount recognized $1,689 55 $1,694

The pre-tax amounts recognized in Regulatory assets and AOCL in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006

cansisted of (dollars in thousands):

' Pension Benefits

| Regulatory

; Asset AQOCL Total
Net actuarial loss $14,710 §28 $14,738
Prior service cost 2,978 6 2,984
Transition obligation - _— =
Net amount recognized $17,688 $34 $17,722

Postretirement Medical Benefits

Regulatory
Asset AOCL Total
$11,622 $35 $11,657
1 - ¥
1,275 _4 1,279
$12,898 $39 312,937

Postretirement Medical Benefits

Regulatory
Asset AOCL Total
$12,391 $24  $12,415
1 - 1
1,532 _3 1,535
$13,924 $27 813,951

|
Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations Recognized in Regulatory Assets and Other Comprehensive

Iilcome Components of pre-tax changes were as follows (doellars in thousands):
[

F

Pension Benefits

Postretirement Medical Benefits

Regulatory
| Asset AOCL Total
Current year actuarial (gain)/loss §(15,0i7) $(30)  $(15,047)
Amortization of actuarial loss (581) (n (582)
Amortization of prior service cost (401) 2 (399)
Amortization of transition obligation - - -
Net amount recognized $(15,999) $29 $(16,028)

Regulatory
Asset AOCL Total
$280 $13 $293
{(1,049) (2) (1,051)
(257) _1 {256)
3(1,026) $12 $(1,014)

lﬁet Periodic Benefit Costs Components of net periodic benefit costs were as follows (dollars in thousands):

i Pension Benefits

; 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $3,552 $3,686 $3,227
Iriterest cost 6,242 5971 5,856
Expected return on plan assets {6,719) (5,744) (5,267)
Amomzanon of actuarial loss 582 785 196
Amortization of prior service cost 399 401 401
Amomzanon of transition {asset) obligation - - -
Net periodic benefit cost 4,056 5,099 4,413
Less amount allocated to other accounts 693 885 702
Net benefit costs expensed $3363 84,214 $3.711
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Postretirement Medical Benefits

2007 2006 2005
$578 $706 $512
1,507 1,695 1,444
(932) (716) 477
1,051 1,591 1,113
- i 1

256 256 256
2,460 3,533 2,849
420 613 453
82,040 32920 52396



Benefit Cost Assumptions Weighted-average assumptions use to determine net periodic costs at measurement date
(September 30) are shown in the table below. The weighted-average assumptions shown for 2007, which were set at
September 30, 2006, were used in determining 2007 expense. Likewise, the 2006 and 2005 weighted-average assumptions
were used in determining 2006 and 2005 expense, respectively.

Pension Benefits Postretirement Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Weighted-average discount rates 5.95% 5.65% 6.00% 5.80% 5.65% 6.00%
Expected long-term return on assets 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation levels 4.25% 4.00% 3.75% 4.25% 4.00% 3.75%

2008 Cost Amortizations: The estimated amounts that will be amortized from regulatory assets and accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost in 2008 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Postretirement
Pension Benefits  Medical Benefits
Actuarial loss 5- $1,052
Prior service cost 397 1
Transition benefit obligation - 256
Total 3397 31,309

Expected Long-Term Rate of Return en Plan Assets We expect an average annual long-term return on the pension asset
portfolio of 8.25 percent, based on a representative allocation within the target asset allocation described above. In
formulating this assumed rate of return, we considered historical retumns by asset category and expectations for future returns
by asset category based, in part, on simuiated capital market performance over the next 10 years.

The Pension Plan assets earned a rate of return of 12.8 percent, 8.2 percent and 15.6 percent, respectively, for the Plan years
ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Based on the postretirement medical benefit plan investment policy described above, we expect an average annual long-term
return for the postretirement portfolio of 8.25 percent. In formulating this assumed long-term rate of return, we considered
asset categories and expectations for future returns by asset category.

Pension and postretirement medical benefit expenses for 2007 were based on an expected long-term rate of return on assets of
8.25 percent. The same percentage will be used to determine the 2008 expenses.

Trust Fund Contributions The Pension Plan currently meets the minimum funding requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, Pension Plan trust fund contributions were $4.1 million in June 2007. ‘
Postretirement Medical Plan trust fund contributions were $2.4 million in June 2007 and $0.2 million in December 2007. |

Expected Cash Flows The table below reflects the total benefits expected to be paid from the external Pension Plan trust
fund or from our assets, including both our share of the pension and postretirement benefit costs and the share of the
postretirement medical benefit cost funded by participant contributions. Expected contributions reflect amounts expected to
be contributed to funded plans. Of the benefits expected to be paid in 2008, approximately $5.1 million will be paid from the
Pension Plan trust fund, and $2.2 million will be paid from the postretirement medical trust funds to reimburse us for out-of-
pocket benefit payments. Information about the expected cash flows for the Pension Plan and postretirement medical benefit
plans is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Pension Benefits Postretirement Medical Benefits

Expected

Gross Federal Subsidy
Employer Contributions

2008 £2,500 $2,400
Expected Benefit Payments

2008 $5,129 $2,165 $220
2009 7,988 2,239 24]
2010 7,309 2,305 269
2011 7,695 2,342 294
2012 10,307 2,370 323
2013 -2017 45,525 12,199 1,981
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As of October 1, 2007, the Medicare Part D subsidy reduced the postretirement benefit obligation by $3.0 million and
rediced the 2007 net periodic benefit cost by $0.6 million. The estimated Medicare Part D subsidy included in the expected
gro?s postretirement medical benefit payments is shown above.

Other

Long-term Disability We record nonaccumulating post-employment tong-term disability benefits in accordance with SFAS
No.5. The year-end post-employment medical benefit obligations of $1.4 million in 2007 and $1.8 million in 2006 are
reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as Accrued pension and medical benefit obligations, and $0.2 million was
recorded as Other current liabilities in 2007 and in 2006. The pre-tax post-employment benefit costs charged to expense,
including insurance premiums, were $0.2 million in 2007, $0.6 million in 2006 and $0.2 million in 2005.

401 (k) Savings Plan We maintain a 401(k) Savings Plan for substantially all employees. This savings plan provides for
employee pre-tax and post-tax contributions up to specified limits, We match employee pre-tax contributions after one year
of service. On January 1, 2007, the match increased from up to 4.0 percent to up to 4.2 percent of eligible compensation.
Eli]gible employees are at all times vested 100 percent in their pre-tax and post-tax contribution account and in their matching
employer contribution. Our matching contributions amounted to $1.3 million in 2007, and $1.2 million in 2006 and 2005.

!

Other Benefits We also provide an Officers' Supplemental Retirement Plan ("SERP") to certain of our executive officers.
Thk SERP is designed to supplement the retirement benefits available through our qualified Penston Plan.

;
The accumulated year-end SERP benefit obligation, based on the same discount rate described above for pension, was $3.5
million in 2007 and $3.6 million in 2006 and is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Accrued pension and benefit
obrligations, and $0.3 million was recorded as Other current liabilities in 2007. The accumulated SERP benefit obligation
included a comprehensive gain of $0.2 million in 2007 and $0.3 million in 2006. The pre-tax SERP benefit costs charged to
expense totaled $0.4 million in 2007, $0.6 million in 2006 and $0.5 million for 2005, At December 31, 2006, a pre-tax
adjustment of $0.8 million was recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income related to adoption of SFAS No. 158.
This adjustment included $0.7 million of net losses and $0.1 million of prior service costs.

Béneﬁts are funded through life insurance policies held by a Rabbi Trust. Rabbi Trust assets are not considered plan assets
for accounting purposes under SFAS No. 87. The year-end balance included in Investments and Other Assets on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets was $7.5 million in 2007 and $7.1 million in 2006. Changes in cash surrender value are
included in Other income on our Consolidated Statements of Income. These pre-tax amounts were a decrease of $0.2 million
folr 2007, an increase of $0.2 million for 2006 and a nominal decrease for 2005,

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAXES
The income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations as of December 31 consisted of the foltowing (dollars in
thousands):

| 2007 2006 2005
Federal:

Current 52,899 $4,875 $(679)

Deferred 2,566 3,144 (1,187)

Investment tax credits, net (379 (379} 379

. 5,086 7.640 (2,245)
Siate:

Current 1,124 1,311 432

Deferred 539 1,055 269

| 1,663 2,366 163

Total federal and state income taxes $6,749 $10,006 $(2.082)

F'ederal and state income taxes charged to:

Operating expenses $5,291 $8,569 $(2,264)

Other income 1,458 1.437 182

36,749 £10,006 $(2,087)
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The reconciliation between income taxes computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate and the reported income tax

expense (benefit) from continuing operations as of December 31 follows (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Income (loss) before income tax $22,553 $28,107 8(672)
Federal statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Federal statutory 1ax expense 7,894 0,838 (235)
[ncrease (benefit} in taxes resulting from:
Dividend received deduction (647) (494) (520)
State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 1,106 1,729 69
Investment credit amortization (379) {379) (379)
Renewabtle Electricity Production Credit (275) (273) (196)
AFUDC equity 198 194 194
Life insurance (139) (236) {191)
Medicare Part D (193) (107) (96)
Domestic production activities deduction (147) (63) -
Change in estimate for tax contingencies - (191) (741)
Other (669) (i2) 13
Total income tax expense (benefit) 56,749 $10,006. $(2,082)
Effective combined federal and state income tax rate 29.9% 35.6% 309.8%

As a result of the January 1, 2007 adoption of FIN 48, we decreased previously recorded tax contingencies by $0.6 million.
In accordance with FIN 48 adoption guidelines this decrease did not affect the effective tax rate. We decreased estimated tax
contingencies by $0.2 million in 2006 and $0.7 million in 2005 due to a reduction in potential tax liabilities.

We increased our estimate of FIN 48 unrecognized tax benefit by $1.9 million in 2007. In accordance with FIN 48 adoption
guidelines and the impact of deferred tax accounting, a net decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of less than $0.1 million
affected the effective tax rate.

SFAS No. 109 prohibits the recognition of all or a portion of deferred income tax benefits if it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax asset will not be realized. There were no valuation allowances recorded for the periods ended 2007 and 2006.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities at December 31 are presented below (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets - current
Reserves for uncollectible accounts $710 $692
Deferred compensation and pension 968 698
Environmental costs accrual 188 131
SFAS No. 5 loss accrual 485 485
401(k) contribution carryforward - 71
Active Medical Accrual 337 346
SFAS No. 133 - derivative instruments 1,307 630
Other accruals 223 475
Total deferred tax assets - current 4,218 3,528
Deferred tax liabilities - current
Property tax accruals 265 319
Prepaid insurance 315 310
Total deferred tax liabilities - current 580 629
Net deferred tax assets - current 3,638 2,899
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Deferred tax assets - long term

Equity investments 1,348 1,348
Acg':mals and other reserves not currently deductible 612 1,438
Deferred compensation and pension 508
Environmental costs accrual 1,333 1,378
Millstone decommissioning costs 2,288 2232
Cohtributions in aid of construction 2,198 2,119
Revenuc deferral - Vermont utility earnings 389 1,947
SFAS No. 5 - loss accrual 3,393 3,877
SFAS No. 133 - derivative instruments 1,861 2,611
SFAS No. 158 - benefit liability 6,204 13,220
SFAS No. 112 - retiree medical benefits 637 467
Connecticut Valley gain deferral - 225
Total deferred tax assets - long term 20,771 30.862

!
Defcrred tax liabilities ‘

Property, plant and equipment 40,190 38,765
Net SFAS No. 109 regulatory asset 1,523 1,544
Vqrmont Yankee sale 672 3,331 ‘
SFAS No. 158 - regulatory asset 5,946 13,220
SEAS No. 133 - derivative instruments 3,168 3,241 !
Decommissioning costs 1,909 1,906
Other 1,029 1322
Total deferred tax liabilities - long term 54,437 63,329
Net: deferred tax liabilities - long term 33,666 32467
Net‘ deferred tax liabilities 330,028 529,568

A summary of the liabilities and assets combining current and long-term:

Tot'al deferred tax liabilities - current and long-term $55,017 $63,958
Less total deferred tax assets - current and long-term 24,989 34,390
]

Net deferred tax liabilities £30.028 529,568
|

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Nuclear Decommissioning Obligations We are obligated to pay our share of nuclear decommissioning costs for nuclear
pla!nts in which we have an ownership interest. We have a 1.7303 joint-ownership percentage in Millstone Unit # 3, in which
Dominion Nuclear Connecticut ("DNC") is the lead owner with about 93.4707 percent of the plant joint-ownership. We have
anlexternal trust dedicated to funding our joint-ownership share of future decommissioning costs, DNC has suspended
coptributions 10 the Millstone Unit #3 Trust Fund because the minimum NRC funding requirements are being met or
exceeded. We have also suspended contributions to the Trust Fund, but could choose to renew funding at our own discretion
as long as the minimum requirement is met or exceeded. If a need for additional decommissioning funding is necessary, we
will be obligated to resume contributions to the Trust Fund.

We have equity ownership interests in Maine Yankee, Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic. These plants are
permanently shut down. Our obligations related to these plants are described in Note 3 - Investments in Affiliates.

We also had a 35 percent ownership interest in the Vermont Yankee nuclear power plant through our equity investment in
VYNPC, but the plant was sold in 2002. Qur obligation for plant decommissioning costs ended when the plant was sold,
except that VYNPC retained responsibility for the pre-1983 spent fuel disposal cost liability. VYNPC has a dedicated Trust
FUnd that meets most of the liabitity.

The Price-Anderson Act ("Act") currently limits public liability from a single incident at a nuclear power plant to about

$10 billion. The Energy Policy Act of 2005, enacted in August 2005, extends the Act, which expired in 2003, for 20 years
and provides a framework for immediate, no-fault insurance coverage for the public in the event of a nuclear reactor accident.
The Act consists of two levels of coverage. The primary level provides liability insurance coverage of $300 million. If this
amount is not sufficient to cover claims arising from an accident, the second level, referred to as secondary financial
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protection, applies. For the second level, each nuclear plant must pay a premium in arrears equal to its proportionate share of
the excess loss, up to 2 maximum of $100.6 million per reactor per incident, limited to a maximum annual assessment of

315 million. These assessments will be adjusted for inflation. Currently, based on our joint-ownership interest in Millstone
Unit #3, we could become liable for about $0.3 million of such maximum assessment per incident per year. Maine Yankee,
Connecticut Yankee and Yankee Atomic maintain $100 miilion in Nuclear Liability Insurance, but have received exemptions
from participating in the secondary financial protection program under the Act.

Long-Term Power Purchases Vermont Yankee: We are purchasing our entitlement share of Vermont Yankee plant output
through the PPA between ENVY and VYNPC. One remaining secondary purchaser continues to receive a small percentage
(less than 0.2 percent) of our entitlement. An uprate in 2006 increased the plant's operating capacity by approximately 20
percent. After completion of the uprate, VYNPC's entitlement to plant output declined from 100 percent to 83 percent, and
our entitlement share declined from 35 percent to 29 percent. ENVY has no obligation to supply energy to VYNPC over its
entitlement share of plant output, so we receive reduced amounts when the plant is operating at a reduced level, and no
energy when the plant is not operating. The plant normally shuts down for about one month cvery 18 months for
maintenance and to insert new fuel into the reactor.

Prices under the PPA increase $1 per megawatt-hour each calendar year, from $41 in 2008 to $45 in 2012. The PPA contains
a provision known as the "low market adjuster”, which calls for a downward adjustment in the contract price if market prices
for electricity fall by defined amounts. 1f market prices rise, however, PPA prices are not adjusted upward in excess of the
PPA price. Estimated annual purchases are expected to range from $59.3 million to $65.1 million for 2008 through 2011,
and $17.5 million for 2012 when the contract expires. A summary of the PPA, including estimated average amounts for 2008
through 2012, are shown in the table below. The total cost estimates are based on projected mWh purchase volumes at PPA
rates, plus estimates of VYNPC costs, primarily net interest expense and the cost of capital. Actual amounts may differ.

Estimated Average

2008 2009 - 2012
Average capacity acquired 175 MW 175 MW
Share of VYNPC entitlement 34.83% 34.83%
Annual energy charge per mWh $41.16 $43.29
Average total cost per mWh $41.80 $43.79
Contract period termination March 13,2012

We normally purchase replacement energy in the wholesale markets in New England when the Vermont Yankee plant is not
operating or is operating at reduced levels, We typically enter into forward purchase contracts for replacement power during
scheduled refueling outages, and account for those contracts as derivatives.

We had forced outage insurance to cover additional costs, if any, of obtaining replacement power from other sources if the
Vermont Yankee plant experienced unplanned outages between January | and December 31, 2007. The coverage applied to
unplanned outages of up to 30 consecutive calendar days per outage event, and provided for payment of the difference
between the spot market price and $40/mWh. The total maximum coverage was $10.0 million, with a $1.0 million total
deductible. There was a two-day unplanned outage at the plant in the third quarter of 2007 but no claims were made under
the insurance contract because the incremental replacement power cost was below the $1.0 million deductible.

In July 2007 we purchased outage insurance coverage for 2008 with similar terms to the outage insurance in place for 2007.
The total maximum coverage is $12.0 million, with a $1.2 million total deductible.

On September 13, 2007, the PSB issued an Order approving a March 16, 2006 settlement proposal reached by CVPS, Green
Mountain Power, ENVY and the Vermont Department of Public Service ("DPS") that resolves issues raised in a petition
before the PSB regarding the Rate Payer Protection Proposal (outage protection related to the plant uprate). The PSB Order
was subject to a 30-day appeal period, which ended on October 15, 2007 without appeal. We received settlement proceeds
from ENVY of $1.5 million after the appeal period ended. The settlement proceeds did not have an income statement impact
because a portion was recorded as a regulatory liability for return to retail customers, and the remaining offset an existing
receivable.

We are a party to a PSB Docket that was opened in June 2006 to investigate whether the reliability of the increased plant
output will be adversely affected by the operation of the plant’s steam dryer. On September 18, 2006, the PSB issued an
order requiring ENVY to provide additional ratepayer protections that would protect Vermont utilities and ratepayers if the

Page 76 of 89




plant is forced to reduce output because of uprate-related steam dryer problems. The DPS and ENVY reached an agreement
in a,compliance filing with the PSB, which will provide protections in the event of a steam dryer-related derate. The
protecuons apply to incremental replacement power costs and would remain in effect for at least two months after
therefueling outage during which the plant operates successfully with no steam dryer-related outages or derates. ENVY
requested reconsideration of the PSB ruling. Reconsideration was denied and ENVY has appealed to the Vermont Supreme
Court. Although the appeal remains pending, the period during which the protection applied in the event of a steam dryer-
related derate has expired without occurrence of such an event.

The: PPA between ENVY and VYNPC contains a formula for determining the VYNPC power entitlement following the
uprate. VYNPC and ENVY are seeking to resolve certain differences in the interpretation of the formula. At issue is how
muth capacity and energy VYNPC Sponsors receive under the PPA following the uprate. Based on VYNPC's calculations
thefVYNPC Sponsors should be entitled to slightly more capacity and energy than they are currently receiving under the
PPA. We cannot predict the outcome of this matter at this time.

If the Vermont Yankee plant is shut down for any reason prior to the end of its operating license, we would lose the economic
ber_ileﬁt of an energy volume equal to close to 50 percent of our total committed supply and have to acquire replacement
power resources for approximately 40 percent of our estimated power supply needs. Based on projected market prices as of
December 31, 2007, the incremental replacement cost of lost power, including capacity, is estimated to average $57.7 million
annually. We are not able to predict whether there will be an early shutdown of the Vermont Yankee plant or whether the
FSB would allow timely and full recovery of increased costs related to any such shutdown. However, an early shutdown
COl:.lld materially impact our financial position and future results of operations if the costs are not recovered in retail rates in a
timely fashion.

[
Hydro-Quebec: We are purchasing power from Hydro-Quebec under the Vermont Joint Owners ("VJO™) Power Contract.
The VIO is a group of Vermont electric companies, municipal utilities and cooperatives, including us. The VJO Power
Contract has been in place since 1987 and purchases began in 1990. Related contracts were subsequently negotiated between
us and Hydro-Quebec, which altered the terms and conditions contained in the original contract by reducing the overall
power requirements and related costs. The VJO contract runs through 2020, but our purchases under the contract end in
2016.

!
There are specific contractual provisions providing that in the event any VJO member fails to meet its obligation under the
contract with Hydre-Quebec, the remaining VJO participants, will "step-up” to the defaulting party's share on a pro-rata
basis. As of December 31, 2007, our obligation is about 47 percent of the total VJO Power Contract through 2016, which
represents approximately $487 0 million, on a nominal basis.

|

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guaranror's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ("FIN 45"), we are required to disclose the "maximum potential
amount of future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee.” Such disclosure is
required even if the likelihood is remote. With regard to the "step-up" provision in the VJO Power Contract, we must assume
that all members of the VJO simultaneously default in order to estimate the "maximum potential" amount of future payments.
We believe this is a highly unlikely scenario given that the majority of VJO members are regulated utilities with regulated
cost recovery. Each VJO participant has recetved regulatory approval to recover the cost of this purchased power in their
most recent rate applications. Despite the remote chance that such an event could occur, we estimate that our undiscounted
purchase obligation would be about an additional $370.0 million for the remainder of the contract, assuming that all members
c}f the VJO defaulted by January 1, 2008 and remained in default for the duration of the contract. In such a scenario, we
wauld then own the power and could seek to recover our costs from the defaulting members or our retail customers, or resell
the power in the wholesale power markets in New England. The range of outcomes {full cost recovery, potential loss or
potential profit) would be highly dependent on Vermont regulation and wholesale market prices at the time.

l:n the early phase of the VIO Power Contract, two sellback contracts were negotiated, the first delaying the purchase of 25
MW of capacity and associated energy, the second reducing the net purchase of Hydro-Quebec power through 1996. In 1994,
we negotiated a third sellback arrangement whereby we received a reduction in capacity costs from 1995 to 1999. In
exchange, Hydro-Quebec obtained two options. The first gives Hydro-Quebec the right, upon four years' written notice, to
teduce capacity and associated energy deliveries by 50 MW, including the use of a like amount of our Phase I/II transmission
facility rights. The second gives Hydro-Quebec the right, upon one year's written notice, to curtail energy deliveries in a
contract year (12 months beginning November 1) from an annual capacity factor of 75 to 50 percent due to adverse hydraulic
condmons as measured at certain metering stations on unregulated rivers in Quebec. This second option can be exercised
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five times through October 2015. Hydro-Quebec has not yet exercised these options. We have determined that the first
option is a derivative, but the second is not because it is contingent upon a physical variable,

Under the VJO Power Contract, the VIO had elections to change the annual load factor from 75 percent to between 70 and 80
percent five times through 2020, while Hydro-Quebec had elections to reduce the load factor to not less than 65 percent three
times during the same period. Hydro-Quebec and the VJO have used all of their elections. Based on elections made by the
VJO in 2005 and 2006, purchases under the VIO Power Contract were at an 80 percent load factor for the contract years
beginning November 1, 2005 and 2006. As of November 1, 2007, the annual load factor is 75 percent for the remainder of
the contract, unless the contract is changed or there is a reduction due to the adverse hydraulic conditions described above.

Total purchases from Hydro Quebec were $64.9 million in 2007, $64.3 million in 2006 and $58.4 million in 2005. A
summary of the Hydro-Quebec contracts, including historic and projected charges for the years indicated is shown in the
table below. Projections are based on certain assumptions including availability of the transmission system and scheduled
deliveries, so actual amounts may differ.
(dollars in thousands, except per kWh amounts):
Estimated Average  Estimated Average

2007 2008 - 2012 2013 - 2016
Annual Capacity Acquired 143.2MW 144 BMW (a)
Minimum Energy Purchase - annual load factor (b) 75% 15%
Energy Charge $30.540 $31,326 520,968
Capacity Charge 34.329 33.203 20,130
Total Energy and Capacity Charge $64,869 $64,529 541,098
Average Cost per kWh $0.065 50.068 £0.071

{a) Annual capacity acquired is projected to average approximately 116 MW for 2013 - 2014, 100 MW for 2015 and 19
MW for 2016.
{(b) Annual load factor was 80 percent for January thru October, and 75% for November thru December.

Independent Power Producers: We receive power from several Independent Power Producers ("IPPs"). These plants
primarily use water and biomass as fuel. Most of the power comes through a state-appointed purchasing agent, VEPP Inc.,
which allocates power to all Vermont utilities under PSB rules. The cost of power purchases from IPPs has been reduced
since mid 2003 based on a PSB-approved settlement reached by us, other parties and the DPS. The settlement was related to
various legal proceedings and negotiations that began in 1999 to change the IPPs' contracts with VEPP Inc. to reduce power
costs for customers' benefit. Our share of the savings, exclusive of savings that might result from implementation of IPP
contract buy downs through securitization, are expected to range from $0.2 million to $0.5 million annually for the years
2008 through 2012. In 2007, total purchased power from IPPs amounted to $22.8 miilion, representing approximately 6
percent of total mWh purchased and 14 percent of total purchased power expense. Total purchased power from IPPs was
$24.0 million in 2006 and $19.7 million in 2005. Estimated annual purchases are expected to range from $21.7 million to
$22.5 million for 2008 and 2012. These estimates are based on assumptions regarding average weather conditions and other
factors affecting generating unit output, so actual amounts may differ.

Joint-ownership We have joint-ownership interests in electric generating and transmission facilities that are included in
Utility Plant on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. These include:

Fuel Type Ownership Date In Service = MW Entitlement

Wyman #4 0il 1.7769% 1978 10.8
Joseph C. McNeil Various 20.0000% 1984 10.8
Millstone Unit #3 Nuclear 1.7303% 1986 20.0
Highgate Transmission Facility 47.5200% 1985 N/A
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At December 31 our share of these facilities was (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Investment Depreciation Investment Investment Depreciation Investment
Wy'man #4 $3.504 $2,817 $687 $3,422 $2,719 §703
Joseph C. McNeil 15,587 11,762 3,825 15,555 11,234 4,321
Millstone Unit #3 77,349 39,322 38,027 77,162 39,048 38,114
Highgate Transmission Facility 14,390 8,332 6,058 14,357 7.985 6,372
) $110,830 $62,233 348,597 £110,426 $60,986 $49510

Ourr share of operating expenses for these facilities is included in the corresponding operating accounts on the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Each participant in these facilities must provide for its financing.

[n 2005, Millstone Unit #3's operating license was extended from November 2025 to November 2045. In October 2007,
DNC filed with the NRC for a 7 percent power uprate of the plant. This would increase our share of plant generation by 1.4
MW, and we would be obligated to pay our ownership share of the related costs. In January 2004, DNC filed, on behalf of
itself and the two minority owners, including us, a lawsuit against the DOE seeking recovery of costs related to storage of
spent nuclear fuel arising from the failure of the DOE to comply with its obligations to commence accepting such fuel in
1998 A trial is expected to be held in August 2008. We continue to pay our share of the DOE Spent Fuel assessment
expenses levied on actual generation and will share in recovery from the lawsuit, if any, in proportion to our ownership
interest,

!
Performance Assurance At December 31, 2007, we had posted $6.4 million of collateral under performance assurance
requirements for certain of our power contracts, including $6.0 million of letters of credit issued under our $25.0 million
revolving credit facility, $0.3 million was in cash and $0.1 million was represented by restricted cash.

We are subject to performance assurance requirements through ISO-New England under the Financial Assurance Policy for
NEPOOL members. We are required to post collateral for all net purchased power transactions since our credit limit with
[SO-New England is zero. At December 31, 2007, we had posted $0.3 million of cash and a $5.0 million letter of credit
under our revolving credit facility.

!
We are currently selling power in the wholesale market pursuant to contracts with third parties, and are required to post
collateral under certain conditions defined in the contracts. At December 31, 2007, we had posted $1.0 million in the form of
a letter of credit, and $0.1 million of restricted cash.

We are also subject to performance assurance requirements under our Vermont Yankee power purchase contract (the 2001
Amendatory Agreement). If ENVY, the seller, has commercially reasonable grounds to question our ability to pay for our
monthly power purchases, ENVY may ask VYNPC and VYNPC may then ask us to provide adequate financial assurance of
payment. We have not had to post collateral under this contract.

At December 31, 2006, we had posted $8.6 million of collateral under performance assurance requirements for certain of our
power contracts, including a $4.5 million letter of credit.

Environmental Over the years, more than 100 companies have merged into or been acquired by CVPS. At least two of
those companies used coal to produce gas for retail sale. This practice ended more than 50 years ago. Gas manufacturers,
their predecessors and CVPS used waste disposal methods that were legal and acceptable then, but may not meet modern
eénvironmental standards and could represent a liability. Some operations and activities are inspected and supervised by
federal and state authorities, including the Environmental Protection Agency. We believe that we are in compliance with all
laws and regulations and have implemented procedures and controls to assess and assure compliance. Corrective action is
taken when necessary. Below is a brief discussion of known material issues.

!

Cleveland Avenue Property: The Cleveland Avenue property in Rutland, Vermont, was used by a predecessor to make gas
from coal. Later, we sited various operations there. Due to the existence of coal tar deposits, polychlorinated biphenyl
contamination and the potential for off-site migration, we conducted studies in the late 1980s and early 19%0s to quantify
| the potential costs to remediate the site. [nvestigation at the site has continued, including work with the State of Vermont

'
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to develop a mutually acceptable solution. In 2006, we updated the cost estimate of remediation for this site. The liability
for site remediation is expected to range from $2.3 million to $0.9 million. As of December 31, 2007, we accrued $1.3
million representing the most likely cost of the remediation effort.

Brattleboro Manufactured Gas Facility: In the 1940s, we owned and operated a manufactured gas facility in Brattleboro,
Vermont. We ordered a site assessment in 1999 at the request of the State of New Hampshire. In 2001, New Hampshire
indicated that no further action was required, though it reserved the right to require further investigation or remedial
measures, In 2002, the Vermont Agency of Natural Resources notified us that our corrective action plan for the site was
approved. That plan is now in place. In 2006, we updated the cost estimate of remediation for this site. The liability for
site remediation is expected to range from $1.3 million to $0.1 million. As of December 31, 2007, we accrued $0.6
million representing the most likely cost of the remediation effort.

Dover, New Hampshire, Manufactured Gas Facility: In 1999, Public Service Company of New Hampshire ("PSNH")
contacted us about this site. PSNH alleged that we were partially liable for cleanup, since the site was previously operated
by Twin State Gas and Electric, which merged into CVPS on the same day that PSNH bought the facility. In 2002, we
reached a settlement with PSNH in which certain liabilities we might have had were assigned to PSNH in return for a cash
settlement paid by CVPS based on completion of PSNH's cleanup effort. QOur remaining obligation was less than $0.1
million at December 31, 2007.

The reserve for environmental matters described above amounted to $1.9 million as of December 31, 2007 and $2.1 million
as of December 31, 2006. The current and long-term portions are included as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The reserve represents our best estimate of the cost to remedy issues at these sites based on available information as of the
end of the reporting periods. To management's knowledge, there is no pending or threatened litigation regarding other sites
with the potential to cause material expense. No government agency has sought funds from us for any other study or
remediation.

Leases and support agreements

Capital Leases: We had obligations under capital leases of $6.8 million at December 31, 2007 and $7.5 million at December
31, 2006. The current and long-term portions are included as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and are offset by
Property under capital leases included in Utility plant. We account for capital leases under SFAS No. 13, Accounting for
Leases. In accordance with SFAS No. 71 and based on our ratemaking treatment, amortizations of leased assets are recorded
as operating expenses on the income statement, depending on the nature and function of the leased assets. Of the $6.8
million, $6.6 million is related to the Phase 11 Hydro-Quebec ("Phase II") transmission facilities and the remaining $0.2
million is related to several five-year office equipment leases.

We participated with other electric utilities in the construction of the Phase I1 Hydro-Quebec ("Phase II") transmission
facilities in New England, which were completed at a total initial cost of $487 million. Under a 30-year support agreement
relating to participation in the facilities, we agreed to pay our 5.132 percent share of Phase 1I costs, including capital costs
plus the costs of owning and operating the facilities, over a 25-year recovery period that ends in 2013, plus operating and
maintenance expenses for the life of the agreement, in exchange for the rights to use a similar share of the available
transmission capacity through 2020. Approximately $30.0 million of additional investments have been made to the Phase 11
transmission facilities since they were initially constructed. All costs under these agreements are recorded as transmission
expense in accordance with our ratemaking policies. At December 31, 2007, the $6.6 million unamortized balance was
comprised of $19.1 million related to our share of original costs and additional investments, offset by $12.5 million of
accumulated amortization.

We also participated with other electric utilities in the construction of the Phase 1 Hydro-Quebec ("Phase [") transmission
facilities in northeastern Vermont and northern New Hampshire, which were completed at a total cost of $140.0 million.
Under the 30-year support agreement relating to participation in the facilities, we were obligated to pay our 4.55 percent
share of Phase I capital costs over a 20-year recovery period that ended in 2006, plus operating and maintenance expenses for
the life of the agreement, in exchange for the rights to use a similar share of the available transmission capacity through 2016.
At December 31, 2007, we had recorded accumulated amortizations of $4.9 million representing our share of the original
costs associated with the Phase [ transmission facility.
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The Phase I and Phase I1 support agreements provide options for extending the agreements an additional 20 years. Each
option must be exercised two years before each agreement terminates, and the transmission facilities for Phase I and Phase 11
must operate simultaneously for the interconnection 1o operate, therefore both agrecments would need to be extended to be
operative. Future annual payments relating to the Phase I and Phase II transmission facilities are expected to decline from
$3.1 million in 2008 to $2.2 million in 2016. If we elect to extend both agreements, annual payments are expected to
mcrcase during the renewal terms. Approximately $0.6 million of the annual costs are reimbursed to us pursuant to the New

England Power Pool Open Access Transmission Tariff.
I

F(?r the year ended December 31, 2007, imputed interest on capital leases totaled $0.6 million. A summary of minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2007 follows (dollars in thousands).
I

Year Capital Leases
2008 $1,449
2009 1,374
2010 1,300
2011 1,185
2012 1,083
Thereafter 2,676
Fliture minimum lease payments 9,067
Less amount representing interest 2,279
Present value of net minimum lease payments 56,788

;
Operating Leases: We lease our vehicles and related equipment under one operating lease agreement. The individual leases
are mutually cancelable one year from lease inception. We have the ability to lease vehicles and related equipment up to an
aggregate unamortized balance of $13.0 million, of which $9.9 million was outstanding at December 31, 2007 and $6.6
million was outstanding at December 31, 2006.

Under the terms of the vehicle operating lease, we have guaranteed a residual value tc the lessor in the event the leased items
are sold. The guarantee provides for reimbursement of up to 87 percent of the unamortized value of the lease portfolio.
pnder the guarantee, if the entire lease portfolio had a fair value of zero at December 31, 2007, we would have been
responsible for a maximum reimbursement of $8.6 million. We had a liability of $0.2 million at December 31, 2007 included
in other current liabilities representing our obligation under the guarantee based on the fair market value of the entire
portfolio, and this amount is offset by $0.2 million of prepayments.

’ - . v .

The lease agreement also contains a contingent rental provision based on the sale proceeds of any equipment being less than
the non-guaranteed portion of the base amount because of abuse, damage, extraordinary wear and tear or excessive usage.
;I'he total amount due to the lessor for any equipment sold will not exceed the unamortized balance of such equipment.

From 1999 to 2002, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. leased certain of the water heater tanks that it rents to
customers under a master lease agreement. The lease terms are non-cancelable except in the general case of loss, destruction,
um'epalrable damage, customer termination or obsolescence. The lease is secured by essennally all of the assets of
SmartEnergy Water Heating Services, Inc. and is guaranteed by Eversant. Our estimated maximum exposure under the
master lease agreement is a potential payment due in the event of unrepairable damage, loss or destruction to the tanks of
lapproximately $0.1 million. At December 31, 2007, the unamortized balance under this lease was $0.1 million.

/Other operating lease commitments are considered minimal, as most are cancelable after one year from inception or the
future minimum lease payments are of a nominal amount. At December 31, 2007, future minimum rental payments required
'under non-cancelable leases are expected to total $0.3 million over the next five years, and annual minimum rental payments
rafter that time are of a nominal amount.

Total rental expense, which includes pole attachment rents in addition to the operating lease agreements described above,
tamounted to $6.8 million in 2007, $6.0 million in 2006, and $5.5 million in 2005. These are included in Other operation on
, the Consolidated Statements of Income.

'Reserve for Loss on Power Contract On January 1, 2004, we terminated a long-term power contract with Connecticut

. Valley Eleciric Company, a regulated electric utility that was a wholly owned subsidiary of the company. In accordance with
: the requirements of SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ("SFAS No. 5"), we recorded a $14.4 million pre-tax loss
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accrual in the first quarter of 2004 related to the contract termination. The loss accrual represented our best estimate of the
difference between expected future sales revenue, in the wholesale market, for the purchased power that was formerly sold to
Connecticut Valley Electric Company and the net cost of purchased power obligations. We review this estimate at the end of
each reporting period and will increase the reserve if the revised estimate exceeds the recorded loss accrual. The loss accrual
is being amortized on a straight-line basis through 2015, the estimated life of the power contracts that were in place to supply
power under the contract,

Catamount Indemnifications Under the terms of the agreements with Catamount and Diamond Castle, we agreed to
indemnify them, and certain of their respective affiliates, in respect of a breach of certain representations and warranties and
covenants, most of which ended June 30, 2007, except certain items that customarily survive indefinitely. Indemnification is
subject to a $1.5 million deductible and a $15.0 million cap, excluding certain customary items. Environmental
representations are subject to the deductible and the cap, and such environmental representations for only two of Catamount's
underlying energy projects survived beyond June 30, 2007. Our estimated "maximum potential” amount of future payments
related to these indemnifications is limited to $15.0 million. We have not recorded any liability related to these
indemnifications.

Legal Proceedings We are involved in legal and administrative proceedings in the normal course of business. We do not
believe that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Appropriated Retained Earnings Major hydroelectric project licenses provide that after an initial 20-year period, a portion
of the earnings of such project in excess of a specified rate of return is to be set aside in appropriated retained earnings in
compliance with FERC Order No. 5, issued in 1978. Appropriated retained earnings included in retained earnings on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets were $0.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT REPORTING

Qur reportable operating segments include: Central Vermont Public Service Corporation ("CV - VT"), which engages in
the purchase, production, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity in Vermont; Custom Investment Corporation and
East Barnet are included with CV- VT in the table below; Other Companies include Catamount Resources Corporation
("CRC"), Eversant Corporation, ("Eversant"}, and C.V. Realty, Inc. CRC was formed to hold our subsidiaries that invest in
unregulated business opportunities and is the parent company of Eversant, which engages in the sale and rental of electric
water heaters in Vermont and New Hampshire through its wholly owned subsidiary, SmartEnergy Water Heating Services,
Inc. C.V.Realty, Inc. is a real estate company whose purpose is to own, acquire, buy, sell and lease real and personal
property and interests.

The accounting policies of operating segments are the same as those described in Note 1 - Business Organization and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Segment profit or loss is based on profit or loss from continuing operations
after income taxes and preferred stock dividends. Other Companies are below the quantitative thresholds individually and in
the aggregate; therefore, we have revised the table below to report all of our other companies as an operating segment,
including prior years. Inter-segment revenues are excluded from the table below and are less than $12,000 for each period.
Financial information follows (dollars in thousands):

Reclassification

Other  and Consolidating
2607 CV VT Companies Entries Consolidated
Revenues from extemnal customers $329,107 $1,798 $(1,798) $32%,107
Depreciation and amortizations (a) 16,993 184 (184) 10,993
Operating income tax expense 5,291 329 (329) 5,291
Equity in eamings of affiliates 6,430 - - 6,430
Interest income (b} 587 58 - 645
Interest expense 8,475 47 - 8,522
Income from continuing operations 15,317 487 - 15,804
Investments in affiliates 93,452 - - 93,452
Total assets 538,481 2,134 (301) 540,314
Construction and plant expenditures (c) 23,663 250 - 23,913
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2006

Revenues from external customers $325,738 £1.,838 $(1,838) $325,738
Depreciation and amortizations (a) 14,240 175 (175) 14,240
Operating income tax expense 8,569 284 (284) 8,569
Equity in earnings of affiliates 3,240 - - 3,240
Interest income (b) 1,386 728 - 2,114
Intérest expense 8,231 - - 8,231
Income from continuing operations 17,074 1,027 - 18,101
lnvpstments in affiliates 39,339 - - 39,339
Total assets 499,125 2,314 (501) 500,938
Construction and plant expenditures {c} 23,810 208 - 24,018
2005

Revenues from external customers $311,359 $1,847 $(1,847) $311,359
Dei)reciation and amortizations (a) 13,300 174 (174) 13,300
Opierating income tax (benefit) expense (2,264) 304 (304) (2,264)
quuity in earnings of affiliates 1,869 - - 1,869
Interest income (b) 1,144 347 (249) 1,242
Interest expense 9,493 248 (248) 0,493
Income from continuing operations (d) 1,290 120 - 1,410
Investments in affiliates 15,801 - - 15,801
Total assets 496,483 60,604 (5,654) 551,433
Canstruction and plant expenditures 17,558 - - 17,558

()} Includes net deferral and amortization of nuclear replacement energy and maintenance costs, and amortization of regulatory assets and liabilities.
These items are included in Purchased Power and Other Operation, respectively, on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Also includes capital
i lease amortizations.
(b) Included in Other Income on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
(c} Construction and plant expenditures for Other Companies are included in other investing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
(d)’ Inctudes a $21.8 million pre-tax charge related to a March 29, 2005 PSB-approved Rate Order.

NOTE 18 - UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The amounts included in the table below are in thousands, except per share amounts:

5 Quarter Ended

‘ March June September  December Total (2}
2007
Operating revenues $86,696  §77,380 $79,174 $85,857 $329,107
Utility operating income $6,063 $887 $5,147 $5,878 $17,975
NFet income §$5,706 8521 $4,321 $5,256 $15,804
B;isic earnings per share $0.55 $0.04 $0.41 $0.51 $1.52
Diluted earnings per share $0.55 $0.04 $0.41 $0.50 $1.49
2006
Operating revenues $82,255  $78,992 $79,912 $84,579 $325,738
Utility operating income 34,620 32,238 $7,788 $6,677 $21,323
Inicome from continuing operations 34,097 £995 $7,004 $6,005 $18,101
Income from discontinued operations - - - 251 251
Net income $4.007 8995 $7.004 36,256 $18,352

i
Basic earnings per share - continuing operations $0.33 $0.08 $0.57 $0.58 $1.65
Basic earnings per share - discontinued cperations - - - 0.02 0.02
Total basic earnings per share $0.33 $0.08 3067 $0.60 3167
D;iluled earnings per share - continuing operations $0.32 $0.08 $0.66 $0.57 $1.64
Diluted earnings per share - discontinued operations - - - 0.02 0.02
'I"otal diluted earnings per share 3032 5008 $0.66 $0.59 51.66

{a) The summation of quarterly earnings per share data may not equal annual data due to rounding.
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NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Retail Rates: As described in Note 7 - Retail Rates and Regulatory Accounting, on January 31, 2008, the PSB approved a
settlement agreement that we reached with the DPS regarding our May 15, 2007 request for a rate increase.

Noftes Payable: As described in Note 13 - Notes Payable and Credit Facility, we have the sole option to extend the maturity
of our $53.0 million term note and our credit facility to March 31, 2009,

Letters of Credit: As described in Note 12 - Long-Tem Debt, pursuant to a bank commitment dated March 10, 2008, we
have the sole option to extend the maturity of $16.9 million of letters of credit to November 30, 2009,
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management of the company, under the supervision and with participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the company's
dlsclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange
Act")), as of December 31, 2007. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial and
AcFountmg Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over ﬁnanc1al reporting, as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, The company's internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and of the preparation and
fait presentation of the Company's financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

|
Under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer, and with participation
of management, we assessed the effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework established in "Internal Control - Integrated Framework" issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, we have concluded that the company's internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.
|

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by Deloitte &
Tduche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our consolidated financial statements, whose

report is included below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2007
thF.t have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the company's internal control over financial
reporting.

!
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Central Vermont Public Service Corporation

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Central Vermont Public Service Corporation and subsidiaries
(the "Company") as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internat Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's
board of directors, managemnent, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December
31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated March 11, 2008, which report also refers to the reports of other auditors,
expresses an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and includes explanatory paragraphs relating to the adoption
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans, and Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 11, 2008

Item 9B. Other Information
None
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled "Director Elections” of the Proxy
Statement of the Company for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Executive Officers information is listed under Part
I, liem 1. Definitive proxy materials will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on
or about March 28, 2008.

\'
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Thé information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled "Summary Compensation Table"
of the Proxy Statement of the Company for the 2008 Annual Mecting of Stockholders. Definitive proxy materials will be filed
with the Securitics and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 28, 2008.

tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item related to security ownership of certain beneficial owners is incorporated herein by

reference to the section entitled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" of the Proxy Statement of
the Company for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Definitive proxy materials will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 28, 2008.

|
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled "Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions” and "Board Independence” of the Proxy Statement of the Company for the 2008 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders. Definitive proxy materials will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation
MiA on or about March 28, 2008,

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled "Services Performed by the
Independent Registered Public Accountants” and "Independent Registered Public Accountant Fees” of the Proxy Statement
of the Company for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Definitive proxy materials will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about March 28, 2008.
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CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Schedute II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

2007
Reserves deducted from assets to which they apply:

Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable
Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable - affiliates

Accumulated depreciation of non-utility property

Reserves shown separately:
Environmental Reserve

2006
Reserves deducted from assets to which they apply:

Reserve for uncoliectible accounts receivable
Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable - affiliates
Accumulated depreciation of non-utility property

Reserves shown separately:
Injuries and damages reserve (5}

Environmental Reserve

2005
Reserves deducted from assets to which they apply:

Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable

Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable - affiliates
Accumulated depreciation of non-utility property
Discontinued operations - Catamount

Reserves shown separately:
Injuries and damages reserve (5)

Environmental Reserve

(1) Amount collected from collection agencies
(2) Collections of accounts previously written off
(3) Reserve against rents

{4) Uncollectible accounts written off’

(5) This represents the Company's long-term reserve for injuries & damages needed to meet the Company's liability not covered by insurance,
The Company is self-insured up to $200,000; therefore, any activity for the year is charged to expense and recorded to the current liability.

(6) Environmental remediation payments from reserve

(7) Settlement of accounts related to pole attachment tariff resolution

Balance at
beginning

OI year

31,706,747

$2,014,137

For the Years Ended December 31

63 —5$199,629

$2,076,282

—$200,000
$3,426,110

(8) Reduction of reserve based on updated cost estimates for remediation

(9) Reclassified to utility property
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Charged to
cost and
expenses

Additions

Charged
to other
accounts

$127,125 (1)
405,882 (2)
$533.007,

£106,373 (1)
762,154 (2)

5868,527

$118,657(1)
479,489 (2)
433,169 (3)

SL043.860  §$1,031,315
347913
322221

Deductions

$2,901,183, (4)

$234,401
330,899 (9)
_$565,300

—$158,608

$1,757,826 (4)
1,390,104 (7)
53,147,930
—— 563
—$217.297

~$200,000
83,349,828 (8)

$1,414,379 (4)

—3$25,580
—$638,544 (6)

Balance at
end of

year

51,751,069

$3,681,992

£1.917,674




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CENTRAL VERMONT PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
[ {Registrant)

By: _/s/ Pamela J. Keefe
Pamela J. Keefe
i Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

March 11, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
per!sons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 11, 2008.

Siénamre Title

Roibert H. Young* President and Chief Executive Officer, and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Islf Pamela J. Keefe Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
(Pamela J. Keefe) (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Méw Alice McKenzic* Chair of the Board of Directors

R(&bert L. Barnett* Director

R(_L)bert G. Clarke* Director

Bll'uce M, Lisman* Director

Wlilliam R. Sayre* Director

Janice L. Scites* Director

Wr’illiam J. Stenger* Director

D’ouglas J. Wacek* Director

!
By: _/s/ Pamela J. Keefe
, {(Pamela J. Keefe)
Attorney-in-Fact for each of the persons indicated.

I
* Such signature has been affixed pursuant to a Power of Attorney filed as an exhibit hereto and incorporated herein

I by reference thereto.

|
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Central Vermont Public Service Corporation

Financial Statistics

(dollars in thousands, except percentages, per share and ratio amounts)

Balance Sheet Data

Total utility plant, net

Total assets

Total long-term debt (excludes current portion)
Total capitalization

Capitalization ratio:

Common equity

Preferred equity

Long-term debt and lease arrangements
Total

Income Statement Data

Operating revenues

Purchased power expense

Utility operating income

Income from continuing operations (a)
Income from discontinued operations
Net income

Common Stock Data
Eamnings available for commeon stock

Average common shares outstanding - diluted

Earnings from continuing operations - diluted
Earnings from discontinued operations - diluted
Earnings per share - diluted

Dividends paid per share of common stock
Market price - closing (end of year)
Book value

Market-to-book
Price/Eamings ratio

Market capitalization

2007

$320,268
$540,314
$112,956
§317,700

59%
3%
38%
100%

$329,107
$160,722
817,975
515,804

$15.804

$15,436
10,350,191

$1.49

3149

$0.92
$30.84
$18.43

1.67
20.29

$315,942

2006

$308,796
$500,938
3115950
$312,968

5%
4%
39%

100%

$325,738
$169,448
$21,323
518,101
251

$18,352

$17,984
10,827,182

$1.64
0.02
$1.66

$0.92
$23.55
317.70

1.33
14.10

$238,628

2005 2004
$301,233 $299,460
$551,433 $563,389
$115,950 $115,950
$351,527 $361,751

61% 62%

4% 4%

35% 34%

100% 100%
$311,359 $302,286
$171,643 $165,651
§8,568 $12,649
$1,410 $7,493
4936 16,262
$6,346 £23,255
$5.978 $23,387
12,366,315 12,301,187
$0.08 $0.58

0.40 1.32

50.48 $1.90
$0.92 $0.92
$18.01 $23.26
$17.70 $18.43
1.02 1.26

36.76 12.05
$221,224 $283,611

2003

$296,037
$534,635
$115,950
$350,560

60%
5%
35%
100%

$306,098
$152,994
$23,631
$17,148
2,633

$19.801

$18,603

12,126,993

o

1.3
0.2

— J

: bl

$23.50
$17.51

1.34
14.97

$282,487

(a) For 2003, includes $21.8 million pre-tax charge related to the March 29, 2005 Rate Order. For 2004, includes $14.4 million pre-tax
charge associated with the Connecticut Valley Electric Company, Inc. sale.




Central Vermont Public Service Corporation
Operating Statistics

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 (b)
Totzlll System Uses mWh {a)
Retdil sales:
Residential 1,003,055 959,455 978,164 955,261 948,278
Commercial 885,713 888,537 902,062 861,916 848,413
Industrial 425,356 430,348 414,341 419,090 396,081
Otl;ler 6,250 6,125 5,535 5.410 5,391
Total retail sales 2,320,374 2,284 465 2,300,102 2,241,677 2,198,163
Resale sales 697,749 1,031,171 662,570 552,885 695,608
Subtotal resale and retail sales 3,018,123 3,315,636 2,962,672 2,794,562 2,893,771
Conipany use, losses and other 149,647 140,344 146,027 139.700 149.133
Tota?l system uses 3.167.770 3,455,980 3,108,699 2,934 262 3,042,904
Average number of retail customers
Residential 135,591 131,483 129,943 128,665 127,881
Commercial 22,106 21,506 21,034 20,551 19,922
Industrial 37 35 36 37 38
Oth;er 175 173 17 171 173
Total 157,909 153,197 151184 149.424 148,014
Total System Sources mWh
Wholly owned plants 181,997 236,079 201,438 183,474 176,115
Joir:tly owned plants 212,592 228,353 209,878 207,938 236,523
Ver:mont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation 1,361,754 1,689,390 1,430,155 1,343,629 1,547,770
Hydro-Quebec 998,411 998,365 832,357 790,017 826,104
Independent power producers 176,169 198,735 160,396 172,210 164918
OthFr 219,186 90,440 264.330 231,182 111,041
Subtotal 3,150,109 3,441,362 3,098.554 2,928,450 3,062,471
Net:transmission and wheeling losses 17,661 14,618 10.145 5812 (19,567}
Total system sources 3,167,770 3,455,980 3,108,699 2,934,262 3,042,504
Energy Sources
Nuclear 48% 54% 51% 51% 55%
Hydro 39% 38% 15% 35% 35%
Oil'and wood 6% 3% 5% 6% 6%
Oth?er (including system purchases) 7% 3% 9% 8% 4%
Other MW (a) data
Avéragc twelve-month system capability MW 466.1 466.3 462.6 469.1 506.1
Net system peak MW 420.6 437.6 412.0 426.5 417.2
Date of peak Aug. 3 Aug. 2 July 19 Dec. 27 Dec. 2

(a) mWh - Megawatt hour. MW - Megawatt.
(b), 2003 excludes Connecticut Valley Electric Company, Inc. retail sales, due to discontinued operations. Instead Connecticut Valley is
i reflected as a wholesale customer of the Company.
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The table betow shows the high and low sales price of the Company’s
Common Stock, as reported on the NYSE composite tape by The
Wall Street Journal, for each quarterly period during the last two

years as follows:

Market Price Dividends
2007 High Low  Per Share
First Quarter $29.19 $22.53 $.23
Second Quarter 38.24 29.10 23
Third Quarter 41.05 32.38 .23
Fourth Quarter 38.40 25.95 .23
2006
First Quarter $21.95 $17.89 $.23
Second Quarter 21.90 16.11 23
Third Quarter 23.00 18.01 .23
Fourth Quarter 23.92 2094 23

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Information regarding stock transfer, lost certificates, dividend
checks, dividend reinvestment, optional cash investments,
automatic monthly investments from bank accounts, and direct
deposit of dividend payments are directed to the transfer agent as
noted below. Please include a reference to Central Vermont Public
Service and a telephone number where you can be reached.

Registrar, Transfer Agent and Dividend Disbursing Agent for
Common and Preferred Stocks:

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038

1-800-937-5449

www.amstock.com
You may also contact CVPS Shareholder Services at
1-800-354-2877, on the Internet at www.cvps.com,

or by e-mail at shsves@cvps.com.

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders 1s scheduled for 10 am. on
Tuesday, May 6, 2008, at the CVPS/Leahy Community Health
Education Center, 160 Allen Street, Rutland, Vermont. Notice
of the meeting and proxy statement and proxy will be mailed to
holders of Common Stock.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND COMMON STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Shareholders may reinvest dividends and make monthly cash
investments of at least $100 and no more than §5,000 per month.
Purchase of shares is optional, regardless of whether dividends
are reinvested. This is not an offer to sell, nor a solicitation of an
offer to buy, any securities. Any stock offering will be made only
by prospectus. For further information, please contact American
Stock Transfer and Trust Company at the address above.

COMMON STOCK LISTING

Central Vermont Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the trading symbol CV. Newspaper listings of
stock transactions use the abbreviation CViPS or CentlViPS and
the Internet trading symbol is CV.

All dividends paid by the company represent taxable income to
shareholders for federal income tax purposes. No portion of the
2007 dividend was a return of capital.

Traditionally, the Board of Directors declares dividends to be
payable on the 15th day of February, May, August, and November
to shareholders of record on the last business day of the month
prior to payment.

DISCLOSURES

In 2007, the company submitted a Section 12(a) Chief Executive
Officer certification to the New York Stock Exchange and the
Company has also filed certifications for the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer with the Securities and
Exchange Commission as required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

CREDIT RATINGS

The table below indicates ratings of the Company’s securities as
of February 2008,
Standard & Poor’s

Corporate Credit Rating BB+
First Mortgage Bonds BBB+
Preferred Stock B+

Central Vermont Public Service’s rating has a stable outlook.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

We welcome inquiries from individuals and members of the

financial community. Please direct your inquiries to:

Pamela J. Keefe, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
and Treasurer

Central Vermont Public Service

77 Grove Street

Rutland, VT 05701

The corporation will furnish, without charge, a copy of its most
recent annual report to the Securities and Exchange Commission
{Form 10-K) upon receipt of a written request. Please write:

Attn. Corporate Secretary’s Office
Central Vermont Public Service
77 Grove Street

Rutland, VT 05701

© Mixed Sources
torsmta,

FSC &

Chaln of custody certified by SmartWood in accardance with the rules of
the Forest Stewardship Council. Acid free and Elemensal Chlorine Free.
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he 2807 Emergency R2covery Award was presented
ﬂ to Central Vermont Public Service by the Edison Electric
Institute in recognition of the company’s fast response to the
worst storm in company history. In April 2007, a wind storm of
hurricane intensity knocked out power to 42 percent of CVPS
customers. With the heip of over 150 contract line and tree
crews, service restoration was completed within four days.
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